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J'7 U Litecare Limited

1. TH, U

i Dr. M. Ayyappan ) &
3remel Ud ey feerd —

T fasmT Sharaarn Chairman & Managing Director AT &REl uTeT
Smt Vijaya Srivastava Smt Dharitri Panda
R FfT & TH.U, WA Td IRAR FHAT HAewd, Tk Wiee, WA U6 UNER shediul Harerd,
HRT FIHR HRT TR
Addl. Secretary & F.A, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare,
Government of India Government of India

2T, a1 ame 3 THI THE GUSAATT 21, *.39R.TH. FOH

Dr. Babu Thomas Shri Rakesh Prasad Khandelwal Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan

e (fagor) e (fae) RENEAGERICIRCECEITE))
Director (Marketing) Director (Finance) Director (Technical & Operations)

3

e

Shri K. Mohandas Shri Sanjiv Kapoor Dr. Aarti Vij
IR-ERBRT ferepiere Fraerd RPN SFeTpIferd e RPN SFeTpIferd e

Non-Official Part-time Director Non-Official Part-time Director Non-Official Part-time Director
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AT WReY Ud gRIR gm0l He w3 Al S dY TET TAVATSA DIURT AR & S &5, AaPperd, kea+aqza § 10 i
2015 & UTIelC SWET  BieTy SR &g Bl IqaTe (bar T |

Union Minister for Health and Family Welfare, Mr J.P. Nadda inaugurated Incubation Facility for Pilot Production at HLL
Corporate R & D Centre, Akkulam in Thiruvananthapuram on April 10, 2015.

; ‘ p- .‘-. ‘
. OO 960

1 _ A S

1. UH. 3w, 371e0e] U9 Uay Hesre - Taualvel & 21 BRay) 2015 &1 ‘g9 - 2015 & fao=g 3ngaor
MARR Aegdl REPR eIe |

Dr. M.Ayyappan,Chairman& Managing Director - HLL,received premiere NIB Award named 'Business Icon
of the Year-2015'on 21 February 2015.
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//8[ ML .

&ﬂaj‘daﬂf afa, YAl Ud qﬁmﬁs BT HATTT §RT 30 SaR] 2015 I 78 fawell # Tavalvdl dRics fAIfics & ard-
UG YeTdeic 3R sWefed & aferas &1 ara fhar |

Shri Lov Verma, Secretary, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare launched the Cost-effective Pentavalent and Hepatitis B
vaccines of HLL Biotech Ltd. at New Delhi on 30 January 2015.

‘ i - ",
TIVATS P Yo YA} AiSel ASHhaR g 37 IHY AR, T8 F3l, PRdl WHR §RT 23 Fax) 2015
Pl TATSTel AT, RIea=ayzd # @refr 17|

The first PPP model Lifecare Centre of HLL was opened by Shri Remesh Chennithala, Minister of Home
Affairs, Government of Kerala at Gitanjali Hospital, Thiruvananthapuram on 23 January 2015.

Annual Report 2014-2015
9



l’ e difge & fop e

ST, UH. 3y, aw&isﬁiq—sia Q91 - TaYeiUel 4 Yaueyel wielle geief HNTge] gRT \eelfd whierfg
IS & T YRR = S ureashd aR B BRG] BT WhieRRY he &1 fordvor fear|
Dr. M Ayyappan, Chairman& Managing Director - HLL distributed scholarship funds to academically outstand-
ing students who are pursuing professional and other specified courses under the auspices of scholarship
scheme instituted by HLL Pratheeksha Charitable society.

Td gl & bR IRUAe. b AT F fo e
# R Trer #HRTd dex (AEsh) & |
FHSIAT S BT 3T TG Hd 2 |

Shri. R P Khandelwal, Director (Finance) - HLL
seen exchanging MoU with Mumbai based Tata
Memorial Centre (TMC) for constructing a state-
of-the-art Women and Children Cancer hospital
at Parel in the western metropolis.

YAV BIFBAE haed! |, Bifed
BT 26 Racfex 2014 BT g IS
e 2014 # wdoss fafemian
frafas’ & fog sifeas fae s
T a7 IS REBR AT g |
HLL, Kakkanad Factory Cochin
received Cochin Special Economic
Zone Export Excellence Award for
'‘Best Manufacturer Exporter in
Rubber Product Sector 2014' on 26
September 2014.
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TAUATS & T[E UENST Tavavd B’ BRel I Bl SPE_§1-81$A  DIARE DB & wI
H IR TEET H9 B a9 2014 F IPpT [REPR A TR a1 T |

HLL Family' the in-house magazine of HLL won the Kerala Management Association's Excellence
Award 2014 awarded for the best in-house Corporate magazine of Kerala State.

TaUAUd UeRES! haed! ®I Jguul &
R gd A H B! gl & fog
PR oY TG FRIF0 qRIBR 2015
yaT far M|

HLL Peroorkada Factory , received
Kerala State Pollution Control Board
Award 2015 for substantial efforts in con-
trolling and prevention of pollution.

B b AAR =g AT o I FiE] o 09
, 2015 B TATAYS TRl haed,

fToa-IdqRA # Yol HeR Td :

gfaem &1 IgEre el

Honourable Chief Minister of Kerala, Shri

Oommen Chandy inaugurated the LNG Storage

and regasification Facility in HLL Peroorkada

Factory, Thiruvananthapuram on 09th July, 2015
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gfe®mIv/Sig derm Seed

RO TarR & TR WK1 Td I[urgeiiarel WRey J&Tl FHIEM Y& HRp FHAE IR Adblad fawRiy w1
ST g ST

g

PIART GCHIV GRT TR B 3R, Tavavd aghedR fafiics 71 frafaled e sfeafea favar & it wiq et
R AT &

RIS A& qRT PR dTel UIaRITdTel ScdTe AR HaAT UG ST

I ARG 3R dgikrl 1 I ¥ FROR IR & gRT e |

AR, AL U4 [T, AR e 3R SUHRDI &1 & §RT IUFRHT TS AR oI For |

AUl G IR B JEARAGATAT DI YT P [oT¢ Ad Fare fadbrd R Biad B

PHIIRE IFYRIT 3R BURT ATHINTG STREIRIT P STadd qHd g-10 - & gRT FHEIND T J
ufdeg PARe g9 S|

B UEe 3R v e & wiems & IRY gedt A @) war iR wiasy difedt & forg uftag w& |

g IR NI AR & A1) e B @Rd ghyg 3R Telge WR BRI BT 3R Jd Jed
Jcare Sl H g A Raerntsail § g g I |

AT Ud 4 ugel & SIRY FROR FaraR &1 AP =11 |

90% W AP HHAR! A VR b A AR 4 [Adbeq & FRHT &+ & U g1 SR |

TS BT UTaG & AT JIocara Ud Higell WRey Rl & &3 # vl eIl e & wy d
HIRIAT AT HRAT - $7 el § FHI ARBRI U TgUIig ygell bl PrIif-<ad dR & ol [Ghed & Arsiar
EEEI

HPR BN UG AHMDR UG A1 DI FLARHDHROT AR ATh JALRT H AMHA HRA b [AY STh
BIIGT Bl AR a1 A7, Piere e iR SrauRa fTer R ddhf~d HRA1|

T W [ADI Bl 3R AJed bR X5 AT o ARETT SR RIS Yee i GATIR0T et Tferfererai
TR SR THR YA 3T GICHI0T/EIT YRT B IT T BRAT |
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VISION

B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

VISION/MISSION & OBJECTIVES

To be a globally respected organisation, focusing on inclusiveness by providing affordable and quality healthcare
solutions through continuous innovation.

MISSION
To accomplish the Corporate Vision, HLL Lifecare Ltd has outlined following Mission which focus on six key
areas:
®  Provide quality products and services meeting international standards.
® Excellence through continual improvement by adoption of best technologies and practices.
® Customer delight and value creation through innovation, R & D, cost management and customer
care.
®  [Focusing on human resource development to meet the needs of challenging business environment.
® Be a socially committed corporate by maintaining highest standards of corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility.
e Committed to the well-being of mother earth and future generations through green initiatives and
promotion of sustainable development.
OBJECTIVES

The company will strive to fulfill its vision/mission by

Attaining rapid growth and global levels of operations with high quality cost competitiveness and be
among the top three players in each main product category.

Create a culture of continuous innovation through R& D initiatives.

Strive to be the employer of choice in India with employee satisfaction levels of over 90%.

Be recognized as the leading social organization in the field of Reproductive and Women's Healthcare
with commitment to the society - a partner of choice for implementing all government and multi-lateral
initiatives in these segments.

Focussing on capacity building, skill development and infrastructural development for the benefit of
the marginalized and under privileged sections for their empowerment and inclusion in the economic

mainstream.

To place emphasis on environmental friendly activities that brings out conservation of resources and
waste management leading to top sustainable development.

Annual Report 2014-2015
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TIATATS ASHhdpIR ffes ufteg & :

AT Bl WRY Ud AT S FHY PR, ARSI AFD & AJ0d FHAME IR Hblsd fhhrad e e

THTYTT UG DA |

Y &=t ¥ 999 denfre) iR ugfordT UM gRT TR SS9 & WRT Wi s Atsdl Sudel $RT |

TN, T FAT STTH g fIbr, AT Jae O Uieeh Heel Yeed WX Bihd Db UGl hieTy
AEHIfE IR W I 916l I Hodarel e g WA v SR |

AHfE® ANTTAT TAT ARY[SH AMIE ST W Jeh Ieadd AFDI DI GRT HRdTel FI3T I7 |

&, @Ry Ud gIiaRoT i

HHARAT 3R SU ARl o grem GHfeaa &3 Hfeq gfveg &=

AR MR TR $HD BRIGANI, IUTG! R HaAT3H & TG BT A1 Ud FRI=0T HRAT |
SUYh fAfere Td 3= STUeTall 1 AFUTerT PR |

HEINTS STATEae] TR SR SdR GRIAK TaTer Jiafl bl g |

PHART AR 3R ITch IR<IT JATY G|

S Tl MU gIRT UGHOT & T |

AT, ol AR ITHT 3R AT BT A IR BH BRAT 3R AABRUNT Sl Al & TIRT ST |
JRET, TR UG YPTaR0T Y€ YOlTell 1 ATaierd e |

SARTRITEAT T[OTaRtl el

TIATATS ASHhdhIR ffes ufteg & :

RS /SR TSI AT &Y SiTe TOTTell &1 JIJUTel Hxd T2l 3728 AaHTId JTeRvN & WINT gRT fasaay,
FATa a1 srguriofi Sita aRom gifead o |

UG FTET | AR AT BTG BT TS TF 3A1/31g § Al 17025 : 2005 & AJHY JdgT Joumel] o
MRl iR BRI & d1er GURRE g1, GRARET BRAT TAT SHD! S BRI H BT HRAT |

TEET JUTTell & JHIfd FRAOR GaRAT |
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QUALITY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to:

Provide affordable healthcare solutions focussing on inclusiveness, conforming to international standards,
enabling people to lead healthy and happy lives;

Achieve organisational excellence through continual improvement by adoption of best technologies and
practices in all areas;

Market products and services globally delivering highest value for customers through focus on innovation,
quality, R&D, cost management and customer relationship management;

Be an organisation meeting highest standards in Corporate Governance and Corporate Social
Responsibility.

SHE POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to protect environment, eliminate occupational hazards and
ensure safety of employees & subcontractors through:

Monitoring and control of the impact of its activities, products and services on a continual basis;
Compliance of applicable legal and other requirements;

Adopting safe operating practices with an emphasis on social accountability.

Facilitating employee training and their involvement;

Pollution mitigation through adoption of best practices;

Conserving materials, energy and reducing waste at source, and/ encouraging usage of renewable
energy sources;

Periodic review of safety, health and environment management system.

LAB QUALITY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to:

Ensure reliable, consistent and traceable results of testing by using test methods complying to national/
international standards and by following good professional practices.

Ensure that all personnel involved in the testing operations familiarize with the policies and procedures
of the management system conforming to ISO/IEC 17025 : 2005 and implement the same in their works.

Continually improve the effectiveness of the management system.

Annual Report 2014-2015
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qel a9 2014-15 &P U D! U1 B 49 4 a1 AHT 6 H U] WRI SR H 98 G &1 37ah!
gl & # amues wwer fa<fia af 2014-16 & fog 49 & a1fifes Ruic wvga o £ |

TIUAVS H B TIRIRE SIS 3R Aarg fhhracl 999 3R fasa & IR-UR PRIel oAl &l wReIReT faavor
UET & BHAR TIARI ST | ol 78 B | M@t Ut & fofg 99 2014-15 Uah 9gd Aecaqul a9 off | 3radst du
= 3l & wed 97 fwres '1iTe R g &R wamed 9 o 31,000 $RIS Hiel IR IR & U 1 olsHIdh
BN BR & [oT0 BHaE g1 &1 H Fawre Hedl & qHiT iR AR & fu S9! 3791 e AR 31R
HRTEAT ifhd wer @Ear g1 H Wi vegevd gRaR iR 9 fRRIER @ S9% wwelH iR fasard SRY T
F U \ear MR arch HRl WY =Tl g

Ty P IR g3 ANl P drasie dl AIST BT P (TET AR A 8T a4 P SR BUl gRT H9TA
IAR B ol AT 1678 TRIS 21 Tl Iovg 31068.04 axrs (3 941 .68 ors) dd 12.3% Jhg v
T, R & a5 a9 I31.55 axrs (325.70 oRIS) IF Uga & forq 22.7% g @t off |

IS 7 foxita 99 & forg dueht @t v | IRR Yot v % 387 .07 arg (310/- & ufiy R % 0.20/-) & Srwfer
P RIBIRYT & &1 397 i faaRor o) 378.80 g 7 |

Ty 2014-15 # MU HUN & Feaqul SUATSRIT MMId el dieT #RT AW §

o IR fadrd, YA yded, UIvT WERl T ey da1 SR WAl 98 $RA b FaE & Hareld dRe
& U v Aqul wfcaaret! duel & w9 A 3 3, 2014 BT A9E TAUATd SIhICHd wadrad fafcs
(8T%CH) @1 ST |

o HUY UTUATd gIcsd fafics (VA df Ud), Tavaye & Udb 100% FHEN 7 30 SaRl, 2015 &l deRi
gis Uelfed’ (YeTdelc & fofg) 3R ‘815d® - 41’ (TUCISiCH - &t & oY) & g & A1 g Jarea I
fpar 81 va dt gel & IR & oy g9 - 8199 el 9 Aheagde qR1 fear g |

o Al T AR aIOIRT H SATT; ASHRAT, AAT, AT AR AT, FHRFRA, SfSr, Rarer, RgRT fors
3R AIRMT wder fhar|

o TR Y giS AT TePIeM, Taifera Hwgel, AT 3R 84 T a¥IoT, UIpiTd ST 2107 & a¥l § g ard
fopdr Mg |

o HiRge MifFRIE Mol O 97 <= A1 S, oI R e H doligd fear w2l
o Fifea H MHFRIES! & oY Toh 3R IS4 @I, Uah AR deed dis R @l =l

oo

o dM fBY g9 Tics ARIS 3R g9 &fs f45g WX & 47 I3l 4 39 Iy & |

o URER IAYYA Pl M 3 F g &1 G UeT ol | Al ©rAl DI WIS BRI b &g P A AR qaTiig
HHATRAT AR SMH ST 6 TR 6T & 1w A Taveve ucier gmiel Jamge! &1 o+ foar M|

o S |HERY I & Ao & fw Mewics RIS & TRATIT &1 3R STHdITd Us TR I, UTTHIET,
PR | 4.783 THs YA PRl AR I UG [Har 2

e THAGIE X WX TAU USTH &R & fIT HHATchl § TIUAT S Foildel AfShd R WUd &R+ R T
P U PAlCHT ARPR & A UF AT Y SRER fbar T |
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CHAIRMAN'S SPEECH

Dear Shareholders,

| have great pleasure in welcoming you to the 49" Annual General Meeting of your Company for the year 2014-
15. With your permission | present before you the 49" Annual Report for the financial year 2014-15.

At HLL, we are persistent in our business purpose of ‘making healthcare products and services affordable and
reach health care delivery to millions across the globe’. Year 2014-15 was a very significant year for your
Company. Your Company achieved an all time high performance and managed to achieve a new landmark
with the revenue from operations crossing 31,000 Cr. milestone. | would like to place on record my sincere
thanks and appreciation to Board of Directors for their support and guidance. | would also like to express my
sincere thanks to dedicated HLL family and all the stakeholders for continuing their support and confidence in
us.

Your Company’s performance continued to be excellent despite challenges posed during the year. The total
volume of business handled by the Company during the year stood at ¥1,678 cr. While the operational revenue
grew by 12.3% to touch ¥1,058.04 Cr. (941.68 Cr.), Profit after Tax increased by 22.7 % to reach ¥31.55 Cr.
(25.70 Cr.).

The Board has recommended a dividend of ¥387.07 lacs (Rs. 0.20/- per share of ¥10/-) on the paid up equity
share capital of the Company for the financial year. The corresponding dividend distribution tax is ¥78.80 lacs.

It is my privilege to share with you the significant achievements of your Company in the year 2014-15:

° Formation of M/s. HLL Infra Tech Services Limited (HITES) on 3 April 2014 as a wholly owned subsidiary
to carry on the business of providing services viz., Infrastructure Development, Facilities Management,
Procurement Consultancy and allied services.

° M/s. HLL Biotech Limited (HBL) a 100% subsidiary of HLL; initiated business operations on 30" January
2015 with the launch of vaccine brands ‘PENTAHIL' (for Pentavalent) and ‘HIVAC-B’ (for Hepatitis-B).
HBL has also successfully completed in-house technology development for Rabies Vaccine.

° Entered nine new overseas markets namely Nigeria, Malawi, Namibia, Gautemala, Nicaragua, Georgia,
Rwanda, Sierra Leone and Malaysia.

° Launched four new brands namely Glucolim, Goaliv Capsules, Ashvagandha & Lasuna in the category
of Herbs & Berrie, natural products range.

° Oral Contraceptive Pills have been registered in three new countries namely, Angola, Lesotho &
Seychelles.

° Opened one more MOODS Planet, an exclusive retail brand store for Contraceptives in Kochi.
° Launched MOODS Gold Series and Moods brand is now available in 47 countries worldwide.

° Formed HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society with an objective of sponsoring students belonging to the
BPL category to pursue professional studies and also to support health care of retired employees and
general public.

° Obtained from Government of Kerala 4.783 acres of land at Konni in Pathanamthitta, Kerala on long
term lease to set up Greenfield Project for manufacturing Blood collection Bags.

° Signed MOU with the Government of Karnataka to set up and run HLL Janasanjeevini Medical Stores in
Karnataka to provide Medicines at subsidized rates.

Annual Report 2014-2015
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I HU 7 TATAUS 3R WIR TRPR & e H SRIERT TH 31 g b e gy 2009-10 | AR ‘6’ fHwres
RfET 991 <@ © 1 Hue Bl Freared dehddl Bl e H I@ax a¥ 2014-15 & forg ot o IS g1fel et &t
fesara g |

JTIGHT HUH T TR TG &b SIRY BB, Yoraialel FREIRET HHE UG PReb THUAN H bisd Th
g FEATIT FIT6 a9 & @8d & A1 a9 2020 HURE ASHT TR B 5| FART I£eT AEH dbiad Alsd
fI®RId S, IUHRHT W 3R At SN RS ot 7 fefrea’ wfth &1 iftre Sua & e 21 &4
FATIR Bl AT b AT § YA BRAT1 2, S [ & A1-A1er UiRael] 14, SIH1 &1 §18d B | AT bu1
TR ey i, 2015 - & JHIGT Sl 89N 15 & ARTRGI & (oY ATGHIRES TRed Bavsl GHad $R & [y
g, P SMUR W WRA WRPR b AN P AT JAERT BT 4T TR0 HAT 2 |

JATDT BT 7 AESTh I [THRT §RT SIRT fHY 1Y PIANE JARMET ARG BT FJurer fHar ol

# YRT PR & fAfay faurm, faevd: ey vd uRaR Sedror H3Teld W Ui o R |9ed= Ud Jgradn & fog
Faedl ATaT BT g |

SI.09. WA
3reyel U uay fevre

UdUclUcl gt dhIX TellHC s
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Your Company has maintained “Excellent” performance rating continuously since 2009-10 under the MoU
signed between HLL and Government of India. The Company is confident in getting “Excellent” rating for the
year 2014-15 also in view of the Performance Indicators.

Your Company has drawn up Vision 2020 Corporate Plan with the objective of becoming a globally respected
organization, focusing on inclusiveness by providing affordable, quality healthcare solutions through continuous
innovations. Our objective should be to harness more on the power of ‘digital’ in developing customer-centric
models, designing customer experience and channel strategies. We should endeavor in building a culture of
innovation that will drive both, growth as well as competitive advantage. Your Company also looks forward for
opportunities to collaborate with Government of India based on the draft National Health Policy, 2015- which is
for ensuring universal health coverage for the citizens of our country.

Your Company had complied with Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises.

| gratefully acknowledge the continued support and help received from various departments of Government of
India, particularly from the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare.

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman & Managing Director
HLL Lifecare Ltd.

Annual Report 2014-2015
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BEhkL

UAGERT a1 & Skt 8 o FrafoaRed srd FeEs & g gavdud aswadr ffice & TRREURS! &1 49 41

I AR 4% FT Bel, HART . 155-Y, Ugel dal, FHivr Ha+, W@Red Ud YRR Hedmvl H3Terd § YEhaR,
28 fyder, 2015 #eated 12.00 97 BT AT B ST |
A B

1.

31 A/ 2015 I FATQ gY a¥ & o1y oean w_ifer foxig faaror ( Jersifera wafed faxir faavor |fga),
9 R e, wifafde orar waal & RUE & @ 9Rd (M & T Sit) & 36 gd Agrerar wigd ol
ool W faR &A1 3R R dAT |

31 9, 2015 &1 a1 foxfig a¥ & v douet & sfaac! IRR R aryier =iy &= |

Ty 2015-16 & g HU & WifARd I@IRIeTD] B I YIRSIHE TI PR & (oY e dsdl I wrergd
PRAT |

ffaRad Adedl &I AR Adhed & wU § HINEH & AT 1 F9E & 997 TR =1 &R aw |qwen
ST Al qiRd H_AT |

Amed fpar Simar 2 6 duet afdfem, 2013 @t gRT 142(1) & 31er & R 7 a¥ 2015-16 & foy 9Ra
P fRI=® 3R Hel daruklerd gIRT Fiyeh Hifdfees okl & aiR#ifie T3 o= & forg ol & Feee
Hed Bl YaqgRT W b S &1

fey Frd

o= ad 2014-15 iR 2015 -16 & T AN oIATIRIETh] & UIRSIRE BT ST |

FRAfIRIT Hepedl Bl ATERY Hehed & WU H ARG b A1 T [LIEE S 97 @R 1 SR g q6s0
SR Sl TR BRAT |

"Hpey fhar ST & 6 aRT 148 (3) & wraem=i iR du=it srfaf e 2013 & afy ®Ig urirey wraemi iR
6 AU TR PRl & SR H, HEY AFRIST & U, AR oETBR, DTSR (HH TSIHRUN .
100049) 3R 79« T &. T TAIRRICH, dFd @R, Teiid (W Uofiexor . 000207), Ria!
e Hed gR1 31 A/ 2015 &1 FATK {71 99 & Iy Uil & AN Repls! B S@raRie & Ao
BT AR HUA P RATIRIETD] & wY A g [HAT T 8, BT <F TP %, 1.25 g UIRAHS @ AdT B
3R P GRT AT AT 3T W <1 Bl B TAGERT AJAALT DI Il 2 |

Ao fhar Smar & b a1 148 (3) & raemi &R $ust 1ffsas 2013 & Ifs SIS Uraey uraem =i 8k
g9 AN TR el & STER0 H, A9 S &, YN TEIRTICH, NG SR, JS91a (B dofiavor .
000207) &1 <7 94F $. 1.5 ARG UIRSIHE I HaT B 3R 394 gRT a1 7 377 @ 3R 414 TH.
R & TR, AN oieR, [eaadyra (64 Uoiieror §.102913) @ < yd® %. 25 &g
RIS T a1 PR MR ITb gRT BT AT 3777 4, f7p! e Heel gR1 31 Ared 2015 B FHA
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No.HLL/CS/2-338/2015 25 August 2015

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 49th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of HLL Lifecare Ltd. will be
held at New Delhi on Monday the 28th September 2015 at 12.00 Noon at the Committee Room, Room No.155-
A, 1st Floor, Nirman Bhavan, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including audited consolidated financial state-
ments) for the year ended 31st March 2015 along with the Report of the Directors, Statutory Auditors
together with comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) thereon.

To declare dividend on the equity shares of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2015.

To authorize the Board of Directors to fix remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors of the Company for
the year 2015-16.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification as an ordinary
resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the requirement of Section 142 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board
of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to fix the remuneration to the Statutory Auditors
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the year 2015-16".

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

Ratification of Cost Auditors' remuneration for the Financial Year 2014-15 and 2015-16.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, with or without modification as an ordinary
resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration
of ¥1.25 lakh each plus service tax and out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s. Anikhindi & Co, Cost
Accountants, Kolhapur (Firm Registration No:100049) and to M/s. Jugal K.Puri Associates, Cost Accoun-
tants, Gurgaon (Firm Registration N0:000207), who are appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost
Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year
ending 31st March 2015."

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration
of ¥1.5 lakh plus service tax and out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s. Jugal K.Puri Associates, Cost
Accountants, Gurgaon (Firm Registration N0:000207) and 2.5 lakh plus service tax and out-of-pocket
expenses payable to M/s.S.Nair & Associates, Cost Accountants, Thiruvananthapuram (Firm Registration
N0:102913), who are appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the
audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March 2016."

By the order of the Board

(P. SREEKUMAR)
COMPANY SECRETARY & SVP (HR)
FCS No: 5875

Notes:

1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and on a poll to
vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. Proxies, in order to
be valid and effective, must be lodged with the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours
before the commencement of the meeting.
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2. Pursuantto Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors of a Government Company
are appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG). In terms of Section 142(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 the remuneration of auditors has to be fixed by the company in the annual general
meeting or in such manner as the company in annual general meeting may determine. Necessary resolu-
tion has been placed before the Members for authorising the Board of Directors to fix up the remuneration
to the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2015-16.

3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, setting out the material facts in respect of Special
Business is annexed.

To
The Shareholders
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory statement sets out the
matter in relation to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying notice:

Item No. 4

The Company is directed, under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014, to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a Cost Accountant in practice. The
Board of Directors of your Company, on recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment
and remuneration of M/s. Anikhindi & Co, Kolhapur and M/s. Jugal K.Puri Associates, Gurgaon to conduct the
audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year 2014-15. For the financial year 2015-16, the Board of
Directors, on recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved appointment and remuneration of M/s.
Jugal K.Puri Associates, Gurgaon and to M/s.S.Nair & Associates, Cost Accountants, Thiruvananthapuram. In
accordance with the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 (a) (ii) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by
the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing ordinary resolutions
for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2015 and
2016. None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or
interested in the aforesaid ordinary resolution. The Board recommends the aforesaid resolutions for
your approval.

By the order of the Board

(P. SREEKUMAR)
COMPANY SECRETARY & SVP(HR)
FCS No: 5875
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|. DIRECTORS’ REPORT (2014-15)

The Members
HLL Lifecare Ltd.

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the forty ninenth (49th) Annual Report of the Company
together with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31stMarch, 2015 and Auditors' Report and the
Report thereon by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company's financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2015 is summarised below:

in lakh)
Financial particulars Stand alone Consolidated

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
Revenue from operations (gross) 106438.70  94726.54 111363.76 95421.00
Excise duty 633.74 558.38 810.69 563.04
Revenue from operations (net) 105804.96  94168.16 110553.07 94857.96
Other income 398.37 1200.67 455.49 1189.49
Total income 106203.33  95368.83 111008.56 96047.45
Profit before tax 3752.79 3621.08 3903.12 3627.69
Tax expense 597.65 1050.31 589.22 1048.84
Profit for the year 3155.14 2570.77 3313.90 2578.85
Dividend (including tax on distributed profits) 465.87 452.86 465.87 452.86
Transfer to General Reserve 2689.28 2081.11 2801.22 2086.44

2. PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Your Company achieved a new landmark in operational revenues, crossing the 1,000 crores milestone on a
stand alone basis. The highlights of the Company's performance are as under:

e Revenue from operations has grown from ¥941.68Cr.in 2013-14 to ¥1058.04 Cr. in 2014-15, recording a
growth of 12.35%.

e Gross Operating Margin has grown from 193.91Cr.in 2013-14 to 3221.16 Cr. in 2014-15, recording a
growth of 14.1%.

e Profit before tax is ¥37.53 Cr. in 2014-15 compared to ¥36.21Cr.in 2013-14, recording a growth of 3.6%.
e Profit after Tax is ¥31.55 Cr. in 2014-15 compared to ¥25.71 Cr. in 2013-14, recording a growth of 22.7%.
e Net worth has grown from%399.39 Cr. in 2013-14 to 3426.28 Cr., having a growth of 6.7% in 2014-15.

e Total volume of business handled by the Company has grown from ¥1590 Cr. in 2013-14 to ¥1,678 Cr. in
2014-15.

Your Company is witnessing an exciting phase of growth and is working on a long term plan "Vision 2020" which
will steer the Company towards meeting its strategic objectives. Your Company is on its path to building capabilities
in the identified focus areas and has initiated various steps for augmenting production capacity and product line
apart from diversifying business activities with enhanced stress on market penetration, which will position your
Company among the high performers in the industry.
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3. DIVIDEND

The Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of 0.20 per share of face value of ¥10 each on the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company for the financial year 2014-15(at par with previous year). The total outgo
on account of dividend, inclusive of dividend tax, for 2014-15 is ¥465.87 lakh (previous year ¥452.86), which
represents a pay-out of 15% of the Company's Profit after Tax (PAT). Payment of dividend is subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company proposes to transfer an amount of ¥2,689.31 lakh to the General Reserves.
4. SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up equity share capital as on 31st March, 2015 was ¥193.53 Cr. During the year under review, the
share capital of the Company was altered by splitting the equity shares of face value of ¥1,000/- each into face
value of ¥10/- each in the ratio of 100:1 to provide wide dispersal of shareholding.

In March 2015 the Company received 40 Cr. from Government of India towards equity infusion for which the
allotment of 4,00,00,000 equity shares of ¥10 each ranking pari-passu with existing shares has been made on
14th May 2015. Consequently, the paid up equity share capital of the Company has increased to ¥233.53 Cr.as
on date of this report.

5. RATING OF THE COMPANY vis-a-vis MoU TARGETS

Your Company's performance has been rated as "Excellent" in terms of MoU signed with the Government of
India for the year 2013-14. The Company has been getting Excellent rating consecutively since 2009-10. Based
on the self-assessment, your Company is likely to achieve "Excellent" rating for the year 2014-15 as well. The
self-assessment details based on the Evaluation criteria are summarized below:

Evaluation Criteria Documentary MoU Target
source

a) Sales Turnover, excluding interest and other income
(Operating Turnover)Sales Turnover shall not include

excise duty, custom duty, VAT or any other duty, tax, etc. Annual Report 3 1015.04 Cr
b) Gross Operating Margin Self Certificate
based on
Annual Report % 212.00 Cr
(i) Profitability
b) PBT/Net Worth Annual Report 0.088
(iii) Costs and Output Efficiency
b) Value Added/Employee Cost Self Certificate
based on
Annual Report 3.31

Optional Parameters (Sr.No. (iv) &(v)

(v) Efficiency of Asset Use

a) Average No. Days of Inventory (Inventory Self Certificate
Turnover Ratio) based on
Annual Report 61 days
b) Average Collection Period of Trade Receivables Self Certificate
(Debtors Turnover Ratio) based on
Annual Report 189 days
6. DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company did not accept any deposits within the meaning of the provisions of
Chapter V-Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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7. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions
of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the investments made by Company are given in the
notes to the financial statements.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All the Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm's length basis
and were in ordinary course of business.

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year 2014-15 which
were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required under AS-18 have been made
in Note No.2.10 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Since all related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of business and
were on an arm's length basis, Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company.

9. SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURE

As on March 31, 2015, your Company has three subsidiary companies and one joint venture Company. The
summary of performance of the subsidiary and joint venture companies is provided below:

9.1 HLL Biotech Limited (HBL)

HLL Biotech Limited (HBL), the wholly owned subsidiary company has completed third year of its incorporation
on 12th March 2015. The construction of state-of-the-art Integrated Vaccine Complex (IVC), a project of National
Importance, at Chengalpattu near Chennai, for manufacture and supply of vaccines primarily for the Universal
ImmunisationProgramme (UIP) of Government of India, is in the advanced stage of completion. Engineering
works such as Civil, Electrical, Mechanical, HVAC, Modular, Water Treatment System, DG Works, ETP/STP,
Sub-station & procurement of long lead process engineering equipment etc.are progressing as per the Project
Implementation Schedule.

HBL initiated business operations on 30th January 2015 with the launch of vaccine brands 'PENTAHIL' (for
Pentavalent) and 'HIVAC-B' (for Hepatitis-B) under a loan license agreement.

HBL has successfully completed in-house technology development for Rabies Vaccine. The Rabies Vaccine
developed by the company, at TICEL Biopark was tested for one year Real Time Stability during May 2014 at
NCLAS, Hyderabad and the test confirms the required stability of HBL Rabies vaccine. The two year Real Time
stability is scheduled after May 2015 at Pasteur Institute of India, Coonoor."

HBL has also initiated Lab Scale Development of Hib Vaccine at TICEL Biopark, with the clinical isolates/strains
being sourced from Christian Medical College (CMC), Vellore.

HBL selected BCG-VL, Guindy as technology partner for taking seed and technology for BCG Vaccine. Similarly
technology selection for development & manufacturing of Measles, JE and Pentavalent Vaccine formulation are
in progress.

HBL has set targets for mechanical completion of the IVC Project and start of process validation by February
2016, production of trial batches of Vaccines by September 2016 and commercial production by December
2017.

9.2 Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (GAPL)

During the year under review, the revenue from operations of GAPL has grown by 22.58% as compared with
the previous year. GAPL is a Pharmaceutical formulation manufacturing Company and manufactures drugs in
the range of Allopathic, Ayurveda and Homeopathic systems of medicine. Majority of the formulations are
supplied to the State Government institutions/hospitals. GAPL being the only pharmaceutical formulation
manufacturing company under the Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, Govt. of India, can play a strategic role
in the National health scenario. The Company plans to focus mainly on three areas namely (i) Generic Drugs
(ii) Over the Counter (OTC) drugs and (iii) Contract manufacturing to scale up business to synchronize with the
Corporate Vision 2020 plan of HLL.
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The authorized and paid up share capital of GAPL is ¥25 Cr. and ¥19.02 Cr. respectively as on 31st March 2015.
The shareholding of HLL Lifecare Limited (holding company) in GAPL is 74% and balance 26% is held by EDC
Limited.

9.3 HLL Infra Tech Services Ltd. (HITES)

HITES was incorporated on 3rd April 2014 as a wholly owned subsidiary of HLL Lifecare Limited to carry on the
business of providing services viz., Infrastructure Development, Facilities Management, Procurement Consultancy
and allied services, foreseeing the enormous scope of business in these segments. All ongoing projects were
being managed by HLL during the initial year; accordingly the Company has not generated any revenue during
the period under review. HLL plans to sub-contract the projects to HITES (both ongoing and future projects) with
the consent of the clients concerned. Thus, the Company is expected to generate revenues from the year 2015-
16.

The Central Government has proposals to set up a number of Rural Health services Centers, AIIMS like institutions,
new Medical Colleges, National and Regional Institutes of Nursing & Paramedical Science etc.There are enormous
opportunities for investment in healthcare infrastructure in both urban and rural India. About 1.8 million hospital
beds will be required by the end of year 2025. Physical infrastructure is expected to play a vital role in India's
journey towards higher growth in the coming few years and improvement in social infrastructure (especially
health, sanitation and education) will help the country to move toward inclusive growth. HITES would be primarily
focusing on healthcare infrastructure development and allied fields and hence the aforesaid opportunities are
expected to increase the business prospects of HITES in the coming years.

9.4 LIFESPRING HOSPITALS (P) LIMITED

The business income of LifeSpring Hospitals (P) Ltd (LSH), the 50:50 joint venture between HLL Lifecare and
Acumen Fund, had grown by 22.50% as compared with business income for year 2013-14. LSH has facilitated
delivery of 7618 babies during the year under review.

Presently the JV is running a cluster of 12 hospitals in Hyderabad. Among these, 1 hospital has completed 7
years, 2 have completed 6 years, 3 have completed 5 years and the remaining 6 have completed 4 years of
operation as on 31-03-2015.

In the current year 2014-15, the performance at the Enterprise level has been steadily improving. The Company
recorded a cash profit of ¥52.59 lacs during 2014-15.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries and joint venture
companies in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements.

10. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS)-21 on Consolidated Financial Statements and AS-27 on Financial
Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, the audited consolidated financial statement is provided in the Annual
Report. The Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies, along with related information are available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company, as also at the registered offices of the respective subsidiary
companies and will be available for inspection during working hours.
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11. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls, commensurate with the nature of its
business and the size and complexity of operations. This ensures that all transactions are authorised, recorded
and reported correctly, and assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition. These systems are routinely tested and certified by Statutory as well as Internal Auditors and cover
all units, divisions and key business areas. Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are
reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating
to strengthening of the Company's risk management policies and systems.

12. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the
Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation
of the Company's Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the year in this regard.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has adopted a robust Risk Management Policy approved by the Board of Directors. It establishes
various levels of accountability and overview within the Company, while vesting identified managers with
responsibility for each significant risk. The Company has identified various risks and also has mitigation plans
for each risk identified. The Corporate Audit Service Department facilitates the execution of Risk Management
Practices in the Company, in the areas of risk identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation and reporting.
Your Company has an established Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system that engages with all the business
verticals for risk assessment ensures that the risk mitigation plans are in place and validates its status regularly.
The Audit Committee of the Board oversees the Risk Management process.

14. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would
impact the going concern status of the Company.

15. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the
end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and on the date of this report.

In the matter of Fire accident occurred at our Kakkanad Factory Kochi, Insurance Claim has already been
preferred and the company expects the settlement to be received during the financial year 2015-16.

16. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your
Directors confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and
that no material departures have been made from the same;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profits of the Company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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17. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information regarding particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limit specified under
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable as none of
the employees of the Company has drawn remuneration in excess of the stipulated limit during the year under
review.

18. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act 2013, read
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 the extract of the Annual Return
as at March 31, 2015 in form MGT 9 forms part of this report as Annexure I.

19. AUDITORS
19.1 Statutory Auditors

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has appointed M/s Abraham & Jose, Chartered Accountants,
Second Floor, City Centre, 618/2, M.C. Road, Changanasserry-686101, Kottayam District, Kerala, as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2014-15.

The observations/qualifications made in the Auditors' Report read together with relevant notes thereon are self-
explanatory and hence, do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

19.2 Cost Auditors

M/s Anikhindi& Co, Cost Accountants, Kolhapur and M/s.Jugal K.Puri& Associates, Cost Accountants, New
Gurgaon were appointed as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2014-15 to conduct cost audit of the accounts
maintained by the Company in respect of the various products prescribed under companies (Cost Records &
Audit) Rules, 2014. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members are requested to consider the ratification of the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors.

19.3 Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s.BVR &
ASSOCIATES, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for
the year ended 31st March, 2015. The Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR3 is annexed as Annexure .

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.
20. PROCUREMENT OF GOODS FROM MSMEs

During the year 2014-15, the Company has procured goods of value of ¥3,805.01 lakhs from Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises (MSMES) out of the total procurement of ¥41,689.00 lakhs. The Company has also conducted
3 Vendor Development Programmes for MSMEs including one vendor development programme exclusively for
SCI/ST entrepreneurs.

21. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNICAL ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/OUTGO

The particulars regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo, as prescribed under sub-section 3(m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are given as Annexure-A, which forms part of this report.

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILTY

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Company has established Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee. Statutory disclosures with respect to the CSR Committee and Annual Report on CSR activities of the
Company pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 for the financial year 2014-15
forms part of this Report as Annexure B.
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23. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of good corporate governance and has taken
adequate steps to adhere to all stipulations laid down in DPE O.M.N0.18(8)/2005-GM dated 14-05-2010 issued
by Department of Public enterprises. Report on Corporate Governance along with the Certificate of the Statutory
Auditors M/s.Abraham& Jose, Chartered Accountants confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance form part of this report as Annexure Il

24. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report is presented in a separate section forming part of this report.
25. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the following changes took place in the Directorship of the Company:

25.1 Appointment

Dr. Babu Thomas was appointed as Director (Marketing) with effect from 08/10/2014.

Smt. Dharitri Panda, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India was appointed
as Part-time Official Director with effect from 17/12/2014.

Smt. Vijaya Srivastava IAS, Additional Secretary & Financial Advisor (AS&FA), Ministry of Health & Family
Welfare, Government of India was appointed as Part-time Official Director with effect from 19/02/2015.

25.2 Cessation

Shri. Gautam Guha, former Additional Secretary & Financial Advisor, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare,
Government of India ceased to be Director with effect from 19/02/2015.

Shri N.B. Dhal, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India ceased to be Director
with effect from 17/12/2014.

The Board of Directors placed on record their deep appreciation of the valuable services rendered by the
outgoing Directors during their tenure as Directors on the Board of the Company.

25.3 Woman Director

In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company shall have at least one
Woman Director on the Board. Your Company has Dr Aarti Vij as Independent Director on the Board of the
Company since December 3, 2010.

25.4 Committees of the Board

Your Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate governance
practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes.
The Company has following Committees of the Board:

e Audit Committee

e Nomination and Remuneration Committee

e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

e Strategy Formulation & Investment Committee

The details with respect to the compositions, powers, roles, terms of reference, etc. of relevant committees are
given in detail in the Report on Corporate Governance of the Company which forms part of this Annual Report.

25.5 Declaration from Independent Directors

The Board has received declarations from the Independent Directors as per the requirement of Section 149(7)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is satisfied that the Independent Directors meet the criteria of
independence as mentioned in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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25.6 Board Meetings held during the year

During the year, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The details of the meetings are furnished
in the Corporate Governance Report which forms a part of this Report.

26. POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.
The Policy aims to provide protection to employees from sexual harassment at the workplace and redress
complaints of sexual harassment and to address matters connected or incidental thereto, with the objective of
providing a safe working environment, where employees feel secure. The Company has also constituted an
Internal Complaints Committee, known as the Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee, to inquire into
complaints of sexual harassment and recommend appropriate action. The Company has not received any
complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2014-15.

27. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

As part of Business Continuity plan HLL has implemented Cloud based Disaster Recovery Facility for its SAP
applications. HLL has implemented SAP solution in its subsidiary company Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals
Ltd. also.

28. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Corporate R&D Centre (CRDC) of your Company is dedicated to carrying out multi-disciplinary research and
development aimed at creating scientific knowledge for new technology development and value addition of
existing technologies in the healthcare field. CRDC is committed to achieving the vision through generation of
knowledge base for novel technologies in healthcare field, value added R&D services that meet/exceed customer
expectation and human resource development through quality improvement programmes along with safe and
healthy work environment.

The Scientific Advisory Committee constituted by the Company by drawing renowned scientists from diverse
field's relevant to HLL's Research activities is providing guidance to the functioning of CRDC.

The R&D projects of CRDC have bagged funding as mentioned below.
e Funding for development of Green Condoms by Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation
e Funding by HRA Pharma PC, UK for development of Novel IUS

e Indo-Finland (DBT TEKES) funding for developing innovative HLL ATH (Any Time Health) Vending
Machines.

Your Company has incurred expenditure on Research& Development during year 2014-15 as mentioned below:
Capital expenditure - 3357.76 lakh

Recurring expenditure - 3691.86 lakh

29. TECHNOLOGY TIE-UPS

Your Company has been giving thrust to technology acquisition and/or development in the recent past. The
major technology tie-ups forged by the Company in year 2014-15 includes the following:

e Tied-up with SreeChitra Thirunal Institute for Medical Science &Technology, Thiruvananthapuram for
co-development of technology for manufacture of hormone releasing IUD (Brand-EMILY).

e Executed Research & Development Agreement with National Institute of Immunology,(NII) Delhi for joint
development of herbal based microbicides.

e Signed MoU with National Institute for Interdisciplinary Science& Technology, (IIST), Thiruvananthapuram
to conduct collaborative research on the areas of common interest;

e Signed MOU with Centre for Bio-Polymer Science &Technology (CBPST),Kochi to conduct collaborative
research works in the field of polymer science & technology.

e Signed Development Agreement with HRA Pharma, Paris & Population Council, USA for Unipristal
based IUS.
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30. QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

During the year, the Company's manufacturing units have obtained/renewed the following new certifications:
e |SO 50001:2011 certification by HLL Peroorkada Factory, Thiruvananthapuram.
e |SO 9001:2008 certification by HLL Irapuram Factory, Kochi
e SO 13485:2003 certification by HLL Irapuram Factory, Kochi.

31. HUMAN RESOURCES

31.1 Human Resources Development

Your company gives high priority for development of human resources employed by them. During the year
under review, the Company had organized various training programmes involving 1513 man days for executives
and 2146 man days for workmen.

31.2 Industrial Relations

The year 2014-15 witnessed harmonious industrial relations in the company as in the previous years; no
mandays were lost on account of labour issues.

31.3 Reservation for SC/ST/OBC and physically challenged

The company continues to follow the presidential directives in respect of reservation to SC/ST/OBC Communities
and efforts are taken to fulfill the directives in Recruitment and Promotion. Serious and focused effort was also
taken for Special Recruitment Drives.

The representation of SC/ST/OBC/Physically Challenged categories in the total employee strength as on
01.04.2015 is given below:

Representation of : SC 288
ST 73
OBC 440
Physically challenged 37
Other categories 999
Total strength of employees 1837

31.4 .Status of implementation of posts reserved for persons with disabilities in HLL Lifecare Limited as
on 31.03.2015

No. of Post reserved for PwDs No. of Post currently held by PwDs
Total Blindness Hearing Locomotor Blindness Hearing Locomotor
number or low impaired disability or or low impaired disabilty
of posts vision cerebral vision or cerebral
identified palsy palsy
1289 13 13 13 2 9 25
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32. IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE POLICY

Your Company is committed to the implementation of Official Language Policy of the Government of India.
Several programmes such as Hindi Workshops, Awareness programmes and refresher training Programmes
on Unicode, section meetings and forum meetings were organised on regular basis to encourage employees
to do their Official work in Hindi. 248 employees were trained in Hindi workshops during the year under review.

Incentive Scheme for doing work in Hindi is in place to popularise the use of Hindi. Your Company also
instituted Rolling shield among Units, Leading section awards and Late Sankardayal Singh Memorial Award
by considering the overall contribution to Official Language implementation.

The Company and its Units are bringing out various publications for popularizing Hindi as the Official Language.
The Company has published two issues of the house Magazine "Samanvaya" apart from publishing
bi-monthly Newsletter "Corporate News" in Hindi and a monthly bilingual Photo Newsletter ‘'Moments'. The
publications of the Units are Anmol, Pragathi, Dharpan and Mathrujyothi.

During the year your Company organized the All India Official Language Conference of the Ministry of Health
and Family Welfare, New Delhi conducted for its attached and subordinate offices in India.

The implementation of Official Language Policy of your Company was inspected by the officers of Health and
Family Welfare and Ministry of Home Affairs.

Your Company bagged TOLIC awards (Overall Championship) among Central Government offices and
Undertakings for the excellent performance of Official Language Policy and first prize for its Hindi Magazine
'‘Samanvaya'.

Official Language Inspections were conducted in 5 units and 2 subsidiary companies GAPL and HBL to
assess the position of Official Language implementation. A report on OL policy is published in the Website
and E-Learning knowledge Centre of the Company.

33. CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

Your Company has adopted a number of communication interventions to present itself as an organisation
based on values and as a provider of quality healthcare products and services at affordable costs, contributing
to nation building. In order to facilitate dissemination of information and interaction with all stakeholders regarding
announcements, updates, achievements, growth, recent developments on operational and financial front, besides
updates on website and social media, regular press communiqué and press meetings have also been arranged
by your Company and regular interaction of the management with employees have also been arranged.

Internal communications play a key role in enabling employees across the Company in understanding and
embracing the Company's mission, goals and strategies. Towards this objective, your Company has continuously
deployed communication tools such as monthly newsletters, house journals and C&MD's communiqué to apprise
the employees of the developments, achievements & events, viewpoints of the management and also provide
a platform to them to participate and take pride in being associated with HLL. Open house sessions have also
been regularly organised where C&MD and Directors of your Company interact with all the employees. This
sharing of information contributes towards a sense of belonging and mutual trust.
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34. HLL ACADEMY

HLL Academy has signed a MoU with IL&FS to launch Skill development courses in Collaboration with them.
Three courses would be started in year 2015-16. The major activities of the Academy during the year under
review include the following:

e Conducted Professional Diploma in Public procurement and two certificate programmes in association
with World Bank during the year.

e Organized 2nd International conference on "Procurement Management in Healthcare Sector" in October
2014.

e Commenced second batch of Diploma & Post Graduate Diploma courses in "Clinical Engineering &
Management during the year.

Your Company has initiated steps to separate the division HLL Academy from the Company and register it as a
separate entity under The Travancore Cochin Literary, Scientific and Charitable Societies Registration Act, 1955
during 2015-16.

35. VIGILANCE
Vigilance Department strives to ensure probity & integrity at all levels in the company by:
e Providing guidance, supervision and relevant assistance to its officials in various units/offices spread
across the country;
e Dissemination of preventive vigilance advices and system improvement directives to all its stakeholders;

e Conducting periodic vigilance inspections, investigations/enquires, system studies etc. to ensure
adherence to the existing rules and regulations of the company; and

e Keeping the Competent Authority appraised of Vigilance findings from time to time, to ensure appropriate
corrective actions;

Vigilance Awareness Week was observed from 27.10.2014 to 01.11.2014. During this occasion, Dy.
Superintendent of Police, Vigilance and Anti-Corruption Bureau, Trivandrum delivered an educational lecture to
officials and staff, and, an essay competition was also conducted across the company on the subject of vigilance
and its significance.

36. RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company has implemented Right to Information (RTI) Act, 2005, which enhances the common citizen by
providing access to information with a view to enlighten them on the accountability and transparency practised
in the company. The Company has always endeavoured to ensure that various enabling provisions of the RTI
Act, 2005 are implemented in letter and spirit.

The number of RTI applications received and disposed off during year 2014-15 is given below:

No.of RTI applications pending as on 1st April 2014 5
No.of RTI applications received during year 2014-15 166
No.of RTI applications disposed off during year 2014-15 166
No.of RTI applications pending as on 31st March 2015 5

Apart from RTI applications, the Company also received 22 appeals against the decision of CPIO, which too
were duly attended to and appropriately disposed off by the First Appellate Authority.

37. AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
During the year under review, your Company received the following awards and recognitions:
e HLL was rated 'Excellent’ for the consecutive fifth year in MOU evaluation.

e Dr. M. Ayyappan, Chairman & MD bagged the Business Icon of the Year Award given by NIB.
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e 4th National Award for Technology Innovation under "Polymers in Public Health care" category was
awarded to HLL Corporate Research & Development Centre for the project "Development of coated
Cu-T".

e Company's quarterly magazine "HLL-FAMILY" won best in-house magazine award instituted by Kerala
Management Association

e HLL Hindi Magazine "Samanwaya" won award for best magazine instituted by TOLIC.

e HLL's creative Strategy for the NACO Social Marketing Campaign won Direct Marketing Association of
India Award 2014.

38. APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to make a special mention of the valuable guidance, support and co-operation your
Company has been receiving from the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare and other Ministries of Government
of India and look forward to their continued support in all future endeavours.

The Directors express their sincere thanks to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, the Principal Director
of Commercial Audit & Ex-officio Member of Audit Board, Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors, Secretarial Auditors
and Internal Auditors for the co-operation and support extended by them.

The Directors take this opportunity to thank the Company's bankers, regulatory authorities, customers, vendors,
consultants, technology licensors, contractors and other business associates and trading partners for their
continued support and confidence reposed in the Company.

Your Directors also place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work, dedication
and commitment. The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the Company to remain
as industry leaders.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. M. AYYAPPAN

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00117374

Thiruvananthapuram

10" July 2015
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars

Power & Fuel

Electricity

Purchased (Units) KWH

Amount (%)

Rate /Unit %)

Own generation

Units generated (KWH)

HSD Oil consumption (Ltr)

Units generated/ Ltr (KWHY/Ltr)

Cost /Unit (%)

Through Steam Turbine Generator
Coal

LNG

Quantity (Metric Tonne)

Amount (%)

Rate /Unit %)

Furnace Oil

Quantity (Ltr.)

Amount (%)

Rate /Unit %)

Consumption per unit of production
Condoms

Unit (M. Pcs) — Production (Moulded)
Electricity (KWH) per M. Pcs (Standard 8418)
Furnace Oil (KL) per M. Pcs (Standard 6.19)
Coal

LNG (MT) per M.Pcs

Copper —T

Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs)
Electricity per M. Pcs (KWH)
Mala-D/N, Saheli, Novex & Preventol
Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs)
Mala-D/N (M. Cycles)

Saheli, Novex & Preventol

FORM A

Electricity consumed per million cycles of Mala-D/N

Electricity consumed per million cycles of
Saheli, Novex & Preventol
Electricity consumed (both products)-KWH

2013-14

1,71,98,500.00
9,49,96,496.00
5.52

6,05,302.00
2,00,044.00
3.03

16.36

NA

NA

NA
NA
NA

52,15,343
24,56,04,790.00
47.09

1,716.85
4,976.22
2.87

NA

NA

5.12
78,093.00

32.25
28.49
27,229.50

282.70
10,12,390.75
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ANNEXURE - A

Information as per Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)
Rules 2014 forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31 March 2015.

(See Rule 2)
2014-15

1,83,23,657.00

10,68,13,410.00

5.83

5,71,200.00
1,82,560.00
SRS

16.20

NA

NA

878.27
5,43,89,996.39
61,928.56

44,91,455

15,91,99,626.00

35.45

1,819.00
5,393.81
2.64

NA

2.55

4.87
61,622.00

41.25
38.81
16,838.00

472.00
8,99,950.00
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

Blood Bags

Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs) 11.05 12.52
Electricity per bag (KWH) 0.2 0.196
Sutures

Total Quantity Produced ( Lacs Dozen) 1.42 1.75
Electricity per dozen (KWH) .81 5.04
Bulk Drug —Centchroman

Unit (Kg) produced 752.40 1,354.69
Electricity consumed (KWH) 4,61,064.00 6,99,676.00
Furnace Oil consumed (Lr.) 1,13,413 1,35,934.50
Electricity per Kg (KWH) 612.79 516.48
Furnace Oil per Kg (KL) 150.74 100..34
Pregnancy Test Kits

Total Quantity Produced (M. Kit) 17.75 13.67
Electricity per Million Kit (KWH) 4,418.36 6,042.46
HSD Oil per Million Kit (LTR) 2,465.85 4,897.46
Female Condoms

Total Quantity Produced (Pcs) 1,00,000 11,00,000
Electricity per Pc (KWH) 0.02 0.02
Sanitary Napkins

Production (M.Pcs) 97.6 126.44
Electricity consumed (KWH) 5,24,639 7,13,846
Electricity consumed per M.Pcs 5,338.03 5,565.92

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Energy conservation measures executed at the Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram are
mentioned below:

Installed and commissioned Grid Interactive type 25kwp solar power plant. The plant is generating 40
Mega units per year. Energy generated using solar power plant is used for lighting purposes.

Successfully installed and commissioned Regasified LNG plant, a green initiative for using clean and
environmental friendly fuel for boiler operation instead of Furnace oil. The existing 10 ton capacity
Shellmaxboiler was modified with a dual fuel burner for operating with RSLNG and FO.

Condensate recovery system was successfully modified in six moulding machines (M1, M2, M3, M4,
MA, & MB machines) with an Investment of ¥2 lakh. This modification helps to save energy to the
tune of Z8 lakh per Annum

Forty Turbo Ventilators were successfully installed in Packing section. This helped in reducing the
heat stress in Primary packing & Secondary packing areas. Since the turbo ventilators are wind driven,
no power is required for its operation Investment is ¥2.83 lakh.

Successfully installed energy efficient direct drives in Vulcanizing barrels of Okamoto machines
Provided VFD for feed water pump of Shellmax boiler.

Energy conservation measures implemented by HLL Kanagala factory, Belgaum are mentioned
below:

Implementation of the Electrical Heating in place of Steam Heating in Vulcanizing Section.

Implementation of the Variable Frequency Drive for the Dust Collector System of Condom Plant for 30
kW Motor.
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Implementation of the Variable Frequency Drive for the Centralized Blower of New Machine of Sanitary
Napkin Plant for 18.5 kW Motor.

Implementation of the Variable Frequency Drive for the 90 deg rotation application of New Machine of
Sanitary Napkin Plant for 18.5 kW Motor.

Implementation of the Variable Frequency Drive for the Blower of Waste Collection of New Machine
of Sanitary Napkin Plant for 4 kW Motor.

Replacement of discharge luminaries with LED based luminaries for energy saving (50 nos).

Energy conservation measures taken at Akkulam factory, Thiruvananthapuram are mentioned
below:

Installed 1 no.of 350 TR Twin Cell Type Energy Efficient Cooling Tower. Investment ¥7.50 lakh, Annual
Savings 32.22 lakh.

Replaced 20 nos. of HPSV/MV Lamps with 24/45 W LED Lamps in the campus. Investment ¥1.70
lakh, Annual Savings 0.72 lakh.

Installed & Commissioned Steam Condensate Recovery System. Investment ¥4.00 lakh, Annual
Savings ¥2.32 lakh.

Installed & Commissioned Energy Efficient VFD Driven 550 CFM Air Compressor with Advanced Low
PPM Moisture Refrigerant Type Air Dryer & 3 M?® Capacity Air Receiver. Investment 343.85 lakh,
Annual Savings- ¥8.25 lakh.

Replaced Pumps of DM Water Plant & Cooling Tower with new Energy Efficient ones. Investment
¥5.00 lakh, Annual Savings %1.77 lakh.

Replaced 50 nos. of T12 (40 Watts) Fluorescent Lamps with 18 Watts LED Tube Light in the production
areas. Investment- %0.75 lakh, Annual Savings 30.37 lakh.

Energy conservation measures taken at Kakkanad factory, Cochin are mentioned below.

Installed 12kWp solar power plant producing 48kWH of electricity everyday.
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FORM B
(See Rule 2)

[B] TECHNOLOGY ABSORBTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION

B.1. Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram (AFT)

vi.

Vii.

viii.

Developed, Installed and Commissioned new Semi-Automatic High Speed Labeling Machine in Blood
Bag Production. Investment-%¥5.00 lakh, Annual Savings-31.77 lakh.

Designed, Installed & Commissioned Servo System with Man Machine Interface (MMI) in Semi-
automatic HF Welding Machine (HFW.No.2) in place of existing Pneumatic Power Slide. Investment-
%3.50 lakh.

Developed of Erysep Blood Bag system for M/s.Lmb.Technologie, Germany. System used for the
separation of blood components (RBC & Plasma) from whole blood by filtration method, instead of
centrifugation method for component separation & hence it can be used for village clinics, mobile
blood banks, military services and disaster management, but also as a complementary separation
facility for well-equipped blood banks in larger cities for emergencies &/or night shifts.

Developed of plasma pooling bags for M/s LmbTechnologie, Germany.

Plasma pooling bag is used for the pooling of 6 individual bags (contain plasma) into one 1500 ml
bag. This system consists of 2 numbers of 1500 ml empty bag and six numbers of tubing set to
connect six individual bag (contain plasma).

Developed of Laboratory side Leuko-depletion filter system for replacing imported system.

Developed of Quintuple bags (Top and bottom blood bag with inline RBC filter) for Automatic Component
Extractor machines.

Developed of soft Hernia mesh (Light weight knitted non absorbable polypropylene mesh) & Hernia
kit.

Introduced of new Polyamide based primary packing material for blood bags which remarkably
improved productivity and quality.

Benefits of Technology absorption, adoption and innovation:

a.

(€]
C.1.

Enhanced water vapour permeability resulted in fast drying and achieved 100% drying and reduced
drying cycle time leading to higher productivity.

Higher tensile strength & toughness minimize pinhole formation and seal breakage and resulted in
drastic reduction in cover faults.

Reduced oxygen permeability retards fungus growth.

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum (KFB)

Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 10 kW Solar Power Plant completed.

Supply, Installation and Commissioning of 20 nos. of LED based of Solar Street Lights completed.
Developed system for reusing core cutter waste of sanitary napkin to minimize wastage.
Implemented Direct Drive for Vulcanizing dehydrator Unit

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D) ACTIVITIES

Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram (AFT)

Developed of New Medical grade High molecular weight PVC formulation (PVC resin k value 80) for Blood

bags.
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Benefits/Savings:

(D]

Superior tensile strength for withstanding high centrifugal force.

Reduction in rejection of blood bags during welding in fully automatic 4 UP High frequency welding
machine.

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum (KFB)
Developed of Levonorgestrel tablets B.P.1.5 mg., for WHO dossier submission.

Bio-batches of Levonorgestrel tablets B.P.1.5 mg (B.N0o.LN03/14001, LN03/14002 & LN03/14003) -
R&D pilot batch for WHO dossier submission.

Preparation of Standard Testing Procedure for API and excipients of Unipill lab as per BP-2014 for
WHO analysis.

R&D has developed material-specific vendors as part of WHO pre-qualification.

Foreign exchange earnings & outgo

Particulars (2014-15) (2013-14)
Current year ¥ in lakh Previous year ¥ in lakh

Earnings 14,658.01 12,874.23

Outgo 14,553.01 10,072.19
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ANNEXURE- B
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY&SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES OF THE COMPANY

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) & Sustainability is an integral part of the Company’s ethos and policy
and the Company has been pursuing this on a sustained basis. The Company has framed and adopted a
Policy on CSR & Sustainability to align its philosophy to initiate measures and pursue socially useful programmes
with the objectives and activities of CSR envisaged and incorporated in the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made there under and the policy directions issued by the Government from time to time. The Policy on
CSR & Sustainability formulated in 2013 was subsequently revised to align with the newly introduced provisions
for Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, in
accordance with DPE OM dated 21.10.2014. During the year, the Company had spent ¥132.05 lakh against an
allocated budget of ¥116.93 lakh towards CSR and Sustainable Development.HLL has incurred an expenditure
of ¥132.05 lakh that is equivalent to 4.2% of PAT (33155.14 lakh) for CSR and SD activities. Specific activities
were undertaken in accordance with the MoU entered into with the Government.

Annual report on CSR activities of the company for the year 2014-15

1. Brief outline of the Company’s Company continued to undertake CSR works during
the CSR Policy, projects and programs year under review CSR Policy:
proposed to be undertaken and
a reference to the web-link to CSR Policy
of Company'’s profits for social projects.

a) Establishing a guideline for compliance with the
provisions of Regulations to dedicate a percentage
of company's profits for social projects.

b) Ensuring the implementation of CSR initiatives in
letter and spirit through appropriate procedures and
reporting.

c) Creating opportunities for employees to participate
in socially responsible initiatives.

d) Demonstrate commitment to the common good
through responsible business practices and good
governance.

e) Engender a sense of empathy and equity among
employees of HLL to motivate them to give back to
the society.

2 Composition of CSR Committee. Dr Aarti Vij, Chairperson
Shri. K.Mohandas, Member
Shri R.P.Khandelwal, Member
Dr K.R.S.Krishnan, Member
Dr. Babu Thomas, Member

3 Average Net Profit of the Company for % lakh
last three Financial year. 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 Average Net
Profit 3007.47 2570.77 3155.14 2911.13

4 Proposed CSR Expenditure (2% of the 358.22 lakh
amount as in item 3 above)

5 Details of the CSR spent during the Amount budgeted for the year 2014-15:3116.93 lakh
Financial Year Total amount spent upto 31.03.2015: ¥132.05 lakh

Amount, unspent, if any: NIL
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

A. CSR INITIATIVES:
A (i) General Health

Under the CSR initiative, the Company has adopted 3 villages - Karakulam in Thiruvananthapuram, Kanagala
in Belgaum during 2012-13 and a tribal village from Wayanad district viz. Puzhuthana during 2013-14. Baseline
surveys were conducted in these villages to identify their needs and priorities specific action plans were prepared
to address their felt needs and action plans were prepared for implementation over a period of 3 years. Area
specific approaches were taken for each village, but the general focus is on health, sanitation and educational
sectors. Specific objectives of the programme are:

® To strengthen public health and sanitation in the village

e To improve adolescent health

® To strengthen educational institutions and

e To facilitate early detection and management of chronic illnesses
Based on these, several programmes were planned and implemented in year 2014-15, as detailed below:
A (ii) Interventions in the Health sector

® Campaigns on vector borne diseases, sanitation and waste management

e Early detection of breast and cervical cancer

® General medical camps for the elderly and school children

® Campaign for early detection of diabetics through screening of blood sugar
A (iii) Interventions for Adolescent Health

® Training on menstrual hygiene and supply of sanitary napkin

o Life skill education programmes.
A (iv) Interventions in the Education sector

® Support for improving the quality of educational institutions

e Infrastructure development

® Counselling services

® COrientation for Teachers & Parents
A (v) Developing sustainable development models

® Providing Rain water harvesting units to selected institutions

® Methods for solid liquid waste management and vector born diseases

For the implementation of the various programs, HLL creates a common platform for action involving all
stakeholders viz; Gramapanchayats, Govt. and aided Schools, Primary Health Centre, ICDS and other line
departments. Support from Specialist institutions like the Regional Cancer Centre, District Medical Office,
National Health Mission, and Units of National Service Scheme in nearby colleges, etc are also mobilized,
based on the requirements. Appropriate IEC materials/media are used to supplement the activities.

A (vi) HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society

As reported last year, your Company formed HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society with the Objective of sponsoring
students belonging to the BPL category to pursue professional studies and also to support the health care of
retired employees. Accordingly two schemes were launched by the society; one for sponsoring students and
the other for giving financial support to the retired employees of the company for availing treatment for critical
illness.

During year 2014-15, thirty (30) students were selected from Trivandrum District and Kanagala District, being
the two districts where the two major manufacturing units of the company are located and were distributed
scholarship as detailed below.
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No. of Amount per
Course students student (%)
MBBS 5 30,000
Engineering 5 20,000
B.Pharm 5 20,000
Diploma 5 10,000
Nursing 5 10,000
ITI 5 5,000

The fund of the Society is pooled through the monthly individual contribution from all the employees and lump
sum annual contribution of 320 lakh by the company from the CSR fund.

A (vii) My City Project — Kowdiar ward, Thiruvananthapuram

Solid waste management has become one of the global challenges of today in maintaining a healthy environment.
In this context HLL Lifecare Ltd. formulated ‘My City Project’ in association with Foundation for Restoration of
National Values (FRNV). The pilot project is implemented in the Kowdiar ward of Trivandrum Corporation in
association with Govt. of Kerala, Thiruvananthapuram Municipal Corporation, Suchitwa Mission, Residents
Associations in the area and other like-minded organizations.

Under the project an eco-friendly and cost effective solid waste management system is implemented jointly by
Government, Corporation, NGOs and the residents of the ward with focus on processing waste at source and
collection of plastic and centralized processing . As part of the project, beautification of the project area by
ensuring cleanliness setting up of mechanisms for management of bio-degradable and plastic waste is also
undertaken.The total budget and utilization of the funds for CSR is as under.

B.SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

Report on Sustainable development for 2014-15

Budget Actual
Sl Name of SD Activity Sanctioned Spent in
Unit  No. with Details (in lacs) 2014-15 Status/Impact
®in lacs)
HLL-KFC 1  Installation of 12 kWP Project completed
solar power plant in on 15/01/2015. Average daily
HLL-KFC 12.00 9.6 energy production from the
plant= 50 kWh
HLL-KFC 2 Installation of 20 kWP Project completed on
solar power plant in 29/12/2014. Average daily
HLL-KFC 20.00 16.46 energy production from the
plant= 90 kWh
HLL-AFT 3  Replacement of HPSV/SV
lamps in the campus with 3.00 1.7 Completed

LED Lamps

HLL-AFT 4 Installation and
commissioning of Flash 4.00 3.30 Completed
Champer for Recovery
condensate steam
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Report on Sustainable development for 2014-15 (Contd....)

Unit Sl Name of SD Activity Budget Actual Status/Impact
No with Details Sanctioned Spent in
®in lacs) 2014-15
®in lacs)
HLL-AFT 5  Replacement of 45 W Tube
Lights with LED 18 W LED 1.00 0.75 Completed
Lamps

HLL-AFT 6 Installation and
Commissioning of
2x24 W LED Lamps, 1.00 0.80 Completed
2x150 Wp Solar Panel Street
Light in the Campus

HLL-AFT 7  Replaced Pumps of DM
Water Plant & Cooling Tower
with New Energy Efficient 5.00 4.01 Completed
ones (GRUNDFOS Make)

HLL-AFT 8 Installation &
Commissioning 1 No of

350 TR Twin Cell Type 7.5 7.5 Completed
Energy Efficient Cooling
Tower
HLL-KFB 9 Installation of 10 KW Completed/Annual Saving
Solar Power Plant 10.00 9.71 ¥130000/- and no emission
HLL-KFB 10 Installation of 20 Nos. of Completed/Annual Saving
Solar based LED 6.00 5.1 %27000/- and no emission
street lights
HLL-PFT 11 Installation of 25KWp Completed the project in
solar power grid 40.00 38.00 December 2014 & generating
100units/day.
HLL-PFT 12 Installation of Refilling & Project completed.
Storage of LNG plant 400.00 359.00 Environmental friendly &
clean fuel

C. HINDUSTAN LATEX FAMILY PLANNING PROMOTION TRUST (HLFPPT), a not-for-profit professional
health service organization set up by HLL Lifecare Ltd, carried out projects under the following strategic areas:
i.  Social Marketing and Franchising
ii. Prevention, Care and Support for HIV and Technical Assistance to NRHM
iii. Knowledge Management
iv. Engaging PSUs and Private Corporate on Corporate Social Responsibility Project

HLFPPT has been rendering support in implementation of Reproductive and Child Health, HIV and AIDS
Prevention, Care and Support Programmes in partnership with the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare,
Government of India, several State Governments and International Development Agencies.

The achievements during the year are summarized below:
1. Social Marketing

In 2014-15, National AIDS Control Organization (NACO) awarded the Targeted Condom Social Marketing
Programme to HLFPPT for implementation in six States namely Andhra Pradesh, Bihar, Delhi, Madhya Pradesh,
Uttar Pradesh &Uttrakhand. The sales achieved in these States are:244.69 million pieces of condoms in UP &
Uttrakhand, 60.12 million pieces of condoms in Bihar, 64 million pieces of condoms in MP, 23 million pieces of
condoms in Delhi and 34 million pieces of condoms in AP.

During fiscal year 2014- 2015, HLFPPT could provide quality Family Planning (FP) services at a standardized
price in the States of Bihar &Odisha.
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2. Social Franchising:

i. Uttar Pradesh: The MerryGold Health network (MGHN) model is a Social Franchising model
established across 38 districts of Uttar Pradesh to provide high quality affordable MCH and FP
services.

In 2014-15 under MGHN in Uttar Pradesh, 80 MerryGold Hospitals, 180 MerrySilver Clinics were
operational in 38 districts with 9,516 MerryTarang members at remote villages/slum locations to
provide information, counselling and referral services.

ii. Rajasthan: Under MerryGold, the project on Access to Maternal Health Products and Services is
operational in 19 districts of Rajasthan. During the year, MGHN grew to include 40 Franchisees, out
of which 21 are Urban and 19 are Rural. After scrutiny, we have selected 1,286 Merry Tarang members.

iii. Andhra Pradesh: Rolled out in 2014-15, 11 Merrygold Hospitals are operational in 8 districts with
368 community level volunteer or MerryTarang partners at remote village locations to provide
information, counselling and referral services. In 2014-15, total services provided to the network
include: 677 Outpatient Services for ANC, 91 Deliveries, and 5 Hysterectomy Services.

3. HIV Programming and Technical Support in Sexual and Reproductive Health (2014-15)

Technical Support Group (TSG) for Condom Promotion essentially functions with an intent to ensure continuous
increase in the demand for socially marketed condoms, strengthen logistics, availability & accessibility; and
reduce wastage of free condoms by working closely with NACO.

4. Knowledge Management

HLFPPT has established knowledge management unit with the objective of documenting learnings in social
marketing, various projects in HIV/AIDS and RCH for conducting research related to reproductive health and
undertaking capacity building under NACP-1V, NRHM and FP 2020.

5. Corporate Social Responsibility

HLFPPT’'s CSR vertical is responsible for creating a sustainable source of funding for HLFPPT’s projects and
programs and position the organization as a preferred partner to corporate for end-to-end CSR solutions.
Going forward in 2014-2015, CSR partnerships with the corporate sector increased by adding new programs.

The new corporate are Suzlon Energy, Jindal Steel & Power Limited, DLF, Essar Steel and Essar Oil & Gas.

® HLFPPT has established networking for CSR business development with the following industry bodies
and their state counterparts:

® ClIlI (Delhi, Chennai, Lucknow and Raipur)
® FICCI (Delhi)

® ASSOCHAM (Delhi)

e PHDCII (Delhi)

e HLFPPT has active liaisoning with national and international organizations which have core focus on
CSR. These include:

® United Nations Global Compact
e |ICA
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IIl. REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

Your Company is renowned for exemplary governance standards since inception and continues to devote
its emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity. Company is committed to adhere to the ethical
values and thereby ensures fairness to all stakeholders including customers, employees, investors and
society at large. The basic objective of Corporate Governance policies adopted by the Company is to attain
the highest levels of transparency, accountability and integrity. This objective extends not merely to complying
with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the Department
of Public Enterprises, but also to go beyond them by putting in place procedures and systems, which are in
accordance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. The Company has been methodically following
the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises and consistently scoring
‘Excellent’ grading.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has made the majority of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 effective
from 1%April, 2014. The new Act is a positive step towards strengthening corporate governance regime in the
country. Your Company is already in substantial compliance with most of the governance requirements provided
under the new law.

The Company’s Corporate Governance policies and practices focus on the following principles:

To recognize the respective roles & responsibilities of the Board and management.
To achieve the highest degree of transparency by maintaining a high degree of disclosure levels.
To ensure and maintain high ethical standards in its functioning.

To ensure a sound system of risk management and internal controls.

ARl S

To ensure that employees of the Company subscribe to the corporate values and apply them to their
conduct.

6.  To ensure that the decision making process is fair and transparent.

7.  To ensure that the Company follows globally recognized corporate governance practices.
A brief description of the corporate governance practices followed in your Company is given below.
1. Composition of Board of Directors:

The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience and
enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. Your
Company, being a Government Undertaking, the appointment/nomination of all the Directors is done by the
President of India, through the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare. The Board has an appropriate mix of
executive and non-executive Directors. The Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that the number
of Directors shall not be less than three (3) and not more than ten (10).

The present strength of Board of Directors of the Company is Nine(9) comprising
- two (2) official Directors representing the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India
- three (3) Independent Directors and

- four (4) Functional Directors namely Chairman & Managing Director, Director (Finance), Director
(Technical &Operation) and Director (Marketing).

Among the nine (9) directors there are three (3) women directors comprising two Govt. Nominee Directors and
one Independent Director on the Board. The composition of the Board is in line with the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India.
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The Composition of the Board of Directors as on 1% June, 2015 is as follows:

No.of membership

Sl. No.of Other /Chairmanship
No.  Name of the Director Category of Director Directorship  of Board Committee
held in other companies
1 Dr. M. Ayyappan Chairman and
Managing Director 5 Nil
2 Smt. Vijaya Srivastava Government Nominee
Director 2 Nil
S Smt. Dharitri Panda Government Nominee
Director Nil Nil
4 Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor Non Official Part time
Director 5 5
5 Dr. Aarti Vij Non Official Part time
Director 2 Nil
6 Shri. K. Mohandas Non Official Part time
Director 5 3
7 Shri. R.P.Khandelwal Director (Finance) 4 3
8 Dr. K.R.S Krishnan Director (Technical &
Operations) Nil Nil
9 Dr. BabuThomas Director (Marketing) 2 2

The Board of Directors plays a primary role in ensuring good governance, smooth functioning of the Company.
The Board’s role, functions, responsibility and accountability are clearly defined.The Board acts with autonomy
and independence in exercising its strategic supervision, discharging its fiduciary responsibilities and ensuring
that the management observes the highest standards of ethics, transparency and disclosure. Every member
of the Board, including the Non-Executive Directors, has full access to any information related to the Company.

2. Meeting and Attendance

The notice and Agenda notes of the Meetings are circulated to the Directors as far as possible well in advance.
During the financial year under review, four Board meetings were held on 15" May 2014, 5" July 2014, 27"
October 2014 and 12" February 2015.

Information of attendance at the board meetings and the last annual general meeting is given below.

Name of the No. of Board Attendance of meeting during 2014-15
et o L
the tenure Meetings astAGM

Dr. M. Ayyappan 4 4 Yes

Shri. Gautam Guha 3 2 Yes

Shri. S.K.Rao 2 0

Shri. N.B.Dhal 1 1

Smt. Dharitri Panda 1 1

Shri. K. Mohandas 4 4

Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor 4 4 Yes

Dr. Aarti Vij 4 2

Shri. R.P.Khandelwal 4 4 Yes

Dr. K.R.S Krishnan 4 4 Yes

Dr. Babu Thomas 2 2 Yes [As proxy for ShriS.K.Rao, Member

and JS,MoHFW]
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3. Remuneration of Directors

Ministry of Health & Family Welfare (MoHFW), Government of India appoints Chairman & Managing Director
and the other Functional Directors. The remuneration and terms and conditions of their directorship are decided
by Department of Public Enterprises. The Chairman & Managing Director and the Functional Directors are
appointed for a period of five years or till the date of their superannuation or until further orders, whichever is
earlier.

Non-official part-time Independent Directors are also appointed by the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare,
Government of India for a period of three years and are paid a sitting fee of ¥10,000/- for attending each
meeting of the Board and the Board appointed Sub Committees.

4. Appointment of Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, which have come into force from 1st April, 2014 the
Board of directors has appointed the following Directors/Executives as the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)
of the Company on their existing terms & conditions of appointment, including remuneration:

1. Dr. M.Ayyappan - Chairman & Managing Director

2. Shri R.P.Khandelwal - Director (Finance)

3. Dr. K.R.S.Krishnan - Director (Technical & Operation)

4. Dr. Babu Thomas - Director (Marketing)

5. Shri R.Ganesan - Chief Financial Officer & Sr. Vice-President (Finance)
6. Shri P.Sreekumar - Company Secretary & Sr.Vice-President (HR)

5. COMPANY POLICIES
5.1 Policy on dealing with Related Party transactions:

The Company strictly follows all relevant provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 on dealing with Related Party transactions.

5.2 Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

HLL being a Government Company, the power to appoint Directors and to fix their remuneration vests with
Government of India. The Company is governed under DPE Guidelines regarding the Remuneration Policies
of Directors. The Company had complied with the relevant guidelines prescribed by the Department of Public
Enterprises in this regard.

6. BOARD CHARTER

As Trustees of the Company, the Board ensures that the Company has clear goals and policies for achievement
which are in alignment with the Vision and Mission of the company. The Board provides strategic directions,
reviews corporate performance, authorizes and monitors strategic decisions, ensures regulatory compliances
and safeguards interest of stakeholders. The Board of Directors adhere to the Board Charter adopted by the
Board of Directors, which clearly sets out the role, structure, responsibilities and operation of Company’s
Board of Directors and its delegation of authority.

7. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

The Board of Directors of your Company has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the Board Members
and Senior Management of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct during the year 2014-15. A declaration to this effect signed by the
Chairman & Managing Director forms part of this report.

To the Stakeholders of HLL Lifecare Limited
Sub: Compliance with Code of Conduct and Ethics

| hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Board of Directors.

Dr. M.Ayyappan
Chairman and Managing Director

10 July 2015
Thiruvananthapuram
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8. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING

Independent Directors are regularly updated on performance of each line of business of the Company,
strategies and new initiatives being taken/proposed to be taken by the Company. The Independent Directors
Shri K. Mohandas, Shri Sanjiv Kapoor and Dr. Aarti Vij met on 22" November, 2014 without the presence of
any Senior Management Personnel.

9. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review the Central Government has approved the Secretarial Standards on Meetings
of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2). These Standards
came into force on 01st July 2015 respectively. Adherence by the Company to these Standards is mandatory
as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, your Company has substantially complied
with both the Standards. The SS 1 and SS 2 prescribes a set of principles for convening and conducting the
Meetings of the Board of Directors, meetings of Committees, General Meetings and such other matters
related thereto.

10. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been
constituted to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within the authority delegated. As a part
of good governance practice, the Committees of the Company are constituted under the formal approval of
the Board and appointment of members and fixing of terms of reference/role of the Committees are done by
the Board of Directors. The Committees also make specific recommendations to the Board on various
matters whenever required. All observations, recommendations and decisions of the Committees are placed
before the Board for information or for approval.

The Company has currently established following committees, namely:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. CSR&SD Committee

4. Strategy Formulation & Investment Committee

10.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE
Audit Committee at the Board level is one of the main pillars of Corporate Governance mechanism of the

Company. Audit Committee aims to enhance the confidence in the integrity of Company’s financial reporting,
Internal control processes and act as a link between the Auditors and Board of Directors.

10.1.1. Composition

The Company’s Audit Committee comprises three Independent Directors & one Functional Director. The Audit
Committee is headed by Shri Sanjiv Kapoor and the other members are:

a) Shri K. Mohandas
b) Dr. Aarti Vij and
c) Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)

All the members of the Committee have relevant experience in financial matters and the Chairman of the
Committee Shri Sanjiv Kapoor is a senior practicing Chartered Accountant, having extensive accounting and
related financial management expertise.

10.1.2. Audit Committee reviews the following matters:
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes:

i) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

ii) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

iii) Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;
iv) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
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Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; and
Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees.
Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board'’s report in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013;

=

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

- @ 2 o

Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the internal
control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure,
coverageand frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors/agencies into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.
To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the C&AG audit

To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of Committee on Public Undertakings
(COPU) of the Parliament.

Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal auditor and the
Board of Directors

Review all related party transactions in the company. For this purpose, the Audit Committee may
designate a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related party transactions.

Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness of
coverage,reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.
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XXVi) Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management:

- The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system controls and security,
and

- Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal auditor, together
with the management responses.

xxvii)  Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the independent auditor:
- Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit recommendations

- Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on the scope of activities
or access to required information.

xxviii) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
10.1.3. Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year ended 31%March, 2015, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 4"July
2014, 27" October 2014, 21%'November 2014 & 12" February 2015. The attendance of the members at the
meeting was as follows:

No. of meetings No. of meetings
Name of the Committee Member held during attended
the tenure
Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor 4 4
Shri K. Mohandas 4 4
Dr. Aarti Vij 4 3
Dr. Babu Thomas 3 3

10.2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The scope and terms of reference of the Committee was enlarged by including the matters specified in
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

10.2.1. Composition
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following 4 directors.

a) Shri Sanjiv Kapoor, Independent Director,(Chairman)
b) Dr. Aarti Vij, Independent Director
c) Shri K. Mohandas, Independent Director
d) Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance)
10.2.2. Meetings and Attendance

During the year under review, the Remuneration committee met twice on 26"November, 2014& 12" February
2015.

The attendance of the members at the meetings were as follows:

Name of the Committee No. of meetings No. of meetings
Member held during the period attended
Shri Sanjiv Kapoor 2 2
Shri K. Mohandas 2 2
Dr. Aarti Vij 2 2
Shri R.P. Khandelwal 2 1
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Corporate Social Responsibility & Sustainable Development Committee

10.3.1. Composition

The composition of CSR & Sustainable Development Committee is as under.

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)

Dr. Aarti Vij, Independent Director,(Chairperson)

Shri K. Mohandas, Independent Director

Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance)
Dr . K.R.S. Krishnan, Director (T&O)

Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)

10.3.2. Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee are as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The
following are the scope/terms of reference of the CSR & SD Committee:

a)

b)

c)

Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate
the activities to be undertaken by the company

Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the above activities

Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time.

During the year under report, the CSR&SD Committee met once on21% November 2014. The attendance of
the members at the meeting was as follows:

10.4.

Name Position No of Meetings No of Meetings
during the Year Attended
Dr. Aarti Vij Chairperson 1 1
Shri. K. Mohandas Member 1 1
Shri. R.P. Khandelwal Member 1 1
Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan Member 1 0
Dr. Babu Thomas Member 1 1

Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee

10.4.1. Composition

The composition of Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee [SFIC] is as under.

10.4.2.

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Shri K. Mohandas, Independent Director — Chairman
Shri Sanjiv Kapoor, Independent Director

Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance)

Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan, Director (T&O)

Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)

Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Committee includes the following

i. Develop long-term strategies and policies for the company.

ii. Assessment of HLL's internal and external business environment.

iii. Develop a strategic management process for achieving company’s annual business targets.
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iv. Assess and approve for implementation projects that are supportive of goals and plans of HLL as
outlined in the Vision 2020 Plan.

v. Plan periodic senior leadership meetings with a strategic agenda.
vi. Provide guidance for effective functioning of the strategic management department in the Company.

vii. Assist the Board of directors in monitoring and evaluation of projects by identifying implementation
problems or outstanding performance through project exception reports.

viii. Monitor and evaluate financial and physical performance of all projects.

ix. Recommend investment/project proposals to the Board.

During the year under report, the Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee met three times on 3 May
2014, 27" October 2014, 12" February 2015. The attendance of the members at the meeting was as follows:

Name Position No of Meetings No of Meetings
during the tenure Attended
Shri K. Mohandas Chairman 3 3
Shri S. K. Rao Member 1 1
Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor, Member 3 2
Shri. R.P. Khandelwal Member 3 3
Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan Member 3 3
Dr. Babu Thomas Member 2 2

11. Information to be placed before the Board of Directors

The Board has completed access to any information within the Company. The information inter alia, regularly
supplied to the Board includes:

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)
f)
9)

Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.
Annual Accounts, Directors’ Report, etc.
Quarterly results of the company.

Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the Board including minutes of
Subsidiary Company and Joint-venture Company.

Major Investments, formation of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures, Strategic Alliances, etc.
Award of large Contracts.

Disclosure of Interest by Directors about directorship and committee positions occupied by them in other
Companies.

Monthly Report on Commercial Status of the Company.
Report on the status of various ongoing projects/scheme and Budget Utilization.

Any significant development in Human Resources/Industrial Relations front like signing of wage
agreement, etc.

Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders’ service such as
non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

Other materially important information.
Post meeting follow-up system:

The Governance process in the Company include an effective post-meeting follow-up, review and reporting
process for action taken/pending on decisions of the Board and the Board Committee(s).

13. Shareholding Pattern

HLL is not listed at any Stock Exchange in India or abroad. The entire paid up equity share capital of the
Company is held by the President of India and his nominees.
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14. General Body meetings: The Date, Time and Venue of the last three Annual General Meetings of the
Company are as follows:

AGM Financial Date Time Venue Whether Special Resolution(s)
Year Passed or Not
46t 2011- 241 Sept. 02.30p.m. New Yes
2012 2012 Delhi ° Alteration of Articles of

Association enabling
buyback of shares of
the Company.-

° Increasing of Authorised
share capital to % 300 cr.

477 2012- 6" Sept. 04.00p.m. New
2013 2013 Delhi None
48t 2013-
2014 28"August, 03.30p.m. Thiruvanan- Yes
2014 thapuram Alteration of Clause V of

Memorandum of Association &
Article 4 of Articles of Association.

Date, Time and Venue of 49th Annual General Meeting of the Company

Date Time Venue

28.09.2015 12.00 Noon New Delhi

15. Disclosures:

° Details of transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, associates, key managerial personnel
during the year 2014-15 are given as Note No. 2.10 to the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31
March, 2015. These transactions do not have any potential conflict with the interests of the Company at
large. All transactions with the related parties were in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s
length price.

° There were no cases of non-compliance by the company and penalties, strictures imposed on the
company by any statutory authority on any statutory payment requirements.

° Presidential directives issued by the Central government in respect of Official Language Implementation
have been complied with during the year and also in the last three years.

° The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 while preparing the Financial Statements.

° There were no items of expenditure debited in books of accounts, which are not for the purposes of the
business of the company.

° The company has adequately insured all its assets and also the various business risks connected with
the business of the company and that it has duly paid insurance premium.

° The Company has adopted Foreign Exchange & Risk Management Policy to protect Rupee value of
Foreign currency cash flows of the Company from adverse impact of fluctuations in exchange rates and
interest rates.

° The Company has adopted Whistle Blower policy and it is affirmed that no person has been denied
access to the Audit Committee in respect of reporting of suspected violations.
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General Information
Training of Directors:

The Company has adopted Guidelines on Corporate Governance May 2010 issued by Department of
Public Enterprise. Based on the DPE guidelines the company has adopted Training policy for board
members. During the year under review, the directors of the Company attended training sessions as
mentioned below.

Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance) & Dr. K.R.S.Krishnan, Director (Technical &Operations) attended
2-days International Workshop on 14" & 15" January 2015 at New Delhi on “Performance Evaluation
and Management of State Owned Enterprises (SOEs)” organized by Department of Public Enterprises,
Ministry of Heavy Industries &Public Enterprises, Government of India in collaboration with the
Performance Management Division, Cabinet Secretariat, Government of India, United Nations
Development Programme and World Bank in which the Institute of Public Enterprise, Hyderabad was
the ‘Knowledge Partner’.

Shri. R.P.Khandelwal, Director (Finance) attended 2 days Master Class — “Company Valuation Modelling”
led by Recognized Business and Financial Modelling expert Mr.GeraldStrever from 19" — 20" February
2015 at Mumbai.

Shri. Sanjlv Kapoor and Dr. Aarti Vij, Independent Directors of the Company attended a half-day
Workshop jointly organized by Department of Public Enterprise (DPE) and Institute of Chartered Accounts
of India (ICAI) at Delhi on “Capacity Building for Independent Directors and Government Nominee
Directors of Central Public Sector Enterprises (CPSES).

16.2. Means of communication:

Timely disclosure of relevant and reliable information is at the core of good Corporate Governance practice.
Towards this end your Company has taken following initiatives:

Annual Audited The company publishes its annual audited statement of accounts in the official website

Financial www.lifecarehll.com

Statements

News

Releases Official news releases are published through Company's Monthly Corporate News

letters, Quarterly Corporate News Magazines and displayed on the Company's website
www.lifecarehll.com

Website The Company's Corporate website www.lifecarehll.com provides comprehensive

information about the products, business segments, upcoming Projects etc.

Annual Report The Annual Report of the Company is circulated to the shareholders, Ministry of Health

& Family Welfare, Comptroller and Auditor General of India and all others entitled thereto
like Statutory Auditors etc.
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16.3. Plant Locations

Manufacturing

Contraceptives

Hospital Products

Contraceptives

Contraceptives and

Pharma Products

Hospital Products

Pharma Products

Contraceptives

¥4

Vi HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Plant Name and Location

Peroorkada Factory,
Thiruvananthapuram
(PFT),Kerala
Akkulam Factory,
Thiruvananthapuram
(AFT),Kerala
Kakkanad Factory
Kochi, (KFC), Kerala

Kanagala Factory,
Belgaum, (KFB) Karnataka

Manesar Factory,
Gurgaon, (MFG), Hariyana

Sanver Road Factory,
Indore, Madhya Pradesh
(PFI)

Irapuram Factory, Cochin,
(IFC), Kerala

Address

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Peroorkada Factory, Peroorkada
Thiruvananthapuram - 695005
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Akkulam Factory, Akkulam,
Thiruvananthapuram - 695017
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Cochin Special Economic Zone Division,
Plot No:16A/1,

Kakkanadu, Cochin -682037
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum,
Karnataka - 591225

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Manesar Unit, Plot No: 71 Sector 7,
Gurgaon, Haryana -122050
HLL Lifecare Ltd,

Sector-E, Sanver Road Industrial
Area, Indore - Madhya Pradesh
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Re-Sy.No 156/3, Block No.29
Rubber Park, Valayanchirangara
Irapuram,Cochin-683 556
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. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. INDUSTRY ANALYSIS
1.1 Healthcare industry - Outlook

In view of the Government’s long-term vision of ‘Health for all’ the Government’s allocation for healthcare in
the Union budgets has been around 2.5% of the gross domestic product (GDP).In the Union budget for year
2015-16, the Government has also allocated ¥ 33,152 crore to the health and family welfare sector. The rising
population, changing demographics, growing per capita income, increasing healthcare awareness and non-
communicable disease burden is likely to promote a compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of 1 % and
generate a revenue of USD 158.2 billion in 2017 from USD 90 billion in 2014.

In order to address the existing Indian challenges of quality healthcare, education and geographical disparity
in the country the Government propose to set up five new AIIMS in Jammu & Kashmir, Punjab, Himachal
Pradesh, Assam and Tamil Nadu; three National Institute of Pharmaceuticals Education and Research in
Maharashtra, Rajasthan and Chattisgarh and one Institute of Science and Education Research in Nagaland
& Orissa each in order to increase the accessibility and availability of quality tertiary care as stated in the
Union Budget 2015-16.With a view to promote ‘Swachh Bharat Mission’ the Government also propose to set
up Six crore toilets in the country. This initiative is a step towards the improvement and promotion of preventive
health care practice in the country.

The investments and projects planned by the Government in the Union Budget 2015-16 as mentioned above
is likely to give a fillip to the business prospects of the Company.

Notwithstanding the above, the paucity of funds allocated to National Health Mission (NHM) including the
flagship programmes of National Rural Health Mission and National Urban Health Mission in the 2015-16
budget, as compared to earlier years, necessitate the identification of alternative sources of business to
ensure that this does not dampen the prospects of the Company’s services business.

1.2 Contraceptives

The global market for contraceptive pills was estimated to be $680 million in the year 2014. This market is
expected to reach $1.03 billion by the end of 2019. During this period the market is estimated to grow at a
CAGR of 8.72%. It is estimated that out of the global women population the need for contraceptive prevalence
or meeting the needs of family planning is estimated as 16.2%.

1.3 Pharmaceuticals:

India is expected to rank amongst the top three pharmaceutical markets in terms of incremental growth by
2020.The Indian pharmaceutical industry is set for rapid growth and has the potential to hit $24 billion by 2015
and to hit $55 billion by 2020. The country’s rural markets are expected to grow the fastest, driven by overcoming
the current poor levels of penetration. The hospital segment will also increase its share and influence, growing
to 25 per cent of the market in 2020. The Department of Pharmaceuticals has prepared a “Pharma Vision
2020” document for making India one of the leading destinations for end-to-end drug discovery and innovation.
Through this, the Government provides support by way of world class infrastructure, internationally competitive
scientific manpower for pharma R&D and venture fund for research in the public and private domain. The
Government is also embarking on a major multi-billion dollar initiative with 50 per cent public funding through
a public-private partnership (PPP) model to harness India’s innovation capability. The vision is to catapult
India into one of the top five pharmaceutical innovation hubs by 2020, targeting to achieve a global niche with
one out of every five to ten drugs discovered worldwide by 2020 originating from India. The Government has
also been taking various policy initiatives for the pharmaceutical sector. These include tax-breaks to the
pharmaceutical sector and weighted tax deduction at 150% for the R&D expenditure incurred. The country’s
pharmaceuticals industry accounts for about 2.4% of the global pharma industry by value and 10% by volume.
Industry revenues are expected to expand at a CAGR of 12.1% during 2012-20 and reach USD 45 Billion. The
healthcare sector in India is expected to grow to USD 250 Billion by 2020 from USD 65 Billion currently. The
generics market is expected to grow to USD 26.1 Billion by 2016.
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India is expected to be the third largest global market for active pharmaceutical ingredients by 2016, with a
7.2% increase in market share. In addition to income growth, health insurance coverage will augment
affordability. By 2020, nearly 650 million people will enjoy health insurance coverage. Private insurance coverage
will grow nearly 15 percent annually till 2020. However, the largest impact will be seen through government
sponsored programmes that are largely focused on the BPL segment and are expected to provide coverage to
nearly 380 million people by 2020.

2.1. Medical Products Manufacture

Medical devices Industry in India is a multiproduct Industry producing wide range of products. India’s large
and expanding population, as well as the growing demand for blood components, is expected to contribute to
a greater demand in the blood banking products markets. The ‘Make in India Campaign’ of Hon’ble Prime
Minister has a mandate to boost the Medical device manufacturing sector in India for all types of Medical
Products. The global disposable plastic blood bags market was estimated at USD 244 million in 2014. It is
likely to grow at a CAGR of 9.1% and reach USD 413 million in 2020.

2.2. Healthcare Infrastructure

Healthcare has become one of India’s largest sectors - both in terms of revenue and employment. The industry
comprises hospitals, medical devices, clinical trials, outsourcing, telemedicine, medical tourism, health insurance
and medical equipment. The Indian healthcare industry is growing at a tremendous pace due to its strengthening
coverage, services and increasing expenditure by public as well private players. According to estimates, the
overall Indian health care market is US$ 65 billion, of which the hospital supplies and health care equipment
segment is believed to be only around US$ 4.5-5 million. Health care delivery, which includes hospitals,
nursing homes and diagnostics centres, and pharmaceuticals, constitutes 65 per cent of the overall market.

India requires 600,000 to 700,000 additional hospital beds over the next five to six years, which potentially
throws an opportunity of more than US$ 25-30 billion. While the existing hospitals would look at expanding
their capabilities, a lot of new properties would also come up. There is a significant scope for enhancing
healthcare services considering that healthcare spending as a percentage of GDP is rising. Rural India, which
accounts for over 70 per cent of the population, is set to emerge as a potential demand source.

Telemedicine is a fast emerging sector in India. The telemedicine market is expected to grow to US$ 18.7
million by 2017. India’s competitive advantage also lies in the increased success rate of Indian companies in
getting Abbreviated New Drug Application (ANDA) approvals. India also offers vast opportunities in R&D as
well as medical tourism. There are vast opportunities for investment in healthcare infrastructure in both urban
and rural India.
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4. PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE

HLL is a leading manufacturer and marketer of a range of contraceptive products around the globe. It also
provides a variety of hospital products, pharma products and healthcare delivery services.

A review of HLL's manufacturing activities is given below:

Sl.
No.

Quantity
Installed Manufactured Capacity
Product Unit Capacity (Previous utilization (%)
year)

Condoms M.pcs 1801.00 1819.00
(1638.00) 101.00

Blood Bags M.pcs 12.50 12.52
(11.05) 100.14

Suture L. Doz 6.00 1.74
(1.42) 29.12

Cu-T M.pcs 5.50 4.87
(5.12) 88.63

Sterioidal OCP Million 98.66 41.25
cycles (32.25) 41.81

Non-Steroidal OCP Million 30.00 38.81
Tablets (28.49) 129.37

Sanitary Napkin M.pcs 315.00 126.44
(97.60) 40.14

Pregnancey Test Card M. pcs 26.00 13.67
(17.75) 52.58

* HLL's major products

HLL has achieved 100% capacity utilization at its Condom production units. Efforts are being made to achieve
better capacity utilization for other products.

5. MAJOR MARKETING INITIATIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS

Your Company plans to implement the modern marketing practices viz. Digital marketing, E-commerce strategy,
M-Commerce in the ensuing years to strengthen the Company’s domestic and global presence.

The significant marketing initiatives and achievements of the company during the year 2014-15 are stated

below:

Entered nine new overseas markets namely Nigeria, Malawi, Namibia, Gautemala, Nicaragua,
Georgia, Rwanda, Sierra Leone and Malaysia.

Restarted business with UNFPA after a gap of 5 years

The campaign “Play It Right” about MOODS brand has become popular touching a fan base of 2
lakh in a short period and is still growing.

Launched four new brands namely Glucolim, Goaliv Capsules, Ashvagandha & Lasuna in the category
of Herbs & Berrie, natural products range.

Launched Hernia kit
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° Installed Condom Vending Machines across the country for promoting Commercial sales of Condoms.

° Oral Contraceptive Pills have been registered in three new countries namely, Angola, Lesotho &
Seychelles.

° Opened MOODS Planet, a retail brand store for Contraceptives, in Kochi.

° The products/brands namely MOODS, Emily, Share, IUD (Copper-T 380 A), Gloves, Blood Bag,
Female Condom and Lactohil were registered in various countries

° Both Lactohill and Female Condoms have become “¥1 Cr brand” whereas both Novex and Novex
DS have together clocked revenue of 34 Crore.

-®  Launched MOODS GoldSeries and Moods brand is now available in 47 countries worldwide.
6. RISKS AND CONCERNS

- Risk: Government as a customer segment is expected to contribute 65% of HLL's revenues by
2020. Loss of ‘preferred vendor to government’ status may impact HLL's vision and strategies
significantly.

- Mitigation plan: The Company plans to mitigate this risk by two-pronged strategies of ‘introducing
new products and services’ and ‘continuously increasing market share’, which are low to medium
risk strategies.

-@  Risk: Increasing levels of compliance required for both export and domestic markets increases cost
of products and services.

Mitigation plan: The Company is confident of mitigating this risk by establishing dedicated teams to
ensure compliance with applicable regulations in target territories.

7. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Given the nature of business and size of operations, your Company’s internal control system has been designed
to provide for:

®  Accurate recording of transactions with internal checks and prompt reporting.

e Adherence to applicable Accounting Standards and Policies.

® Compliance with applicable statutes, policies and management policies and procedures.
o Effective use of resources and safeguarding of assets.

The internal control system provides for well documented policies/guidelines, authorisations and approval
procedures. Your Company, through independent firms of Chartered Accountants and its own Corporate Audit/
Assurance Service Division (CAS), carries out periodic audits at all locations and functions based on the plan
approved by the Audit Committee and brings out any deviation to internal control procedures. The Company
has an Audit Committee with majority of Independent Directors as members to maintain the objectivity. The
summary of the Internal Audit observations and status of implementation are submitted to the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The status of implementation of the recommendations is reviewed
by the Audit Committee on a regular basis and concerns, if any, are reported to the Board. The Audit Committee
periodically interacts with the Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors and seeks their views to ensure
quality and adequacy of the internal control systems in the Company. All the issues raised by them have been
suitably acted upon and followed up. Proper systems are in place to ensure compliance of all laws applicable
to the Company. The Company continues its efforts to align all its processes and controls with best global
practices.
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8. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Directors Report and Management Discussion &Analysis describing the Company’s objectives,
projections, expectations and estimates are based on current business environment. Many factors could cause
the actual results, performances or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future
results, performances or achievements that may be expressed or implied by such forward looking statements.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue conviction on the forward looking statements.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

10.07.2015 Dr. M. Ayyappan
Thiruvananthapuram Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00117374

Annual Report 2014-2015
107



Q' 4
I ¥ pEUEUd drshodt fefdes
Y 4 s difgt & foo s

e 1

B H.THSIC-9
i faavol &1 Sgru
TIUATS AlsheaR ferfies & 31 | 2015 &7 wore fa<ig a9 a6

[@u srfefm, 2013 @1 a1 92(1) IR HUl (e U wemad) & e 12(1) & IR 4 |
Il. Gofior 3R 3 faaror :

i) & o T : 425193%T1966MME002621

ii) YofieRoT aRg : 01/03/1966

i) YT BT M @ TAUATS ASH PR foIfies

iv) DU B Hofi/ST Hoft + gfectdd Hu=

V) USIIpd BrITerd T Udl 3R e [aavor

TIUATE WA, AGATHIGRH RIS, YOIugRT, froa«iayRd -695012

vi) T e bus St SR

Vi)  IRRER 3R FaR0T Toie (IR €1 T) &1 919, Il g |ud fJaxor, afs &Ig & : o] el

II. Ut & &I JGAR HRIBATT
HUA P Pl AMURIET & 10% IT IFD NP ANTEM BR Iz FH JIAR BRIGAN GG Py ST -
H&. I SIe/Aarsi &1 9M g faaR IAE/Ad1 &b HU & Pl ATIRTERI
T S ¥ B B %
1. THERIgS ST 22193 40 94%
2. WY e SWE 20.53%
3. YR ST 13.72%

1. forimror, et sik weantt dufl & fasor

®B.
kil

1.

HOt &AM g gt <l IS TH/SN T U fer=ony IQ T i
g/ ¥RR @ gRT
wEart %

Mar gEErifead oS g 242315171980THSII000412 ot 74% 2(87)

BrEgehed foafics

T 3BT o g 4520090201 4feNag036617 et 1009%  2(87)
T fafics

THEE AR 3 24290%7a2012Aeeng030732  FHTE 100%  2(87)
fafics

ATsw fBRT sRuarel g 851105Ua20081ifei021819  THIRRIE 50% 2(6)
yrgae fafics

e ufedes 2014-2015
108



L 4
B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

ANNEXURE |

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31% March, 2015
of HLL LIFE CARE LIMITED

[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

Vi)

vii)

CIN : U25193KL1966G01002621

Registration Date : 01/03/1966

Name of the Company: HLL Life Care Limited

Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company

Address of the Registered Office and contact details :

HLL Bhavan, Mahilamandiram Road, Poojappura, Trivandrum-695 012

Whether listed company : NO

Name, Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA), if any : N/A

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No.

Name and Descriptionof NIC Code of the % to total turnoverof the
main products/services Product/service company
Contraceptive Products 22193 40.94%
Health Care Products 20.53%
Trading Products 13.72%

Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl.No

Name and address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Shares Applicable
of the Company Subsidiary/ Held Section
Associate

Goa Antibiotics &
Pharmaceuticals

Limited U24231GA1980SGC000412 Subsidiary 74% 2(87)
HLL Infra Tech

Services Limited U45200KL2014G0OI1036617 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
HLL Biotech Ltd. U24290KL2012G0OI1030732 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
Life Spring Hospital ~ U85110KL2008PTC021819  Associate 50% 2(6)

Private Limited
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L 4
B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

(v) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
beginning of the year end of the year
. ong & % change
e e % of total %0 ares % of total %of Shares |n share
S holder’s No. of Shares Pledged/ No. of OShares P|edged/ holding
0 Name Shares ofthe encumbered Shares of the encumbered during the
company to total compan to total year
shares pany shares
1 Gouvt. of
India 193535000 100% - 193535000 100% - -

(vi) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

S| Shareholding at the Cumulative
No beginningof the year dif:ﬁ]rgilﬁéd}llggr
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares Sharesofthe gp,.q  shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year
PEIIE s 2ol Esie SN RIS There is no change in the promoter’s shareholding

Shareholding during the Year specifying the between 01 April 2014 to 31% March 2015.
reasons for increase/decrease (eg. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year

vii) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of

GDRs and ADRS):

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Sl For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders
No No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares Shares of the shares  Shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the Year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (eg.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):
3. At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
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zaza it & fop  Fareduor

(viii) e iR & gduai wiffe ot FRErR!
T4 F IRY § Rt ¥ & IRAE dua RN

Bt % B %
IY & UR9 |
1) SITAI=WA, d g St 100 100
2) 3 IR Ut Wusaard, e 100 100
3) @ﬁa;www 100 0.0001% 100 0.0001%
4) s faorn sharean 100 100
5)  sfwcht aRE aier 100 100
gig/dH & BRI Bl AT FRb
Ty & SR YHICRT BT BRIERT N Nl Nl Nl
TR ghy/F (ST, S/
RITTAROT/d/SeM sfaac! anfe)
qY & fd H
1) SIuAI=WA, i g St 100 100
2) s IR Ut Wusaard, aerd 100 100
3) ¥ IRTH. 100 100
4) s ﬁww&mﬂﬂm 100  00001% 199~ 00001%
5)  sfwcht g aier 100 100
(ix) ko1
29/ TS Afgd U B FURRA1, Afhd YoaE & forg 37 T8 |
ST Bl BISHY  IWferyd S P HOT
afeyd o1 0T
focfg ad & uRw & o1
i) Hel XpH 43,947 88 = 43,947 88
i) 9 e, AT ved T8 fpy g 52 65 52 65
i) SufoTd =T, oifhs <7 &l
Dl (i+ii+iii) 44 000 .53 44 000 .53
focfig ad & <R =01 A uRadw
o TS 1088 .29 1088 .29
o Gl
frae aRec= 1088 .29 1088 .29
focfta ad & o d =or
i) ol XpH 45 036.17 45 036.17
i) 9 e, AT ved T8 fpy g 88 .04 88 04
i) Suord =TT, «ifhs <7 &l
Pt (i+ii+iii) 45,124 21 45,124 21
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HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

(viii). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

No.

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

1
2)
3)
4)
5)

iX).

For Each of the Directors and KMP

At the beginning of the year
Dr. M.Ayyappan, CMD

Shri R. P.Khandelwal, Director
Dr. K.R.S Krishnan, Director
Smt. Vijaya Srivastava

Smt. Dharitri Panda

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifying the

reasons for increase/decrease
(e.g. allotment /transfer/bonus/
sweat equity etc)

At the end ofthe year

Dr. M.Ayyappan, CMD

Shri R. P.Khandelwal, Director
Dr. K.R.S Krishnan, Director
Smt. Vijaya Srivastava

Smt. Dharitri Panda

INDEBTEDNESS

Shareholding at the
beginningof the year

% of total

No.of  ghares of the
shares company

100

100

100 0.0001%

100

100

NIL NIL

100

100

100 0.0001%

100

100

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year

No. of
shares

100
100
100
100
100

NIL

100
100
100
100
100

% of total
shares of the
company

0.0001%

NIL

0.0001%

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i)
i)
i)

Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness
duringthe financial year

.

.

Addition
Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount

i) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

43,947.88
52.65

44,000.53

1,088.29

1,088.29

45,036.17
88.04

45,124.21
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Deposits

Nil

Total
Indebted-
ness

43,947.88
52.65

44,000.53

1,088.29

1,088.29

45,036.17
88.04

45,124.21
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (R in lacs)
Sl. Particulars of Dr. M Shri. R P Dr.KRS Dr. Babu Total
No. Remuneration Ayyappan Khandelwal Krishnan  Thomas
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions 42.33 28.85 23.43 10.68 105.29

contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act,1961]

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 2.64 251 1.83 6.98
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under

2. Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil
4. Commission- as % of
profit- others, specify... Nil Nil Nil Nil
5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (A) 44.97 31.36 25.26 10.68 112.27
Ceiling as per the Act 315.51
B. Remuneration to other directors: (X in lacs)
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor Dr. Aarti Vij Shri. K.Mohandas Total
No/ Amount

1. Independent Directors

» Fee for attending board/ 1.24 0.81 1.71
committee meetings

» Commission

» Others, please specify

Total (1) 1.24 0.81 1.71 3.76
2. OtherNon-Executive Directors
» Fee for attending board/ Nil Nil Nil

committee meetings
» Commission
» Others, please specify
Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2) 3.76
Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl Particulars of Remuneration

No.

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2)
Income tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salaryunder
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5 Others, please specify

Total

CEO

(R in lacs)
Key Managerial Personnel

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section of
Type the Companies
Act
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Brief
Description

Company CFO Total
Secretary
N.A 16.05 17.06 33.11
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
16.05 17.06 33.11
Details Authority[RD  Appeal
o f Penalty INCLT/ made, ,if
/Punishment/ COURT] any (give
fees imposed Details)

Compounding

NIL

NIL

NIL
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

BVR & ASSOCIATES "Swsthika", 32/1726, Ist Floor
Company Secretaries Rahul Mon Road, Off Kalavath Road
Palarivattom, Cochin-682 025

Ph : +91-484-4046696, +91 98956 30786

Email : info@directus.co.in

ANNEXURE. I

Form No: MR 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORTFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2015
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Board of Directors
HLL LIFECARE LIMITED
CIN: U25193KL1966G0OI1002621.

We, BVR & ASSOCIATES, Company Secretaries, have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. HLL LIFECARE LIMITED
[CIN: U25193KL1966G0I1002621] (hereinafter called the Company). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the M/s. HLL LIFECARE LIMITED’sbooks, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2015
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
M/s HLL LIFECARE LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31.03.2015 according to the
provisions of:

1 The Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable) (the Act) and the rules
made there under.

2 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the applicable rules and regulations made there under.
As informed to us the following other Laws specifically applicable to the Company as under:
The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

The Factories Act, 1948

The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946

Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

Legal Metrology Act, 2009

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

© ©® N o gk~ wDhPR

R
= o
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12. The Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

13. The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1974

14. Sexual Harassment of Women at the work place (prevention, prohibition and redressal) Act, 2013
15. Kerala Shops & Est. welfare Fund Board Act.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1) Secretarial Standards relating to General and Board Meeting Minutes issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

2) Corporate Social Responsibility Voluntary Guidelines, 2009 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the observations noted against each legislation.

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, we have relied on information/records produced
by the Company during the course of our audit and the reporting is limited to that extent.

We further report that, during the year under review:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda are sent at least seven days in advance, a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

All decisions of the board were unanimous and the same was captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

2. The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment,
their being independent and compliance with the code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and
Management Personnel.

3. The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts
and arrangements, shareholdings/debenture holdings and directorships in other companies and interests
in other entities.

4. The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of unsecured loans, facilities granted by bank(s)/
financial institution(s) and non-banking financial companies. The Company has not issued Debentures
and collected Public Deposits.

5. All registrations under the various state and local laws as applicable to the company are valid as on the
date of report.

6. The Company has not issued and allotted the securities during the period under scrutiny.
7. The Company has declared and paid dividends to its shareholders during the period under scrutiny.
8. The Company has;

a. no unpaid dividends,

b. notissued debentures and

c. not accepted fixed deposits
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So there is no need for transferring amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund during the
period under scrutiny.

9. The Company has paid all its statutory dues and satisfactory arrangements have been made for arrears
of any such dues.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no instances of:
(i) Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares/debentures/sweat equity.
(i) Redemption/buy-back of securities
(iif) Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction, etc.

(iv) Foreign technical collaborations.

Sd/-
Cochin CS Yogindunath. S
29/06/2015 Partner, BVR & Associates, Company Secretaries

ACS/FCS No. F7865 CP No: 9137
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Tel : 0487 2423225, 2426225, Fax : 2424245
Email : trc_aajca@sancharnet.in

www.abrahamandjose.com

ANNEXURE. Il
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To

The Members of HLL Lifecare Limited
HLL Bhavan

Poojappura P.O.
Thiruvananthapuram-695012

We have examined the Compliance of conditions of Coporate Governance by HLL Lifecare Limited for the
financial year ended on 315'March 2015, as stipulated by DPE OM No. 18 (8)/2005-GM dated 14" May 2010.
The compliance of the conditions of Coporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limted to prcocedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the

conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information to the explanation given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned DPE O.M.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M/s Abraham & Jose,
Chartered Accountants

Shri. CA Jose Pottokaran
Thrissur Partner, M.No. 012056S
28,05.2015 F.R. No. 000010S
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To the Members of
HLL LIFECARE LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements, that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

8. The company has an investment of ¥ 908.42 lacs in M/s. Lifespring Hospitals Private Ltd., a 50:50 joint
venture with M/s. Acumen Fund, USA. The accumulated loss of the joint venture as per the audited accounts
for the year ended 31.03.2015 is ¥1702.40 lacs and HLL's share of the same is ¥ 851.20 lacs. Accordingly,
there is a diminution in the carrying value of investment to the extent of ¥ 851.20 lacs. No provision for diminution
has been made in the accounts of the company for the decline in value of investments, which is not in accordance
with AS 13 on Accounting for Investments issued by ICAI. This matter was also qualified in our report on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.

Consequently, the profit as well as Reserves and Surplus and the value of investments are overstated by
¥851.20 lacs.

In the opinion of the management the decline in value of investments is temporary in nature as the joint
venture has been making cash profits from 2013-14 and hence no provision is considered necessary, as
explained in Note 2.17.

Qualified Opinion

9. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31 March 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

10. We draw attention to Note No.2.21 regarding fixation of prices with respect to supplies to Government of
India, wherein provisional prices are adopted and the effect of variance between the provisional price and final
price as may be fixed by the Government is not ascertainable and hence not considered in the accounts. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure | a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b)  Except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

e) The matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an
impact on the functioning of the company.

f) Vide notification No. GSR 463(E) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5" June 2015, provisions
of sub-section (2) of section 164 regarding disqualification of directors are not applicable to the company.

g) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above.

h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:
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i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements vide Note No.30 to the standalone financial statements;

i)  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, as required on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

iii) There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

by the Company.

13. The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to be examined in
terms of sub-section (5) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, the compliance of which is given
hereunder:

Directions issued under
section 143 (5)

If the Company has been selected for
disinvestment, a complete status
report in terms of valuation of Assets
(including intangible assets and land)
and Liabilities (including Committed &
General Reserves) may be examined
including the mode and present stage
of disinvestment process.

Please report whether there are any
cases of waiver/ write off of debts/
loans/interest etc., if yes, the reasons
there for and the amount involved.

Whether proper records are
maintained for inventories lying with
third parties & assets received as gift
from Govt. or other authorities.

A report on age-wise analysis of
pending legal/ arbitration cases
including the reasons of pendency and
existence/ effectiveness of a
monitoring mechanism for
expenditure on all legal cases(foreign
and local) may be given.

Report

The company has
not been selected
for disinvestment
by Government of
India

There are seven
cases where
claims amounting
to 3179.92 lakhs,
being irrecover-
able have been
written off.

The company is
maintaining
proper records for
inventories lying
with third parties.
As informed, the
company has not
received any
asset as gift from
Government/
other authorities.

Age-wise analysis
of pending legal/
arbitration cases
are as follows:

Upto 1 year 7
1-2 years 8
2-3 years 11
3-4 years 9
4 -5 years 4

Action Taken

No Action required

Amount debited
to statement of
profit and loss to
the extent of
$117.69 lakhs
and %.62.23 lakhs
towards provi-
sion created
against the same
in earlier years.

Ni

In cases where
company
expects a
probable outflow,
necessary
provision has
been created in
the books as per
AS-29
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Impact on accounts and
financial statements

Nil

Profit for the year is
lower by %117.69 lakhs

Nil

By virtue of provision
consequent effect has
been given to respective
heads of accounts.
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Directions issued under
section 143 (5)

Place : Thiruvananthapuram

Date 10.07.2015

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Report

Above 5 years 21
Total cases 60

The reason for pendency
of such cases under
arbitration/courts is that
hearings are not
completed calling for
further details and
additional documents by
the arbitrators/courts, non-
fixation of dates for
hearing, granting of stay by
court etc.

There is no laid down
procedure for large legal
expenses (foreign or
local). However,
expenditure on all legal
cases is proposed for
approval by competent
authority as and when
required.

Action Taken

.For other cases

where the
management
expects no

probable outflow
or the amount of
outflow cannot be
reliably
estimated, the
amount involved
has been
disclosed under
Contingent
liabilities in Note
30 to financial
statements.

By virtue of
provision
consequent effect
has been given to
respective heads
of accounts.
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For Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000010S)

Jose Pottokaran
Partner (M. No. 012056)



Q' 4
I ¥ pEUEUd drshodt fefdes
Y 4 s difgt & foo s

31 91 2015 Bl GHIE 99 Bl I1 ISP U sl foria faeavur ¥ e aseaar fofics &

AW Bl GIHEE ARG & WA AEradied R &1 e 1

BT & fod fIaRor ') te 92) 3R Ifd 3 R o) & 93y & forv feearfed orarasdien ufsharsi &k g4 fou

MY G 3R W0 $1 R # W@ §U iR R gRT AMRIGal e § Sifg Py oRaresl iR o/
Rarst & MR wR, &7 RUIE & & -

(i)

(iii)

(vii)

() HUT 7 TRATTAS faaRvT 3R Fraa aReuirl o Rafa |fea dqel fTavur i sfra Rers &1
JIRET0T T B

(@) a9 & SR yeeH gRT Fraa aREuRat &1 voger T fhar T iR arg o Arer ot O e
W TS W | BRI I A, 3rae aREURT & G @l Ry, HU & MBR AR I kUi B
T B e ¥/ W Sfed 2

() vEgT T g9 P SR I RIS W TG & el AT Il © |

() HU P SMHR TAT I PRIAR DI THT b AGe H Ja-e §RT U= Bl T GRGAT & Iodel A
@ HI yUTel IFRT vd Tat ©

(M) du TG & ST Rt 3@l € T gde FAmus W AT fafrat wE arfy it

BT T SARH B gRT 189 & 37 IW MY IR H HiruTied Ui, BEl A1 =7 uiieAi dI gfryd
T WA BIs H1 0T Wi 81 [HAT 8 | TEIAR A & TS 3 (ifi) () AR 3 (iii) (W) & g@em= arg
e g

BHART R H TAT BH <1 T JoT R TEIDBRUT b AR AHR TAT BRIFR DI THT P AJ0Y GGl T
raet aRFURT & HT Ud Al iR Hareli &t ot Sferg geifaa gatw oriaRe o orf gomett |
BRI I SIFHRI H BHRI SETRIE & QIR TR FRIF0 Youllell § i 9@ Bl 84 RUle 8] & §
T AR A H AT B |

Y P IR HUH o AAFTH B aRT 73 | 76 3R HU (SHT B Wiphd) Fraq, 2014 (FieE Si|) &
3 | Pig Al ST B Wiga 81 fhar g1 S/ 1 81, 89 RUlE &_d © % Ugel &l 3@ & SRM wWigd
$.10,000/- &Y XA, I IIRT & §1 $ fddie & BRUT 3ex RIE S & o= 99 @81 2 |

T 7 IR & =T 148 Y IU gRT & 37l AT RbIel & TREvT $Bfely by WRXGR gRT 91 s
P IATAR HUAl & IATGT AR HaTsl & Ay H HUN §RT I8 I kAT Il DI D AHIET DI & qAT
AR I B & e MR oikal 3R el &l q9rex W T & |

(@) 1f¥erEl & SaR, wfasy (fY, S U9 o7, 3MI-a, 9 &), Hal ), IS Jooh, SU o) Afed fFfddrs
i <21 R iR Iugeh WIRIBIRAT & A1l A=A < MR 1 B H Bui A W ¥ i
el Bl

() & 1Y Y FE1 vd WP & JAR, DI Hl [Jag & BRI 1< BT BISHR SMAT 7 BT AR IR,
ot &=, &9 IR, [a1 TR, WA IR, I Yodb I SUBY & Plg W 3 T8 © -

e ufedes 2014-2015
138



,";' HIL Gifecare [imiied

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Annexure | to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HLL Lifecare
Limited, on the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31t March 2015

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and the
books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed
assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year.

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and material discrepancies were not noticed
on physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of
clauses 3(iii)(a) and 3(iii)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are reasonably
adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the company and nature of its
business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. To the
best of our knowledge, no major weaknesses in internal control system were either reported or noticed
by us during the course of our audit.

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). However, we report
that an amount of ¥10,000 accepted during earlier period is outstanding under fixed deposit not repaid
due to dispute between the legal heirs.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under subsection (1) of Section
148 of the Act in respect of Company'’s products and services and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

(a) According to the records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund, ESI, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Excise Duty, Cess and other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, customs Tax, Excise Duty or Cess not deposited on account of any dispute
except:-
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SI.  Name of the Statute Forum where the Amount involved Period
No matter is pending (X lakhs)
1 The Income Tax Act, 1961 CIT (Appeals) 10.12 Asst.Yr 2008-09
2 Do Do 191.54 Asst.Yr 2009-10
3 Do Do 20.84 Asst.Yr 2010-11
4 Do Do 40.85 Asst.Yr 2011-12
5 Do Do 32.41 Asst.Yr 2012-13
6 Customs Act,1962 Commissioner of
Customs 22.15 2007-08
7 Kerala Value
Added Tax Act, 2003 DC (Appeals) 263.48 2011-12
8 Do Do 14.44 2012-13
(c) There are no amounts required to be transferred during the year to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of
1956) and rules made thereunder.
(viii) In our opinion, the Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has not
incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding financial year.
(ix) The Company has not delayed in repayment of dues to the financial institutions, banks and debenture
holders during the year.
(x) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the Company has given guarantee for loans taken by
others from banks or financial institutions are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.
(xi)  In our opinion, the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which these loans were
obtained.
(xii) Based on the audit procedures performed and the representations obtained from the management we
report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year under audit.
For Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000010S)
Place : Thiruvananthapuram Jose Pottokaran
Date 10.07.2015 Partner (M. No. 012056)
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Office of the Principal Director of Commercial
Audit & Ex-Officio Member, Audit Board-1V, New Delhi.

No. 359-PDCA/HS/MAB-IV/HLL Lifecare/Standardalone/a/cs/2015-16

CONFIDENTIAL

To
The Chairman and Managing Direcor,
HLL Lifecare Ltd,
HLL Bhavan, Poojappura P.O.,
Thiruvananthapuram-695012
Sub : Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under 143 (6)(b) of the Companies
Act, 2013 on the accounts of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31t March, 2015.
Sir,
I am to enclose herewith the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under 143 (6)(b)
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31 March,
2015.
The receipt of the letter may kindly be acknowledged.
Yours faithfully,
(Dr. Ashutosh Sharma)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Encl : As above Ex-Officio Member, Audit Board-IV

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143 (6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF HLL LIFECARE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

The preparation of financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31t March, 2015 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility
of the management of the company. The statutory auditor/auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act is/are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with standards on auditing
prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 10.07.2015.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conduted a supplementary audit
under section 143 (6) (a) of the Act of the financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31
March 2015. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers
of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and
a selective examination of some of the accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has
come to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Dr. Ashutosh Sharma)
Place : New Delhi Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Date : 25/8/2015 Ex-Officio Member, Audit Board-IV
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2015

ASAT ASAT
Particulars Note No 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
R lacs) R lacs)
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds
(a) Share Capital 3 19,353.50 19,353.50
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 23,275.32 20.586.01
42,628.82 39,939.51
2. Shareapplication money pending allotment 4,000.00
3. Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 5 5,153.60 7,722.38
(b) Deferred tax liabilites (net) 6 1,198.20 1,263.47
(c) Long-term provision 7 131.67 112.07
6,483.47 9,097.92
4. Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 8 37,657.56 33,766.91
(b) Trade payables 9 20,949.49 10,281.87
(c) Other current liabilities 10 23,316.53 17,963.19
(d) Short-term provisions 11 1,429.30 1,283.50
83,352.88 63,295.47
4. Advances Received for Projects held under Trust
as per contra 73,723.93 71,015.72
TOTAL 2,10,189.10 1,83,348.62
B. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 12
i) Tangible assets 22,620.96 17,813.26
ii) Intangible assets 828.29 850.37
iii) Capital work-in-progress 7,454.27 6,999.90
30,903.52 25,663.53
(b) Non-current investments 13 19,425.17 19,420.17
(c) Other Non-Current assets 14 4,628.15 567.05
2. Current assets
(@) Inventories 15 10,117.97 11,704.73
(b) Trade receivables 16 62,261.05 43,148.25
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 17 1,333.77 1,452.80
(d) Short-term loans and advances 18 7,261.85 9,991.92
(e) Other current assets 19 533.69 384.45
81,508.33 66,682.15
3. Cash and Bank balances of Projects held under
Trust as per contra 73,723.93 71,015.72
TOTAL 2,10,189.10 1,83,348.62
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Explanatory notes to Financial Statements 2
For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Jose Pottokaran
Chairman Director (Finance) Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO Partner
& Managing Director [DIN: 00388355] & SVP (HR) [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 012056
[DIN: 00117374] [FCS: 5875]
Trivandrum
10.07.2015
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L 4
B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note No 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
X lacs) X lacs)

1. Revenue from operations (gross) 20 1,06,438.70 94,726.54
Less: Excise duty 633.74 558.38
Revenue from operations (net) 1,05,804.96 94,168.16

2. Other income 21 398.37 1,200.67

3. Total revenue (1+2) 1,06,203.33 95,368.83

4. Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 22 20,585.80 19,399.17
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 23 20,981.27 15.627.36
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods,

work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 24 1,908.01 (905.31)
(d) Employee benefits expense 25 14,677.14 13,481.93
(e) Finance costs 26 2,594.34 1,840.35
() Depreciation and amortisation expense 12 2,983.12 2,375.88
(g) other expenses 27 28,100.04 25,751.23
(h) Contract Expenses 11,351.99 14,177.14
Total expenses 1,03,181.71 91,747,75

5. Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional and extra
ordinary items and tax (3-4) 3,021.62 3,621.08

6. Exceptional items [(Income) /Expense] (731.17) -

7. Profit/(Loss) before tax (5-6) 3,752.79 3,621.08

8. Tax expenses:

(a) Current tax expenses for current year 954.26 783.28
(b) Prior year tax adjustments (157.67) (1.76)
(c) MAT Credit Entitlement (133.68) (25.83)
(d) Deferred tax (65.26) 294.62

597.65 1,050.31

9. Profit/ (Loss) for the year (7-8) 3,155.14 2,570.77

10. Earnings per share (%) - Basic & Diluted
(Face value of ¥ 10/- share) 2.9 1.63 1.33
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Explanatory notes to Financial Statements 2

For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Jose Pottokaran
Chairman Director (Finance) Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO Partner
& Managing Director [DIN: 00388355] & SVP (HR) [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 012056
[DIN: 00117374] [FCS: 5875]
Trivandrum
10.07.2015
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L 4
B 1L Lifecare Limited

l f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2015

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
X lacs) ® lacs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before extraordinary items and tax 3,752.82 3,621.08
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 2,983.12 2,375.88
Exceptional item for Depreciation (731.17) -
Loss on sale of fixed assets 4.40 2.70
Profit on sale of fixed assets (4.52) (22.54)
Finance costs 2,594.34 1,840.35
Interest income (103.64) (324.92)
Operating profit/(Loss) before working capital changes 8,495.35 7,492.55
Changes in working capital :
Adjustment for (increase)/decrease in operating assets :
Inventories 1,586.76 (1,212.06)
Trade receivables (19,112.80) (1,666.41)
Short-term loans and advances 2,615.31 (1,160.30)
other current assets (149.24) 1,770.85
Adjustment for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities :
Trade payables 10,667.62 1,004.95
Other current liabilities 5,353.34 (8,406.53)
Short-term provisions 145.80 (370.30)
9,602.14 (2,547.25)
Cash flow from extraordinary items
Cash generated from operations 9,602.14 (2,547.25)
Net Income tax (paid)/refunds (647.67) (1,062.59)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 8,954.47 (3,609.84)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital Work in Progress (454.37) (2,505.34)
Investment in Fixed Assets (7,045.06) (3,572.97)
Sale of fixed assets 7.61 16.91
Interest received 103.64 324.92
Advance for Share Capital to HBL (4,000.00) (125.00)
Investment in HLL Infratech Services Ltd. (5.00) -
Investment in GAPL - (708.75)
Changes in other non-current assets 38.42 (10.22)
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more
than twelve months) (28.84) (37.02)
Advance for Investment from Govt. of India 4,000.00 -
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) (7,383.60) (6,617.48)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (2,568.78) 2,456.89
Proceeds from other short-term borrowings 3,890.65 10,306.53
Long-term provisions 19.60 -
Finance cost - Interest paid (2,594.34) (1,840.35)
Dividend paid (387.07) (387.07)
Tax on dividend (78.80) (65.79)
Net Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) (1,718.74) 10,470.21
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Vi HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
® in lacs) ® in lacs)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (147.87) 242.90
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,252.53 1,009.63
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,104.66 1,252.53
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet
(Refer Note 14) 1,333.77 1,452.80
Less : Bank balances not considered as cash and cash
equivalents as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Statements 229.11 200.27
Net Cash and cash equivalents (as defined in AS 3
Cash Flow Statements) included in Note 17 1,104.66 1,262.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*
* Comprises
(@) Cash on hand 11.62 12.78
(b) Balances with banks
(i) In Deposit account 257.12 234.39
(ii) In current accounts 788.18 991.62
(i) In EEFC accounts 47.74 13.74
1,104.66 1,252.53

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in the AS - 3
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2 The previous year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary in order to confirm to this
year's presentation.

3 Transactions of project funds held under Trust and balance of ¥73,723.93 lacs (previous year
$71015.72 lacs) are not included in the Cashflow

For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose

Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 000010S

Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Jose Pottokaran
Chairman Director (Finance) Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO Partner

& Managing Director [DIN: 00388355] & SVP (HR) [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 012056
[DIN: 00117374] [FCS: 5875]

Trivandrum

10.07.2015
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 3 Share Capital

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of of ¥ 10/- each - 30,00,00,000 Nos. 30,000.00
Equity shares of ¥ 1000/- each - 30,00,000 Nos. 30,000.00
(b) Issued Share Capital
Equity shares of of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos. 19,353.50
Equity shares of ¥ 1000/- each - 19,35,350 Nos. 19,353.50
(c) Subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos. 19,353.50
Equity shares of ¥ 1000/- each - 19,35,350 Nos. 19,353.50
Total 19,353.50 19,353.50
Reconciliation of Share Capital
AS AT 31.03.2015 AS AT 31.03.2014
Description No. of (Rin lacs) No. of (R in lacs)
shares shares
Equity Share Capital
Authorized
Opening Balance
(Face value of ¥ 1000/- each 30,00,000 30,000.00 30,00,000 30,000
Additions - = - -
Closing Balance
(Face value of ¥ 10/- each) 30,00,00,000  30,000.00 30,00,000 30,000.00
Issued
Opening Balance
(Face value of ¥ 1000/- each 19,35,350  19,353.50 19,35,350 19,353.50
Additions - = - -
Closing Balance
(Face value of ¥ 10/- each) 19,35,35,000 19,353.50 19,35,350 19,353.50
Subscribed & Paid up
Opening Balance
(Face value of ¥ 1000/- each 19,35,350  19,353.50 19,35,350 19,353.50
Additions - = - -
Closing Balance
(Face value of ¥ 10/- each) 19,35,35,000 19,353.50 19,35,350 19,353.50

Note : Pursuant to the approval of the shareholders in 48th Annual General Meeting held on 28th August 2014,
the face vale of equity shares was sub-divided from ¥ 1000/- to ¥ 10/- w.e.f. 28.08.2014

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

AS AT 31.03.2015 AS AT 31.03.2014

Name of shareholder Number of % of Number of % of
shares held Holding shares held Holding

Gouvt. of India 19,35,35,000 100% 19,35,350 100%
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 4 Reserves and surplus

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserve
Opening balance 36.80 43.86
Add : Additions/transfers during the year - 36.80
Less : Transferred during the year to General Reserve (36.80) (43.86)
Closing balance - 36.80
(b) Dividend Equalisation Reserve 129.74 129.74
(c) General Reserve
Opening balance 20,419.47 18,294.50
Add : Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 2,689.31 2,081.11
Add : Transferred during the year from CSR 36.80 43.86
Closing balance 23,145.58 20,419.47

(c) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance - -
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year 3,155.15 2,570.77
Less : Proposed Dividend

Dividends proposed to equity shareholders (30. 20 per share

of ¥10/- each, Previous year 320 share of ¥ 1000/- each) 387.07 387.07
Tax on dividend 78.80 65.79
Transferred to :
Reserves for CSR - 36.80
General Reserve 2,689.28 2,081.11
Closing balance - -
Total 23,275.32 20,586.01
Note 5 Long-term borrowings
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
(&) Term Loans
Foreign currency loan-Secured 1,655.33 2,830.49
Rupee Term Loan-Secured 2,899.17 3,865.56
(b) Other loans and Advances
Foreign currency Buyers Credit 599.10 1,026.33
Total 5,153.60 7,722.38
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i 4
Y #  pevee we feferes
l ¥ e R 3 R s

feuoft 6 o AFB-22 F T THIHRU-3™ TR BY & 70 o

faa=or 31.03.2015 & 31.03.2014 &I
% ol & R ot #
IR PR (e /aRwuRmEt
TougTd (1980.36) (1827 92)
JMRIATT B IAT B dTell &I & B TG (1980.36) (1827 .92)
JMRYRTT R AT BN ATl QT b B T
Jfery o1 & oy T 707 47 335.79
AR BT & folg graem 29 42 29 .42
91 & fory Traerm 14 28 1554
S 30.99 183.70
IR FR BN dTell YRAIRT & A]T & B T4 782.16 564 .45
frae IR wR (Qan)/aRaf (1198 .20) 1263 .47)

feaft 7 Sefereita e

faxo 31.03.2015 & 31.03.2014 &
% wmal § % ol |
(®) et e & forg wraem :
T det 999 & oty wraem 131.67 112.07
131.67 112.07
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 6 Disclosures under Accounting Standards-22 Accounting for Taxes on Income

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
Deferred tax (liability)/asset
Depreciation (1980.36) (1827.92)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability (1980.36) (1827.92)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts 707.47 335.79
Provision for Overtime arrear 29.42 29.42
Provision for Bonus 14.28 15.54
Others 30.99 183.70
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 782.16 564.45
Net deferred tax (liability)/asset (1198.20) (1263.47)
Note 7. Long-term provisions
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Provisions for employee benefits :
Provisions for Performance related pay 131.67 112.07
131.67 112.07
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l TAUETd ATsher fefies
¥ e G & o sae

fewoht 8 sreumIferd SuR

faa=or 31.03.2015 &1 31.03.2014 &I
% ol & % ot A
(&) AT W AT o1 (FHal Fo1) - Afaqd
e d& ifw sfear |- 13,753 56 11,463.17
BT §B A 4811.89 4 521 69
wg I UG o 96 | 4,206 23 223 .04
Fo 22,771.70 16,207 .90
(F) 9T A 3TeTBICIT RO ATARGITC
PRI 9% A 2,500.00 2,500.00
BRI ol - 5,650.00
T I | 2,492 52 2,500.00
P 4,992 52 10,650.00
(1) 1T 9T 9 A - Afryd
fa=ft 957 e @1 Arg - SER 9,842 08 6,867 .82
() T AR < 2Tt
CENECED 15.40 14 87
e 9@ A sfear 0.00 17 52
g S U 9T §b 35 .85 8.80
Fa 37,657.56 33,766.91
fewfor -
(i) v sreusIferd SUR &feg gk & faavor
o=y gfayfr @ apia 31.03.2015 & 31.03.2014 &t
% ol & R ol #
dpi F A W gRed o HUN B A IR W qIR 9y 13,753,566 11,463.17
bl A o1 | R T 9% &I IR A
T df oTg qoTURT, RRadqRd & AHM Afed
i IR SHT & B H ARG §6 |
CENECED 4811.89 4 521 69
T I U% W dh 4242 11 23184
BT H TP D FOT-IRTA IARGIIE
PRI db F RIS ST | Afaqd 2 515.40 2514 87
ISUsE 9@ 9 - 5,650.00
T §f I | 2,492 52 2517 52
5,007.92 10,682 .39
=T T g 37
Al B AT - SER RIS ST A Hiera 10,441 .18 7,894 15
A : IEPIAD SER 599.10 1,026.33
9,842 08 6,867 .82
P 37,657.56 33,766.91
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 8 Short-term borrowings
Particulars

(@) Loans repayable on demand (Cash Credit) -Secured
From State Bank of India
From Canara Bank
From HDFC Bank
Total
(b) Short Term Loans from Banks - Secured Overdraft
From Canara Bank
From Indusind Bank
From SBI
Total
(c) Other loans and advances - Secured
Foreign Currency Buyers Credi
(d) Interest Accrued & due
Canara Bank
State Bank of India
HDFC Bank
Total

Notes : (i) Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings :
Particulars Nature of security

Loans repayable on demand from

banks :

SBI
Paripassu charge over current
assets of the company. Equitable
Mortgage as collateral over the

Canara Bank land with building at Poojappura,

HDFC Bank Trivandrum towards State Bank
of India

Short Term Loans from Banks -

Secured Overdraft

From Canara Bank

From Indusind Bank Secured by Project Deposits

From SBI

Other Loans and Advances :
Buyers Credit Secured by Project Deposits
Less : Long Terms Borrowings

Total

Annual Report 2014-2015
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AS AT
31-03-2015
3 lacs

13,753.56
4,811.89
4,206.25

22,771.70

2,500.00

2,492.52
4,992.52

9,842.08

15.40
0.00
35.86
37,657.56

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

13,753.56

4,811.89

4,242.11

2,515.40

2,492.52
5,007.92

10,441.18
599.10
9,842.08
37,657.56

AS AT
31-03-2014
3 lacs

11,463.17
4,521.69
223.04
16,207.90

2,500.00
5,650.00
2,500.00
10,650.00

6,867.82

14.87
17.52
8.80
33,766.91

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

11,463.17

4,521.69

231.84

2,514.87
5,650.00
2,517.52

10,682.39

7,894.15
1,026.33
6,867.82
33,766.91



l TAUETd ATsher fefies
Y 4 s difgt & foo s

feaoft 9 29 =R
fra=or 31.032015 &1 31.03.2014 &I
T ol ¥ T ol |
T IR :
- ged oY 3R weId e 23803 275 231
- 3 20,711 46 10,006 .64
Pl 20,949 49 10,281 .87
feoqoht 10 a1 =y SFaTd
fara=or 31.03.2015 & 31.03.2014 @I
T oraEl § T orEl |

() drdwiferas 0T & aTe] YRYFIATY (1 B feCwol (i) &1 ded B ) 227627 249978
(@) s

e /qdidhe A IH 10,711 64 2,627 93
$ U9 S 3R wavfa S 257862 2,527 02
7ot SuIford otfd < T8t 2998 3297
GICICASE 0.10 0.10
I AN 7,690 69 10,245 28
SNCUIIRNERISE] 2923 30.11

Fe 23,316.53  17,963.19

feaoft (i) : el T @ @ Rugaary (feuft 5 # feuft (i) &1 ded & ) afoyfa & Revor & fog deferfas
TR

faremor 31.03.2015 & 31.03.2014 &I
T ol ° T el |
forImeY o
T S UB A 96 9 AT R o 1,002 .08 889 51
AR e d& 9 e ga1 Fmel o 1,274 19 1,610.27
el 2,276 27 2,499 78
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Note 9 Trade payables

Particulars

Trade payables :

For material, services and expenses

- Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
- Others

Note 10 Other current liabilities

Particulars

(a) Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note (i) below)

(b) Others
Advance from Customers/Clients
EMD & Security Deposits
Interest Accrued but not due
Fixed Deposit
Other Liabilities
Contributory Pension Scheme

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

238.03
20,711.46

Total 20,949.49

AS AT
31-03-2015

3 lacs

2,276.27

10,711.64
2,578.62
29.98
0.10
7,690.69
29.23

Total 23,316.53

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

275.23
10,006.64
10,281.87

AS AT
31-03-2014

3 lacs

2,499.78

2,627.93
2,527.02
32.97
0.10
10,245.28
30.11

17,963.19

Note (I) : Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Notes (i) in Note 5 - Long-term borrowings for details

of security) :

Particulars

Term loans

Rupee Term Loan from HDFC Bank

Foreign Currency Term Loan from State Bank of India

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

1,002.08
1,274.19

Total 2,276.27

Annual Report 2014-2015
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AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

889.51
1,610.27
2,499.78



- PAUAUH cTEhaYT ffics I
e difgt & foo waswo

feaoft 11 srcumiferd e

fere~or 31.03.2015 &I 31.03.2014 &l

T wral § T ol §

(@) FHaR! f2deam & fog wmaem -
(i) 9 IR WIATEs & forg wraens 129 .71 140.05
(i) SUSH & fog grage 628 97 515 .35
(iii) 79 $ To1 WA & forg maem 204 75 17525
963 .43 830.65

(@) 3= grqem :

(i) RaTfad gfeact amier & forg graens 387 07 387 07
(i) TREATTIT IR WR &R & feTq Hraem 78.80 65.78
465 87 452 85
Fol 1,429 .30 1,283 .50
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 11 Short-term provisions

Particulars

(a) Provision for employee benefits :
(i) Provision for bonus and incentive
(i) Provision for gratuity
(iii) Provision for group EL Premium

(b) Provision - Others :
(i) Provision for proposed equity dividend
(i) Provision for tax on proposed dividends

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

129.71
628.97
204.75

963.43

387.07

78.80

465.87

Total 1,429.30
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AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

140.05
515.35
175.25

830.65

387.07
65.78
452.85
1,283.50
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N 4
l ¥ pEUEUd drshodt fefdes
¥ o dRE & R aae

feuoft 14 =1 AR =1ey aR<fRmET

fararor 31.03.2015 & 31.03.2014 &I
R @i # R @i #
IR 3 A BT Yoh 56.00 84 .00
S 91 &1 o1 I Yed 27 80 38.22
Tq g < shise aradl 544 35 444 83
a9 & ufa Iflm 4,000.00 =
Pl 4,628.15 567 .05
fewuit 15 awqRpat
(1w ara o) 3R g awgelt e o)
fraror 31.03.2015 &1 31.03.2014 &I

R ol # % ot A
F. Ped A (A R Jiha) 2 266 .55 2,096 .60
3T b A b Aol (ST UR Hedifehe) - -
2,266 .55 2,096 .60
Q. T IRl (A W geifed) 998 42 1,010.12
998 42 1,010.12
. AN PR (TRATID TBAT AN TR e ifehd) 1,499 93 1,545 38
1,499 93 1,545 .38

¥, TR 7 (a9 dre W) a1 g Rt 1) Jeifed)
fafafa sare 2,510.20 3,636.46
TR fao SeTe 36.79 94 94
IIAT IS 1,338 .45 2,027 23
AR AT 2396 13.33
3,909 .40 5,771 .96
T, GE HSR Ud ST (AN IR i) 95.80 102 .67
95 .80 102 .67
T, g AT, TR, IR Yof, AR A S (AR o) Heaifhd) 1,232,30 1,043 01
1,232,30 1,043.01
. UdY §RT Tcifehd MR FHIPME oo 5.11 13.82
5.11 13.82

. e

<E1/3AeRY |uRTT (B9 1T a1 e agel ae o W) 28.89 2539
IUER 74 (AT W) 105 21 126.19
T A (ST OR) 65.68 65 .54
199.78 217 12
10,207 29 11,800.68
=T : IYh i & g ffem e 89.32 95 95
Dol 10,117 .97 11,704 .73
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 14. Other Non-Current Assets

Particulars

Fee for RoC for enhancing Authorised Share Capital to the extend
not written off
ECB Loan Upfront charges
MAT Credit Entitlement
Advance against Investments
Total

Note 15 Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars

a. Raw Materials (Valued at cost)
Raw Materials with others (Valued at cost)

b. Packing Materials (Valued at cost)
c. Work-in-progress (Valued at Actual Process Cost)

d. Finished goods (Valued at Lower of cost or NRV)
Manufactured Products
Social Marketing Products
Trading Products
Goods-in-transit

e. General Stores and Consumables (Valued at cost)

f.  Other materials, machinery, spare parts, building materials
etc. (Valued at cost)

g. Tools revalued & certified by management

h. Others
Scrapped/Surplus Assets (at lesser of cost or net realisable value)
Gift items (at cost)
Stationery (at cost)

Less:Closing Provision for Obsolete Stock
Total

Annual Report 2014-2015
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AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

56.00
27.80
544.35
4,000.00
4,628.15

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

2,266.55
2,266.55
998.42
998.42
1499.93
1499.93

2,510.20
36.79
1,338.45
23.96
3,909.40
95.80
95.80

1,232.30
1,232.30
511
511

28.89
105.21
65.68
199.78
10,207.29
89.32
10,117.97

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

84.00
38.22
444.83

567.05

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

2,096.60
2,096.60
1,010.12
1,010.12
1,545.38
1,545.38

3,636.46
94.94
2,027.23
135.88
5,771.96
102.67
102.67

1,043.01
1,043.01
13.82
13.82

25.39
126.19
65.54
217.12
11,800.68
95.95
11,704.73
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 16 Trade receivables

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months
from the date they were due for payment
Secured, considered good* 965.62 80.40
Unsecured, considered good 40,959.08 30,304.31

41,924.70 30,384.71
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they were due for payment

Secured, considered good - 0.37
Unsecured, considered good 20,336.35 12,763.17
Considered doubtful 1,062.69 987.92
21,399.04 13,751.46

Less : Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1,062.69 987.92
20,336.35 12,763.54

Total 62,261.05 43,148.25

* secured against letter of credit, bank guarantee & customer deposit.

Note 17 Cash and cash equivalents

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
(A) Balances with banks

(i) (a) In Term Deposit accounts with less than 12 months maturity 257.12 234.39
(b) In Term Deposit accounts with more than 12 months maturity 228.83 200.00

(c) In Term Deposits held for margin money for borrowings and
guarantee 0.28 0.27
(ii) In Current Accounts 788.18 991,62
(iii) In EE Foreign Currency accounts 47.74 13.74
(B) Cash/stamps on hand 11.62 12.78
Total 1,333.77 1,452.80
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 18 Short-term loans and advances

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Security deposits & EMD 350.46 328.87
Secured, considered good - -
Sub Total 350.46 328.87
(b) Loans and advances to employees
Secured, considered good 17.65 17.62
Unsecured, considered good 372.57 358.94
Considered Doubtful 1.17 1.17
391.39 377.73
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 1.17 1.17
Sub Total 390.22 376.56
(c) Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, considered good 180.02 177.62
180.02 177.62
(d) Balances with government authorities
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Advance Income Tax 814.82 929.58
(i) Sales Tax Advances 2.05 4.39
816.87 933.97
(e) Others (Advance to creditors, deposit to various agencies etc.)
Secured, considered good 148.94 837.17
Unsecured, considered good 5,375.34 7,337.73
Considered Doubtful 1,017.53 440.79
6,541.81 8,615.69
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 1,017.53 440.79
Sub Total 5,524.28 8,714.90
Total 7,261.85 9,991.92
Note : Short-term loans and advances include amounts due from :
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
Directors 0.40 0.52
Other officers of the Company 53.19 88.45
53.59 88.97
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Note 19 Other current assets

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

3 lacs 3 lacs

(a) Accruals
(i) Interest accrued on FDR 0.16 0.22
0.16 0.22

(b) Others

(i) Receivables from NACO Project - 126.41
(i) Export Incentives/Duty Draw back 262.84 257.82
(iii) Asset Under Insurance Claim 245.31 -
(iv) Forward Contract Premium Receivable 25.38 -
533.53 384.23
Total 533.69 384.45

Annual Report 2014-2015
189



A

fafaes

I CACATH FTSHHAT
Y 4 e difgt & for s

fewolt : 20 aR=Te™ @ wIoTE™

233

<)

RIS RCE]
REISIRCARCEA]
Sh ¥ AT

=T YTl o

SIS

farea=or

el o [ § e §
RIS STET @ faw@t
TIRIRET TG DI ey
AT fauor SeTel @ famt
YUR IS AR =T BT et
ol IR I1E 39S
AT ghg gTa

ARge THFRITS

HeH

=ad R

|9 AN

Jansil & foem

Sh A MY

I YT ToiNd

P AN

I YT YIS S &

YT B T IS T DI AN

TS o TR dicared

Heell R AT #F ot ) dicdres s9eTe
e Ge/Yed g/ frata deares

& AT, & b 3R o1 fafdy #A-i @t fawt
ffaer wrt @t famt

o

e ufedes 2014-2015

190

31.03.2015 @&l
T 9
T ol |
80904 73
6,158 .21
15,096 .00
427976
1,06,438 .70

633.74
1,05,804 .96

31.03.2015 &l
T 99
T ol §

43316 .43
2172977
1,034.75
14,522 82
300.96

80,904.73
6,168 .21
15,096.00
4279.76
1,06,438.70

2,692 .21
122 54
522 .54
389 .89
490 .67

61.93

4,279.78

31.03.2014 &I
T
T ol |
68,404 21
5,410.69
17,948 86
296278
94 726 54

558.38
94,168.16

31.03.2014 &l
T 99
T orEl |

38,437 .13
16,090.37
1,880.95
11,616.20
262 .58

(5.43)
95 04
2736

68,404 21

5,410.70

17.948 86

296278
94,726 .54

1,648 42
58 27
419.02
341.73
428 .65
66.69
2,962.78



4
yr

Note 20 Revenue from operations

@)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

Note

(i)

Particulars

Sale of products

Sale of services

Income from Contract
Other operating revenues

Less :
Excise duty

Total

Particulars

Sale of products comprises

Sale of Contraceptive Products
Sale of Healthcare Products

Sale of Social Marketing Products
Sale of Trading Products and Others
Product subsidy on saheli

Cost Escalation Claims

Oral Contraceptives

Copper-T

Tubal Ring

Sub Total

Sale of services

Income from Contract

Other operating revenues

Grand Total

Other operating revenues comprise :

Cost of free sample supplied

Incentive on Social Marketing

Promotional Subsidy on Saheli and Novex sales
Duty Rebate/Duty drawback/Other export incentives
Sale of scrap, waste condoms and other misc. items
Sale of tender form

Total
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

80,904.73
6,158.21
15,096.00
4,279.76
1,06,438.70

633.74
1,05,804.96

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

43,316.43
21,729.77
1,034.75
14,522.82
300.96

80,904.73
6.158.21
15,096.00
4,279.76
1,06,438.70

2,692.21
122.54
522.54
389.89
490.67

61.93

4,279.78

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

68,404.21
5,410.69
17,948.86
2,962.78
94,726.54

558.38
94,168.16

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

38,437.13
16,090.37
1,880.95
11,616.20
262.58

(5.43)
95.04
27.36
68,404.21
5,410.70
17,948.86
2,962.78

94,726.54

1,648.42
58.27
419.02
341.73
428.65
66.69
2,962.78
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HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 21 Other income

(a)
(b)

Note

(i)

(ii)

Particulars

Interest income (Refer Note (i) below)
Other non-operating income (Refer Note (ii) below)
Total

Particulars

Interest income comprises :
Interest from banks on :
a) On short term deposit
b) On Others
Total - Interest income
Other non-operating income comprises :
Rental income from Staff quarters
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Insurance claims
Excess provision / credits written back
Lease rent
Other Misc. Income

Total - Other non-operating income
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Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

103.64
294.73
398.37

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

5.63
98.01
103.64

3.58
4.52
1.73
44.58
47.09
193.23
294.73

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

324.92
875.75
1,200.67

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

295.18
29.74
324.92

2.66
22.54
525
424.96
48.57
371.77
875.75
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 22 Cost of materials consumed

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs % lacs
Opening stock 3,106.72 2,999.14
Add : Purchases 20,744.05 19,506.75
23,850.77 22,505.89
Less : Closing stock 3,264.97 3,106.72

Cost of material consumed 20,585.80 19,399.17

Materials consumed comprises :

Raw Materials 10,985.44 11,236.30
Chemicals 3,015.11 2,610.13
Packing Materials 5,862.72 5,077.21
Cost of quality and Sub contract expense 722.53 475.53

Total 20,585.80 19,399.17

Note 23 Purchases of Stock-in-trade

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
Trading Products 18,968.34 14,183.58
Social Marketing Branded Products 2,012.93 1,443.78
Total 20,981.27 15,627.36

Note 24 Changes in inventories of finished goods, and work-in-progress

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs

Inventories at the end of the year :

Finished goods 3,909.40 5,771.96
Work-in-progress 1,499.93 1,545.38
5,409.33 7,317.34

Inventories at the beginning of the year :
Finished goods 5,771.96 4,617.47
Work-in-progress 1,545.38 1,794.56
7,317.34 6,412.03
Net (Increase) / decrease 1,908.01 (905.31)
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Note 25 Employee benefits expense

Particulars

(a) Salaries and incentives
(b) Contribution to -
Provident fund
New pension scheme
Gratuity fund contributions
Earned Leave Fund
Contribution to ESI

(c) Staff welfare expenses

Note 26 Finance costs

Particulars

(a) Interest expense on :
(i) Cash Credit
(i) Term Loan

(b) Other borrowing costs

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

11,140.12

1,080.50
173.07
653.64
209.75

47.38

1,372.68

Total 14,677.14

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

2,290.85
223.74
79.75

Total 2,594.34
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Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

10,223.42

964.80
150.78
515.91
175.18
53.58
1,398.26
13,481.93

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

1,539.71
98.17
202.47
1,840.35
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 27 Other expenses

Particulars

Advertisement & Publicity and Sales Promotion Expenses

Power & fuel charges

Freight & Other Selling Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance

Other Production expenses

Wages to Contract Labourers
Consultancy & Service Charges

Free sample distribution

Miscellaneous Expenses

Provision for bad & doubtful debts/Advances
Repairs & Maintenance Machinery
Postage & Telegram, Telephone
Research & Development Expenses
Corporate R & D Centre Expenses
Rent

Printing & Stationery

Repairs & maintenance of other assets
Water charges

Insurance charges

Bank charges

Exchange Fluctuation

Staff recruitment expenses

Rates & Taxes

Provision for obsolete stores written off
Provision for Disputed Liabilities

Book value of obsolete assets/stores written off
Training program expenses

Repairs & Maintenance of buildings
Bad debt & advances written off
Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below)
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets

Loss on sale of scrapped assets

Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
Royalty paid

Donation

Prior period items (net) (Refer Note (ii) below)

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

4,891.60
3,902.48
3,299.56
1,723.35
1,870.69
1,654.40
2,395.24
2,749.21
1006.15
813.41
492.44
357.60
35.07
656.79
297.44
220.46
164.90
174.13
210.85
85.20
305.57
64.91
139.93
12.61
85.60
108.62
200.43
28.06
18.50
4.40
14.23

132.05
4.75

0.25
(20.84)
Total 28,100.04
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Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

4,815.61
3,907.26
3,299.95
1,790.08
1,753.76
1,684.76
1,192.14
1,733.97
868.04
254.09
401.68
342.45
2.56
480.25
415.91
236.27
115.23
139.92
172.91
178.71
1,086.91
97.71
118.72
41.88
2.55
43.98
93.48
144.04
236.23
16.00
2.70

97.28

0.11
(15.91)
25,751.23
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Note 27 Other expenses (Contd.)

! 4
4

Particulars

(i) Payments to the auditors comprises

Audit fees
Tax Audit fees
Audit expenses

(i) Details of Prior period items (net)
Prior period income
Other Income

Prior period expenses
Administrative Expenses

Prior period items (net)

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Total

Total

Total
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Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

13.50
2.00
3.00

18.50

43.21
43.21

22.37
22.37

(20.84)

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

11.50
1.50
3.00

16.00

72.90
72.90

56.99
56.99

(15.91)
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HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 28 : Additional Information to the Financial Statement

A. Value of Imports (CIF)

Particulars

Raw Materials
Components and Spares
Capital Goods

Finished Products

B. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars

Travelling

Service Charges

Sales Promotion Expenses
Freight and Clearing expenses
Interest and other charges

C. Earning in Foreign Exchange

Particulars

Export Sales / Samples (FOB Value)

Freight & Insurance
Others

D. Remuneration to Directors

Particulars

Salary

P.F. Contribution

Contributory Pension Contribution
Perquisites

Total

The Gratuity & Earned leave Liability are funded through Group Scheme of LIC of India. As such the premium

Total

Total

Total

is not ascertainable on individual basis and hence not included.

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal
Chairman Director (Finance)

& Managing Director [DIN: 00388355]
[DIN: 00117374]

Trivandrum
10.07.2015

P. Sreekumar

& SVP (HR)
[FCS: 5875]

R. Ganesan

[FCA: 26723]
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2014-15
3 in lacs
2,658.67
171.71
1,265.60
8,793.87
12.889.85

2014-15
Zinlacs
76.01
25.57
672.14
676.45
212.99
1,663.16

2014-15
3 in lacs

13,552.31
1,105.71

14,658.01

2014-15
Zinlacs
104.62
9.88
1.71
48.33
164.54

2013-14
3 in lacs
1,782.66

106.61

604.72
6,469.10
8,963.09

2013-14

Zinlacs
80.36
301.54
304.10
228.25
194.85
1,109.10

2013-14
Zin lacs

12,409.53
809.70
15.01
12,874.23

2013-14
Zinlacs
76.29
7.32
1.41
42.04
127.05

Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S

CA. Jose Pottokaran
Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO Partner
Membership No : 012056
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B 1L Lifecare Limited

l f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Notes forming part of the financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015

SI.No.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Particulars

Corporate information

HLL Lifecare Limited, incorporated in the year 1966, is a Mini Ratna Enterprise, fully owned by
Government of India, domiciled in India and governed by the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. HLL Lifecare Ltd was converted into a Public Limited Company with effect from 21st February
2012. The company is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of a range of Contraceptive
products, Hospital products, Women Health Pharma products, providing Consultancy &Contract
services for healthcare infrastructure , Procurement and Diagnostic services. The company caters
to both domestic and international markets.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 besides the pronouncements/guidelines of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and
under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial
statements are consistent with those of previous years, unless specified separately.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, requires the Management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent
liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Future results could differ due to changes in these estimates and the difference between the
actual results and the estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known /
materialized.

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all incidental
expenditure net of CENVAT credit wherever applicable. Revenue expenses incurred for
identification of new projects/ new line of businesses are treated as capital work in progress. This
will be absorbed into the project cost in the first year of commencing the business. If the new
project/ new line of business do not materialize within a period of three financial years, the entire
expenses shall be charged to Revenue in the 3™ year. The cost of fixed assets includes interest
on borrowings (calculated at the weighted average rates) and administrative expenses specifically
attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets. Expenditure during construction period is included
under capital work-in-progress and the same is allocated to the respective fixed assets on the
completion of construction. In respect of Pharmaceutical manufacturing facility, expenditure
incurred are included under Capital Work in Progress till the validation process is completed.

Intangible Asset

a) Cost of computer software and License fee incurred from 1.4.2003 are classified as intangible
assets.

Trade Mark Expenses

Expenses incurred on trade mark registrations will be treated as Capital work in progress and will
be capitalized under ‘intangible assets’ when licenses are received. Subsequent expenditure
incurred on licences which is already capitalized will be recognized as revenue expenses in the
period in which such expenses are incurred.
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Method of depreciation/Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets has been made in line with the requirement under Schedule Il of
the Companies Act 2013. Further, Depreciation has been charged on straight line method for all
assets under Plant & Machinery and written down value method for other assets (except intangible
asset and lease hold assets) so as to write off the cost of the assets after retaining residual value
of 5% of the cost, over the useful lives of the assets prescribed in the Act, except for those assets
whose useful lives are determined based on any technical advice.With respect to Leasehold Assets,
depreciation/amortization has been charged on straight line method over the primary period of
lease or over the specified period, whichever is shorter. Depreciation/amortization in respect of
leasehold improvements is provided on the straight line method over the primary period of the
lease.The cost of computer software other than ERP Software Solution is amortized equally over
a period of 3 years , whereas ERP software solution is amortized over a period of 8 years on pro-
rata basis. License fee paid is amortized equally over the agreement period.Additions to Fixed
Assets from 01.04.1993, costing ¥5000/- each or less are fully depreciated, irrespective of the
date of addition.Machinery spares acquired with the equipment are depreciated using the same
rates and method applicable for the original machinery. In the case of Machinery spares procured
separately for future use, rate equivalent to accumulated depreciation for the expired life of the
relative machinery are charged in the year of acquisition along with depreciation for the year.Trade
Mark expenses shall be amortized over a period of 5 years from the date of recognition of intangible
asset.

Leases

Fixed Assets acquired and given on lease are shown as part of fixed assets. Lease rental income
is accounted on accrual basis.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of assets is recognized when there is an indication of Impairment. On such indication
the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and if such estimation is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary, if any.
Inventories

The weighted average formula is used for the valuation of raw materials, stores and spares. Work-
in-progress, materials in transit/under inspection is carried at actual process cost. Unused Loose
Tools are revalued every year taking into account the useful life of the tools and carried at the
revalued cost. Finished goods manufactured/goods purchased for trading are valued at lower of
cost/net realizable value, including excise duty, wherever applicable. Manufactured / traded finished
goods in stock whose shelf life expires within three months from the Balance Sheet date are taken
at NIL value.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated based on audited financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Sales comprise of value of sale of goods (net of returns) excluding sales tax and discounts but
including excise duty. Insurance claims are accounted on receipt basis. Interest on investments is
booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the fixed rate of
interest. Revenue from services business isrecognized on accrual basis. Revenues
from maintenance contracts are recognized pro rata over the period of the contract. Revenue from
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Infrastructure - development division and Procurement Consultancy division related activities are
recognized as follows:

a) In case of turnkey contracts ,on the basis of progress billing to the contract value under survey
method.

b) In the case of other contracts, on the basis of completion of obligation as per the terms of
contract with the agencies concerned.

Other Operating Revenues

The revenue against realization of waste latex, empty drums, rejected products and other scrap
items are accounted on cash basis.Duty drawback/export incentive in respect of export sales are
accounted in the year of export. The realization in respect of obsolete assets/materials written off
is accounted on cash basis.

Other Income

Interest income if any for delayed realization from sundry debtors as stipulated in invoices is not
recognized, unless realized. Income other than the above are accounted on accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign exchange are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transactions. Foreign currency receivables/payables are translated at the exchange rates as on
the Balance Sheet date. Gain or losses arising out of such transactions are adjusted to the statement
of Profit and Loss. Premium or discount on foreign exchange forward contracts booked for hedging
existing assets/liabilities are amortised and recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the
period of the contract. Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding as at the year end on
account of firm commitment transactions are marked to market and the losses, if any are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss and gains are ignored in accordance with the announcement of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting of Derivatives issued in March 2008.

Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences on translation or settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items
(i.e., whose term of settlement exceeds twelve months from the date of its origination) at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded or reported in the previous financial
statements, in so far as it relates to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to the cost of
the assets as per GOI notification dated 31.03.2009 and 29.12.2011 and this will be amortized
over the remaining life of the Asset.

Government grants

Grants in the form of investment subsidy are credited to separate reserve.b) Revenue grants/
subsidy (other than product subsidy) relating to sales are disclosed separately under other operating
revenues, whereas product subsidy are disclosed under sales and services.

Employee benefits

a) Gratuity and Leave Encashment The Gratuity liability and Leave Encashment liabilities are
determined under separate group schemes maintained with LIC of India. The liabilities towards
these schemes are estimated yearly, based on actuarial valuation.

b) Voluntary Retirement Benefits

The entire liability on account of payments under VRS, if any is charged off to the Profit and Loss
Account in the same year.

c) Post Employment Medical Benefits

The Employees (including their spouse) on the rolls of the Company from 01.07.2005 are
covered under Group Medical Insurance Scheme of M/s National Insurance Company Ltd.
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d) Bonus/ Performance Related Payment

Provision for bonus for the employees is made on the basis of Productivity Linked Incentive Scheme
as per the Long Term Agreement entered into with the recognized trade unions. Executives at the
Board level and below the Board level are covered for Performance Related Pay (PRP) as per the
guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprise.

e) Pension Scheme

Company has introduced a contributory pension scheme from 1-4-2011 for the permanent
employees who are on the rolls of the company as on 9-10-2012. Company contributes 3% of
basic plus DA with a matching contribution from employees. The pension scheme is managed by
LIC of India.

f) Encashment of Half Pay Leave on Superannuation

Company has introduced (w.e.f 15.05.2014) the facility of encashment of Half Pay leave to the
permanent employees at the time of superannuation, subject to an overall ceiling of 300 days
along with Earned Leave. The liability towards the same has been estimated and provided for in
the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

The borrowing cost incurred / attributable to the acquisition for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset is capitalized. Interest on loan taken specifically for the acquiring assets and the interest
thereon are proportionately allocated to respective assets based on asset value.

Segment reporting

The Company has identified its reportable segments for Segment Reporting, in accordance with
Accounting Standard 17, as Contraceptive Products, Healthcare Products, Trading Products,
Services and Contracts which are the primary groups. In addition, the following specific accounting
policies have been followed for Segment Reporting.

(a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the
segment, including inter segment revenue.

(b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allocable to segments are considered for determining
the segment results. Expenses which relate to the company as a whole and not allocable to
segments are included under “Unallocable expenditure”.

(c) Income which relatesto the company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
“Unallocable Income”.

(d) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable Corporate assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the
company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

Taxes on income

Provision for current Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting
period in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961Deferred Tax resulting from
timing difference between book and taxable profit for the year is accounted for using the Tax rates
and laws that are applicable as on the Balance sheet Date .The deferred Tax asset is recognized
and carried forward only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization in
future.Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the provisionsof Income Tax Act
1961, which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax
liability, is considered as asset in the balance sheet.

Research and development expenses

Capital expenditure on Research and Development is treated in the same manner as Fixed Assets.
The revenue expenditure on Research and development is charged off in the year in which it is
incurred.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not
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discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle
the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately.
Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statement.

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses of items of ¥10000/- each and below are charged off to the revenue.
Prior Period Expenses/Income

Income and expenditure relating to prior period exceeding T 25000/- in each case only is accounted
under prior period.

General Stores/Spares/ Raw Materials/ Finished Products

The provision for loss if any in respect of slow moving items of materials/finished products are
accounted after obtaining the technical opinion regarding the usability/marketability.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, 12 months has been considered by the Company for the purpose of
current or non-current classification of assets and Liabilities.

EXPLANATORY/ CLARIFICATORY NOTES

Authorized Share capital of the Company was increased from 320 Cr to ¥ 300 Cr during the year
2012-13. The expenditure amounting Rs.140 Lacsincurred towards the same is amortized over a
period of five years.

Board of Directors in the 242" Board meeting held on 8th November 2013 had approved sub-
division of the face value of its equity shares from I1000/- each to ¥10/- each. Approval of the
Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Govt. of India was also obtained vide O.M.No.F.No.A-45013/
77/2010-HLL dated 12th March 2014. The shareholders approval was received in the 48" Annual
General Meeting held on 28" August 2014.

Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development [MSMED] Act,
2006 are as under :

(X in lacs)

Sl 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
No.
(@)  The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end

of the year. 238.53 275.23
(b)  The delayed payments of principal amount paid

beyond the appointed date during the year. Nil Nil
c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the

MSMED Act . Nil Nil
(d)  Normal interest due and payable during the year,

for all the delayed payments, as per the agreed terms. Nil Nil
(e) Total interest accrued during the year and remaining

unpaid . Nil Nil

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified onthebasis
of information available with the Company.
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P SR, G4 FIF UG AARAT & (TU HeIBRT M B IRIPT el 1 Ugid H et & T 8 3R
[T 3=y IRFURTAT & T BRI Hod FoTell U=l € | 1 H 59 gaad & BRI, YeIui™ 4o Bl
AT frar a1 2 3R o auf & dRM @y 97059 g & AfRe Jeus fay #&l’ &
S o 7 B f4aRor H ST {61 71 8 | U8l & elich il bl e bR 01.04 2014 T &t
aRefuRial & fog arq] ad & Jeusm™, ¥1176.16 &g & ufad ¥1576.37 &Rg &Y 1Y & | SR
S &b BRI, 9 &b [y o 340021 g dF 98 1T © [ARFURT & IR R srara
SaFalel bul AfFTH 2013 @1 Al Il & AR A Sia-idlel H AMET & BRI
01.04.2014 &I FH1TwT g1 1, ¥239 41 A & HoUsI H daold &I AAR fIRIY #al' & 37efT a4
g BT faaRoT H ST S 2

BT STETRIH 2013 B g VI 6 AR, I500 HRIS AT IAH 3186 & aet e a1 31000 FRrs
T AN NP & YRGS AT I5 BRI AT S 3D & el SATaTel 8% HU-, I T TR (BraRe
HMEITS TRIERY) B 3R Teablel iF gaaa! [axiig auf & fael omd & i & $F I HF 2% T
PR D AR © | TSTAR HUT Bl Al T 3R D 3R @7 a9 &b a1 I50.88 TR Y2 T
2| wifafre sriemsll & gd, bt Ardwie e AW gRT SR feenfdei & orgeR ot T SR
HRIBATIT BT FATAT B Y&l § | Hu 7 a9 2014-15 & forg 1 791 3R R 13205 &g ( ¥36.86
TG & ¥ TN 3R IIRRT | SUetel YhH Wied) @d fhar 2|

Aps i Aps d ved Pl
(Tom@) fear sng (o)

(R =m@)
() fosar oft uR<ufr & frmtor/srfimEo 38.09 12 98 51.07
(i) ST (i) b AATT P ILLAT W 80.18 0.80 80.98
P 118.27 13.78 132 .05
9T 2RIR H Td BT AIF
31-03-2015 31-03-2014
raa o @1 ofer T orai |
19 g B1M & R0 & AR &R & d1e oY 31565.14 2570.77
fEIfAmeR-a¥ & SR 61T AT AR & JARIAT Al
AR DI FHT- JoI & Bl 193535000 193535000
3ot Ufd 2R (%)
o (uf TR %10/-a1 sifrd o) 163 1.33%
TedI(UfT TR ¥10/-31 =i qou) 1.63 1 88%
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Matured fixed deposit of ¥10000/- has not been paid due to dispute in claim from the legal heirs of
the deceased deposit holder. Interest does not accrue beyond maturity date and hence not
provided for.

The Company had received from M/s. Female Health Company (UK) equipment’s valuing ¥ 89.27
Lakhs on loan basis for the manufacture of female condom FC2 Nitrile version at its unit located in
Cochin Export Processing Zone. No accounting entries have been passed as the property & title
of the equipment supplied vests with M/s. Female Health Company, U.K. Further, rental charges
on the said assets are recognized on actual utilization basis.

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year is ¥154.64 lakhs (Previous Year is ¥158.28 lacs)

The company has revised its policy of providing depreciation on fixed assets effective 1st April
2014. Hitherto, depreciation had been charged on its Plant & Machineries either on straight line
method or on written down method. During the year, the method of charging depreciation for all
Plant & Machineries have been changed to straight line method and for all other class of assets,
written down value method has been adopted. Due to this change in policy, the depreciation
charge has been reworked and the excess depreciation charged during the earlier years amounting
to ¥970.59Lacs has been credited to the statement of profit and loss under ‘Exceptional Items’.
Had the earlier accounting policy been followed, the depreciation for the current year for assets as
on 01.04.2014,would have been ¥1576.37 Lacs as against ¥ 1176.16Lacs charged. Due to the
above change, the profits for the year have gone up by ¥ 400.21Lacs. As regards assets whose
useful life had expired as on 01-04-2014 on account of the revision in useful life pursuant to
Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013, the impact of change in depreciation amounting ¥ 239.41
Lacs is charged off to the statement of Profit and Loss under ‘Exceptional Items’.

As per Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, every company with networth of ¥500 Cr or
more, or with a turnover 1000 Cr or more or having a net profit of ¥5 Cr or more is required to
spend at least 2% of the average net profits of three immediately preceding financial years towards
CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility). Accordingly the Company is to earmark I 50.88 lakhs
during the current year towards CSR. Prior to the statutory requirement, the Company has been
carrying on CSR activities as per the guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprises.
The Company has spent ¥132.05 lakhs (including amount available from CSR reserve of 336.86
lakhs) on CSR for the year 2014-15 .

In cash Yet to be Total
(lacs) paid in cash (Rlacs)
(Zlacs)
(i) Construction/acquisition
of any asset 38.09 12.98 51.07
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 80.18 0.80 80.98
Total 118.27 13.78 132.05
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share *
31.03.2015 31-03-2014
Numerator Net Profit %. In Lacs
Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 3155.14 2570.77
Denominator- Average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year
No. of Shares - Basic & Diluted 193535000 193535000
Earnings per share (Rs)
Basic (Face Value of ¥ 10/- per share) 1.63 1.33*
Diluted (Face Value of ¥ 10/- per share) 1.63 1.33*
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* 28 ST 2014 | HUN &b AT AAR BT 3ifehad Jeg b1 T1000/- A T TR 10/~ H T A1
fepam 1 & | orar /e 20 - 375t Ui R (3 Ul TH) b AguTeld |, DUl o gl Jare & forg
3 9T IR BT TUET H IR &b S7h SU-fAHTS Bl 376! aE A g9 o B

FfAT uTef oI & g # gdhcaRvT 3R e Rulféar smaer srgee 1 & 11 # R Py 9 £
1 e # Jarfaiy & a8 & afsea e & forg ve fafee a9 hifm @0 foag e o |
Y & SR WS JAMGRT ASHT Bl AR BIg FERAN &1 o |

HRA & Al AWBR & WA b [GR9e AATBDR ARART BT 1T & AR eI -93 H DUl gRT fog
Y RIHS G &b AV DI AT 3R AT SIATAT b T Dil HG &b wY H Jebed (b T & | y1ao7
IR, srasvem faem aRasHN, aREURET ok e R - 11 # gae @t Skl

FHARY BRI

®) SUSH

Al yhe1/qatga= 31-3-2015 31-3-2014
EEIE 8% 8%

994 afg 5% 5%

= e (% @i #) 4043 17 3497 23
qoI fafy e g gfere gfie
YR ot YR ot YR fafdr
JTERVT X 1%d 3 % dH 1%d 3 % dBb
IR & IR W 3R & AR W 3R & AR W
e (% i ) 4654 73 3997 05
& ® 7T yrag (¥ gl §) 626.32 515.35
R 3rfora &amoT (3 Tt #) 31976 279 84
JUGH & oIy Hut T 10 10

qu U T & el iy

HHART BT dHTHG IR T @i H) 10 10

Q) gee! R

Al yhe1/qatgA= 31-3-2015 31-3-2014
gg] X 8% 8%

9 gig 5% 5%

Y o (T @ #) 1265 87 1066.70
et Py s e e e
YR ot YR ot YR fafdr
JTERVT X 1% | 3 % d& 1% ¥ 3% TP
IR & IR W IR & IR W 3R & AR W
I (JUY Al H) 1474 92 1241 41
T2 H graT yrag (¥ orai H) 209.75 17525
ar<ifa® s1fora =t (3 ol #) 99 .31 85.76
ST wel & forw ot e 300 fe= 300 fe=
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* With effect from 28" August 2014, the face value of Company’s Equity shares has been sub-
divided from‘1000/- to ¥10/- each . In compliance with Accounting Standard 20 — Earnings Per
Share (EPS), the Company has given effect to the said sub-division of shares in computing the
earnings per share for comparative period as well.

Disclosure in respect of Related Party transactions and Segment Reporting are presented in
Annexure | & Il respectively.

Insurance premium includes instalment of medical insurance premium paid for post-retirement
medical benefits

During the year there was no payment towards voluntary retirement scheme.

The cash and bank balances held by the Company under trust and the corresponding liabilities
are disclosed as contra items in the Balance Sheet in accordance with the opinion of the Expert
Advisory Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Assets &Liabilities of
the Procurement Projects, & Infrastructure Development Projects are disclosed in Annexure lll.

Employee Benefits

a) Gratuity

The Fund disclosures/assumptions
Discount rate

Salary Escalation

Fund value (% Lacs)

Valuation Method

Credit method

Withdrawal rate

Depending on age

Valuation (% Lacs)

Provision made in the books (X Lacs)
Interest earned actual (3 Lacs)
Upper limit for Gratuity

Sum insured per employee under
Group Gratuity Policy (¥ Lacs)

b) Leave Encashment

The Fund disclosure/assumptions
Discount rate

Salary escalation

Fund value (% Lacs)

Valuation method

Credit method

Withdrawal rate

Depending on age

Valuation (% Lacs)

Provision made in books (X Lacs)
Interest earned actual (3 Lacs)

Upper limit for earned leave

31.03.2015
8%

5%
4043.17
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
4654.73
626.32
319.76
10

10

31.03.2015
8%

5%
1265.87
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
1474.92
209.75
99.31

300 days
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31.03.2014
8%

5%
3497.23
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
3997.05
5il5.25
279.84
10

10

31.03.2014
8%

5%
1066.70
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
1241.41
175.25
85.76

300 days
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IRT 13.80 &G 3IR J T SF 27 45 A (fUoel a¥ -3) & (el qa1 urar/<"=eRal &l ufiren & forg
31.03.2015 I <ifdd arIaT Sdl | g9 & SR HUT A BH Iiagdl 3 3R Big |l argaT fafHa S
el feran & |

BT o /19 2013 & R I400 g & URThel & g QRIYRHA, YRR, Rl H R 15 Wit
Rg$ Ui H FEOTE U ded [AFEIT e B BRI @, BIFT gRT ™ §RT ST (a1 o
SifrErEr @mTa ¥ 123.80 o (306 We) P ggmed 4y (01.03.2005 ¥ 90 gt % frw) ok 3479
Wb Hl. el 3R YR HebT= Afed 378 g Gigem R YR1 8 WR, 120 S2Tele] 37aq oy bei
P I B o [T SAUERT FAH b A AN, ARI T IUSBRVT A © | FURY gavayd & M
H Uofipd forar 2| dut @Y 3T TR GAE IR1 IR & fy ¥2409.19 o”g & AR {on &5 &1
Ed BTl © | TAH 14.07 2014 BI IR a1 o1 3R 9 WIF 4 i beq IA1G &Hd1 276 Tcid
e B | 99 & SR Hgut 997, IS U M Ioh < 1 Yohigd fhar 71 § SR s srfdifees
2013 & i+ fafféee S fafte auif & o= 2nfdrer fby 17 &1 T1148.62 org & A4 T wefi=)
3R ¥854 .49 TG & FHM Sl ARSI &b AN 8, Bl Tb11P! JeAihd &b AMIR W HAer 15 a9 iR
30 ¥l & Ih AFATT SigThIel R s & WU H SIS by Sl & |

TIAUATE R HHH IHHAT s, J UH U & §g § 50:50 AT WIRETRAT & |1 HYwh SeH <l & o
H BRaR) 2008 H HHH FATSHIBNT AW Uigde fAfcs o1 1fed fBam 11 2 | 39 1T %e 34
PIURT, G UH T o A1 9T b IRETRAT &1 FHSIKT b 2l P AR, TaUATe o HGeh e HU-]
BT AT AR YNl DI 3R X783 .42 ARI BT INTET T o1 | 9 WYh ITH Bl WRA & AR-UR HH
3TaTel AfTdl B Id oraiaret!, fhwrRI HIg TaTee &l & B & &g & |1 9131 T 5 |
g e el IRl b e § BIC 3HR (20 fRR) B IREH IudTall § JaTe BRal © | e,
R I sraret (R 8, o1 fifsanfes wxeror (uforeror Aftd), Ae1fe Ud B darg iR W@y e
e ¥} ST HaT HRd § | T ST 319 AT U< § 12 SRYATSA & FoRex Fefl 38 & | 31 A1
2015 &1 5@ 3 AT = 7 99 GRT 5T &, 3 STl <1 5 a9 GRT 6T & AR 2N 6 0dral = Jarel
F 4 99 g1 5T B | AIER WU § ol Wt sdTel e Aied & forg Fedr oraf wwt e g
FATSTHIBIT STl H HATS ATAITS TITTGT Bl gRT PR b oI 6 HRb dgd TR &)1 IR UG B
P PRV AT AT, TATel H dhgad WR SN BR & 1Y 5-7 a9 ol ST | 5-7 a9 YR Srureil
H, 6 el 99 2013-14 | A9 §91 & | SN TR R AY<h e & (i |l RaR GeR 8l 81
T | g ST Hu @ B e 4 aut & a1, ¥303.75 o (2011-12) | 3185 .23 &g (2012-
13) 9% ¥54 .20 oG (2013-14) H TR SR T | 98 & SR 12 3RYdrel § I 3 3RUTalt + Jrarer
14 RUIE @1 21 311, 3 3Afdd SRYATA! 1 g9 &b GR e of1d RUIC Bl &1 FG<h SeH bul < g9
2014-15 & fog 52 60 G &I A6He o¥ 3R T22 .86 &@ & g1f Ruic @t g1 31.03.2015
@1 dferd g1 702 .40 &g 8 SR W 81 & Tayeivel o1 AR I851.20 g & | 37t 2013 &
SR, TAQeIYe 3iR APHT -1 AT a¥ 12 5% AT 19T ol URA-1 fSdeR Bl Sii-arids iy
% ®U H 3R A1d (7) auf | FdaH sfdac! IR H 98 & foI 7 3125.00 &g @t 31feres fa<ia
TETIAT USTT &1 o | T8HNT SRYdTel avTd Aiedl TS U4 RIS BIRH, Gl H 316! avg d
ARIEAT DI TTE & 3R ARIST YaTs 31 (a1 71 2 | ATSHIBRT + aul 3 36T dis Jod SUTId BT
g 3R WYh IEH 78T T & Hod IR 91 & | SuYeh G Bl AR Pxep, TYeh S DUl H fdrer
P oI H IS PIg BHI 8, AT 98 Dol RATS TP DI & 3R AT Fdg BT A1 & 1 e & Jeu 4
HeTg BT 3R BIs Urae=ehxor 31 Jr 2015 T Jufda 8! 2 |

HUHT PI SRt 2008 | 430.10 UHs Y F1 ISR ¥, S WReA U4 IRAR He1oT HATS, R
PR & (2l & A o Po Rerr ey G (A vl S AR ATS), dAeAIrg A 99 auf B
eafy & oIy U wR adfed fam o | 10.02 2012 &I Ay Aeei+e a9 ars (0 ens ), o
AT, R ARBR D 966 § 397 310.12 axis (U7 Tdhs & fog 316.50 oIg &l <% 0 56 Tdhe
3R T U 32 I Y &) TR BIC UBTREI & 44 THs) & Hod & oI Yol JaiT diteiad (1S
a1 ) % HRATYT B IR DTeAUg H HUT b ABR &b 430.10 vabs A I 100 VS 3T o & fo1g
fawiRrer &t oY | 9 o1rg &t @ Ryl &1 a1 & & e |y (A < € ) gR srgeifed foan
AT 2 | e A AT 2012 H d onE @t RImIRE & IR Mg At T &6 WU o) & forg Aot
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Pending forward contracts as on 31.03.2015 for hedging Foreign Currency receivables/payables
amounts to EURO 13.80 lacs and USD 27.45 lacs. (Previous year : Nil). During the year the
company has not taken any forward exchange contracts towards firm commitments.

The Company, during March 2013, had acquired in auction by Canara Bank, Kochi, a Condom
manufacturing unit under construction, situated in the state owned Rubber Park at Irapuram,
Perumbavoor, Kerala, for a consideration of ¥400lacs. The cost of acquisition includes leasehold
plot of land (for 90 years from 01.03.2005) measuring 123.80 Ares (306 cents) and semi-finished
facility comprising of 3479 sq. metres of factory & administrative building and major part of the
plant, machineries and equipments required for production of 120 Min Pcs of male condoms,
when completed. The property is registered in the name of HLL. The Company has incurred
additional capital expenditure to the tune of ¥2409.19 Lakhs to complete the semi-finished facility.
The plant was commissioned on 14.07.2014 , and the augmented condom production capacity at
this plant is 276 M.Pcs.The entire investment ,initial& subsequent capital expenditure has been
capitalised during the year and included under different class of assets as specified under the
Companies Act 2013.The Plant & Machinery worth 31148.62 Lacs and Building worth ¥854.49
Lacs which were part of the acquisition are charged depreciation over their remaining useful lives
of 15 years and 30 years respectively based on technical evaluation.

M/s LifeSpring Hospitals Private Limited was formed in February 2008 as a Joint Venture entity
with 50:50 equity shareholding between HLL Lifecare Ltd. [HLL] and M/s Acumen Fund Inc., USA
[Acumen]. HLL had contributed ¥783.42 Lacs towards the equity Share Capital of the Joint Venture
Company, as per the terms of Shareholders agreement entered into with Acumen. This JV was
formed with the objective of providing High Quality, Affordable Maternal Health Care for Low-
Income Women across India. It operates small-sized (20 bed) maternity hospitals in the proximity
of urban slums. The hospitals also provide paediatric care (including immunisations), diagnostic
and pharmacy services, and health care education to the communities in which its hospitals are
located. Presently, the JV is running a cluster of 12 hospitals in Hyderabad. Among these, 3
hospital has completed 7 years, 3 have completed 5 years, remaining 6 have completed 4 years
of operations as on 31.03.2015. Normally for any hospital business models, the gestation period
is fairly long. As the services at LifeSpring Hospitals are offered at very affordable rates, aimed at
meeting social commitments, the gestation period may take 5-7 years to achieve breakeven level
in operations.Among the 5-7 year old hospitals, 6 hospitals are generating profits from 2013-14.
The JVs performance at the Enterprise level also has been steadily improving. The loss of the JV
Company has been steadily coming down since last 4 years, from ¥303.75 lacs (2011-12) to
3 185.23 lacs (2012-13) & ¥ 54.20 lacs (2013-14). Out of the 12 hospitals, 3 hospitals have
reported operating profit during the year. Further, 3 more hospitals have reported cash profits
during the year. The JV Company has reported a cash profit of ¥ 52.60 lakhs and Loss of
3 22.86lakhs for the year 2014-15.The cumulative loss as on 31.03.2015 is ¥ 1702.40lacs and
HLL'’s share of cumulative loss is ¥ 851.20 lacs .During April 2013, HLL and Acumen had provided
further financial assistance of ¥ 125.00 Lacs each to LifeSpring, in the form of Unsecured
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures carrying interest of 12.5% compounded per annum and
convertible to equity shares latest by seven (7) years. The net worth of the JV Company will
improve further on conversion of these debentures.Lifespring business model has been well
appreciated both in national and international forums and earned prestigious awards. Lifespring
has earned a good brand value over the years and the Joint Venture fetches good
valuation.Considering all the above, the diminution if any, in the carrying value of the investment in
the JV company is purely of temporary nature only and hence management is of the view that no
provisioning towards diminution in value of investment is required as on 31.03.2015.

The Company is in possession of 430.10 acres of land since January 2008, allotted on lease for a
period of 99 years from the Central Leprosy Teaching Research Institute (CLTRI), Tamil Nadu,
under directives from Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Govt. of India. The Public Investment
Board (PIB), Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India in its meeting held on 10.02.2012 had recommended
to earmark 100 acres of land out of the 430.10 acres in possession with the Company at
Chengalpattu for setting up of the Integrated Vaccine Complex (IVC), for a value of ¥10.12 crores
(56 acres @ ¥16.50 lacs per acre and 44 acres of hillock @ 32 lacs per acre).The recommendations
of the PIB are approved by the Cabinet Committee of Economic Affairs (CCEA). The Company in
March 2012 has formed a fully owned subsidiary company, M/s HLL Biotech Limited (HBL), for
setting up the IVC, in line with the PIB recommendations. As the legal formalities
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I TN BT, AU GAUe IS fafes (TF 91 UeT) ®l 9T g | GF & gt & 919 H 100
TS YT & AR BT BT STETRBATE YRT 81 S & BRI, B 74 20 HRaxt 2014 H 59 I
F o mga Bl TS 100 THe A 94 a6 & U $.1/- D R R G A A F T H ITIg WA 2 |
HIN & AIHR & 430.10 TS # 4 3.38 UHs qfH T1.00 & a1fies ugt wis & forg 36 anf &f safy
& oY ARYSTg 19 gafae et die &l Ug W o1 & | Jaid a9 2014-15 & SR I8 ol-a J41fad
T8 o T 7

19 |12 2014 I HUHl 1 IH TR AT FRID URHH & AR UR 700 <A1g & faR & forg #vid aran
USlarifead ok BHRgfcded fafiics(Sh T o vat) @t sfaac 2R IS & 74% =1fiat fear g1 St
Tt vt 999 € < ot fafice, wiar ReR &1 SusH & Syl w@nfita FEge o off ofk g fafag
BIHRfEdhel SaTal & faf-rmior ue faspt # o & | |ifafeed cifdai & drer ga< faemr IR =g fae &
R & w9 ¥ fe@man sirar g1 gfre 7 af 2013-14 & %299 46 @Rg f et 31.03.2015 &1 FH1w
ay & fgT182.19 &G & IR P Ul o9 RUIS fham &1

24391 9IS 9o H A1 P AFAIGT b AER WX, DU A JEERA [Ibr4, A Jae, o7 iRl g
<idg Ha Sl HaT{ Y& B b A BT HATeld B & fofg ¥50.00 A & i arr Yoft
& | 3 e 2014 B TAVATA $3h1 < A foAics 4 3§ U 100% w@ried Fag &1
Yot fRaT & | Ut =1 2R Goft &t 3R Tt ¥10/- % 50,000 |17 RERT @l =aT & 7 3R 99 k-
=1, e & Wy H g T g |

HRA ARBR 1 WY T GRAR HedToT HaTerd Bl fafdg TfRigs el & g & fog faie
26.08.2005 & A< 3R 30.08.2013 & HeNgd & FFAR a9 2005 H TaUad ol ‘Hied Jie
F wU H HINd far 21 $uHl T B THERIYS SdE(dhe, Hikge mifRIge Mmert, § W
M, BR-E1 3R gaal Re), d=41 <xe e &R Af e uferd @t ey f &=l 21 ‘Pied
g’ WR BIATe AT P AR, HAT Teblierd HiEd, Sl [Uoe 9y & gt 1 fHifder ax €, R a¥
P URY H TIATATS Bl ATYfeT ATQR <31 | 3 &x et ffaer ufbar & Ry S iy ad & SRM
FEiRT fHar ST | grefl wfshan & JRY FEiRT v 1 Jog, H31ed &1 99 & SRF gauayd &
JMYfT & forg oy & | fifaeT ufshar & SIRY vet 1 o iR & srma #, vaveye & amgfd & forg
3ifPd Hed MEROT SR BT AR AT d I AT & CRE HHITE Bl AT 47 HAGTT & AN
Td T IRAT D1 e a1 SIQn | e Yl & dag H, g9 2011-12 H 71 1yl siwd U FfaaT
TfshaT & ART FEiRT B SM A ofiR #3mery a¥ 2012-13, 2013-14 3R 2014-15 & SR Hgde
fafHTastl | ®Ig Wl 979l 7 {6y S & R, SHT Bl I7H a1 & SRF TIUaATd DI 3MYRIAT & oy
T BT b WU H geral fAr T 8 | ¥ b ARM HATG 7 &1 g9l & Y e 2012-13 &
2013-14 & oY Tavave 9 §Tg JAMYRIAT Bl Iferd Jod FEiRT B $I 3R TRE HHIEH 3R AR
U4 orar o (o #rer), QM1 &l dey fear g1 #3merd 7 SR SHIRH 3R AT U4 olam 9maT
ERT I BIS IR DI T5 RUIS & AER W 9 &l a8 & Y Yaged | big 41 W o7 FgiRd
&1 fpar 21 a9 & forw ger 1 fHifdeT &% o & FMeiRd 7 6y S & SR, §31erg ay 2014-15 &
oY YT BT 3R Tavavd &1 f3Q 1 Sifcht Heg &1 (ol Y fham ST & | ok afs dls anTd Jig/
o ferior g 8, @1 <+ aut & forg o # faar 718t vy oo € | MiRas mifRigs Mot & wdy
#, a9 2014-16 & SR MYfal a¥ 2013-14 F fFfaaT ufsean & IRY #=1ea gR1 FofRa e w®
faer forg 7Y € 3R arar 2014-15 & foQ #Hd gfe &t i 81 SR <1 &R goer R & w7t ),
gy 2014-15 & SR B 3MYRTAT BT a9 2013-14 Pl HATST §RT FEIRT R eI W a1 {6y Y
21 99 2014-15 & IRM BIWR I AR Taal (K79 & Y Myl sma i $9d «) B |

T <X fhe & Hey # Tauavd HATed BT UHATH MYTPR 21 9§ 2009-10 3R 2010-11 &
o HTer | §91Q WeY & JMMER WR, SR e 7 a9 2013 & SR AT Bl IR Bl 5 ITD!
RIS 3 I swa & w9 | 9 fbe & g I10/- & A1 SUGh BR Bl RIBIRET B oY | HATT
9 & & YTl & fory g9 2012-13 & SR AR B & A I9/- Bl &% UR F{H BIHd 3R 2013-
14 3R 2014-15 & o o] &= @ 10/~ Frad @1 ot | #3rera 7 a9 2011-12 9§ 2014-15 d&F
ol 4 9uf & oY aifdd Jou Fad &R & oy TR HHIH/AR olkdl AT 1 34T T A4 81
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of transfer of 100 acres of land in the name of HLL and in turn to HBL are yet to be completed, the
Company has, on 20thFebruary 2014, sub-leased the 100 acres identified for the purpose, in
favour of HBL @ 1/- for 94 years.3.38 Acres of land, out of 430.10 acres in possession, is to be
given on lease to Tamil Nadu State Electricity Board for a period of 36 years for an annual lease
rent of ¥ 1/- only. However this transaction has not been effected during 2014-15.

The Company, on 19th March,2014 has acquired 74% of the Equity Share Capital of M/s Goa
Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Limited (GAPL) for a consideration of* 700 lacs based on a due
diligence conducted on the company. GAPL was a wholly owned subsidiary company of M/s EDC
Limited , a Govt. of Goa undertaking and is engaged in the manufacturing & selling of various
pharmaceuticals products. The consideration paid together with statutory levies is shown as part
of noncurrent investments. The unit has reported a profit before tax of ¥182.19 lacs for the year
ended 31.03.2015 as against 3 299.46 lacs during 2013-14.

Based on the Approval of the Board in its 243 Meeting, the Company has registered a 100%
owned subsidiary by name “ HLL Infra Tech Services Limited” on 3" April 2014 with an authorised
equity capital of ¥50.00 Lacs to carry on the business of providing services namely Infrastructure
Development, Facilities Management, Procurement Consultancy and allied services. The Company
has subscribed to 50,000 Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each towards the share capital and same is
shown as part of non-current investments.

Govt. of India has declared HLL as “captive unit” in 2005 vide order dated 26.08.2005 and
amendment dated the 30.08.2013 for the supply of various Contraceptive products to the Ministry
of Health & Family Welfare. The Company has been supplying Contraceptive products (Condoms,
Oral Contraceptive Pills, EC Pills, Copper-T and Tubal Rings) and also Pregnancy Test Kits and
Sanitary Napkins to the Ministry. As per the Cabinet order on “captive unit”, the Ministry shall
place the supply orders on HLL in the beginning of the year at the provisional prices which are the
L | tender rates of the previous year. The final rates will be determined during the same financial
year through an open tender process. The L1 price determined through the bidding process shall
be made applicable to HLL for its supplies during the year to the Ministry. In the absence of L1
price determination through tender process, reference shall be made either to Tariff Commission
of Ministry of commerce & Industry or Cost & Accounts Branch of the Ministry of Finance for
determining the fair price for the supplies from HLL.As regards Condoms supplies, the supply
prices were last determined in 2011-12 through a tender process and the same have been extended
as provisional prices for the supplies of HLL during the years 2012-13,2013-14 & 2014-15 as
Ministry could not do any procurement from private manufacturers for the said years. Ministry
during the year has made reference to both Tariff Commission & Cost and Accounts branch
(Ministry of Finance) to determine the fair price for supplies made from HLL for the two years i.e.,
2012-13 & 2013-14. Ministry has not determined any final price to HLL for these two years based
on the report if any submitted by Tariff Commission and Cost & Accounts Branch. Ministry is also
yet to decide the final price payable to HLL for supplies for the year 2014-15 as the L | tender
rates for the year is still to be determined. Hence, the cost escalation/pricing impact, if any, for the
3 years are not considered in the accounts. As regards Oral Contraceptive Pills, the supplies
during 2014-15 are billed at the price determined by the Ministry through tender process in 2013-
14 and hence the price for the year 2014-15 is yet to be firmed up. In the case of Copper-T and
Tubal Rings, the supplies during 2014-15 are hilled at the old price determined by the Ministry for
the year 2013-14. The supply prices for Cu-T and Tubal Rings for the year 2014-15 are at provisional
price.

In the case of Pregnancy Test Kit, HLL has been the sole supplier to the Ministry. Based on the
reference made from the Ministry for the years 2009-10 & 2010-11, Tariff Commission had
recommended 10/- per Kit plus applicable tax, as the reasonable price, in their report submitted
to Ministry during 2013. The Ministry had fixed provisional price @ 39/- plus applicable tax during
the years 2012-13 and and %10/- plus applicable tax for 2013-14 & 2014-15 for the PTK supplies.
The Ministry has so far not made a reference to Tariff Commission / Cost & Accounts Branch to fix
the fair price for the past 4 years from 2011-12 to 2014-15. Hence, Company has not considered
any additional cost escalation/pricing impact for the years , 2011-12 to 2014-15 in the accounts.
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The Ministry has also referred to Tariff Commission for determining the prices to be paid for Sanitary
Napkin supplies made during 2011-12 & 2012-13 . Tariff commission has submitted their report in
June 2014 indicating a higher price for HLL supplies. However Ministry is yet to decide on the
implementation of the Report and the final price payable to HLL. Hence the pricing benefit on the
same is not reckoned in the accounts.

The company has discontinued the leased condom manufacturing facility at Gajwel, Medak District
in Telengana w.e.f 30.06.2014 .

A fire occurred at Kakkanad Factory, Cochin unit of the Company on 14.02.2015. The Condom
Testing machine and the room housing the machine were completely gutted by the fire. The fire
did not spread to any other area and was contained within the Machine room. There was no injury
to any personnel during the fire accident. The machine was insured and the company has lodged
a claim with the National Insurance Company for ¥441.35lacs. The original cost of the assets lost
by fire and the damages to building is estimated at ¥428.59lacs comprising of Building of ‘24.82lacs,
Plant & Machinery of ¥403.87 lacs. The book value of the assets ¥245.31 lakhs is shown as “ Asset
under Insurance Claim” under Other Current Assets.Since the company anticipates the insurance
claim to be higher that the written down value, no provision has been made in the statement of
profit and loss for the year 2014-15.

Details of Contract Revenue and costs

 lacs)
31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Contract revenue recognised during

the year 13288.24 17,948.86
Aggregate of amount of costs incurred

upto reporting date 41565.39 33783.73
Recognized profits up to reporting date 15547.37 12553.80
Advances received for contracts in progress 57.07 13188.88

Retention money for contracts in progress--

Gross amount due from customers for contract work (asset) 19376.38 13671.63

The Public Investment Board (PIB), Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India in its meeting held on 10.02.2012
had given its recommendations for setting up of the Integrated Vaccine Complex (IVC), with an
investment of ‘594 crores, wherein the Equity portion shall be 3285 crores from Govt. of India. The
recommendations of the PIB were approved by the Cabinet Committee of Economic Affairs (CCEA)
and accordingly HLL had formed a fully owned Subsidiary Company, HLL Biotech Limited (HBL), in
line with the PIB recommendation. Govt. of India has been infusing funds into HLL for the investment
in Integrated Vaccine Complex and HLL in turn has been investing the same funds into the Equity
capital of HLL Biotech Limited. HLL had earlier received ‘178 crores in 2 installments, upto 31.03.2014,
for which Equity shares were issued to Govt. of India. Gol has released the 3rd installment of 40
crores in March 2015. The allotment of shares to Gol for 340 crores is completed in May 2015. As the
allotment of shares were pending as on the Balance Sheet date, the 3rd installment of 40 crores
received from Gol is disclosed as “Share application money pending allotment”. The 3rd installment
funds received were transferred to HLL Biotech Limited in March 2015 itself, as the investment from
HLL. As the shares from HBL were pending allotment as on 31.03.2015, the funds transferred are
disclosed as “Advance against investments” under “Non-current Assets”.

Pursuant to the Accounting Standard (AS-29)- Provisions,Contingent Liablities and Contingent
Assets, the disclosure relating to provisions made in the accounts for the year ended 31t March
2015 is as follows:
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® lacs)
Provision Provision for **Provision for
against Trade Loans and
Inventories* Receivables** Advances**
Year 14-15 13-14 14-15 13-14 14-15 13-14
Opening Balance 95.96 97.95 987.92 1094.99 441.96  457.46
Additions 23.15 47.29 210.05 125.27 620.94 4.74
Utilisations 3.65 0.00 130.61 49.69 44.20 11.49
Reversals 26.14 49.28 4.67 182.65 0.00 8.75
Closing Balance 89.32 95.96 1062.69 987.92 1018.70 441.96

* Provision created against obsolete inventories

** Provision created against receivables & loans and advances outstanding for
more than 3 years

2.27 Balance in Debtors, Creditors and loans and advances are subject to confirmation / reconciliation.
Receivable in Foreign Currency out of Export sales is subject to reconciliation and consequently
Foreign Currency Valuation gain or loss may vary.

2.28 Figures for the previous year have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary.
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ANNEXURE | - Referred to in Note No. 2.10
Disclosure in respect of related party pursuant to Accounting Standard 18

Description of relationship

Subsidiaries

Joint Venture
Associates
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Hindustan Latex
Family Planning
Promotion Trust
(A Trust under the
Travancore - Kochi
Literary Scientific,
CharitableSocieties
Regulation Act)

Name of Entity

Whether Control exist 100%
2014-15 2013-14
T lacs T lacs
i) Income
Sales 1,741.02 1,167.97
Sales Commission - -
Rental Income 39.58 40.00

Consultancy
Debenture Interest
ii) Expenses
Management Fee
Sales Promotion
Salaries & Allowances - =
Other expenses 10.00 =

iii) Assets
Sundry Debtors 634.57 463.38
Advances against
investments

Investment in Shares -

Investment in Debentures - -
iv) Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Names of related parties

HLL Biotech Ltd.

GAPL

HITES

Life Spring Hospitals Private Ltd.

Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust

Chairman & Managing Director
Director (Finance)

Director (Technical & Operations)
Director (Marketing)

Company Secretary & SVP (HR)

Dr. M. Ayyappan

Mr. R.P. Khandelwal
Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan
Dr. Babu Thomas
Mr. P. Sreekumar

Life Spring Hospitals  HLL Biotech Ltd. GAPL HITES (Wholly
Private Ltd. (Wholly owned owned
(A Company subsidiary of subsidiary of
fegistered under e HLL Lifecare HLL Lifecare
ndian Companies o L
Act, 1956) Limited) Limited
50% 100% 74% 100%
2014-15  2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14
¥ lacs ¥ lacs Tlacs RTlacs Tlacs Tlacs RTlacs  Rlacs
0.02
- - 60.62 42.52
17.38 15.63 - =
1.00
- - 232.07 78.26 685.81
47.82 32.22 - 78.78 - - 571 -

= 4,000.00
783.42  783.42 17,801.00 17,801.00 708.75 708.75 5.00 =
125.00  125.00 - - - = . -

40.83 -314.22 - - -

*Note: Managed through board of Trustees from HLL

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal
Chairman Director (Finance)
& Managing Director [DIN: 00388355]
[DIN: 00117374]

Trivandrum
10.07.2015

Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 000010S

P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Jose Pottokaran
Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO  Partner

& SVP (HR) [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 012056
[FCS: 5875]
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ANNEXURE Il - Referred to in Note No. 2.10
Disclosures under Accounting Standards-17 SEGMENT REPORTING

1. Primary Segment Information Particulars % lakhs

Segment Revenue Contraceptives Health Care Trading  Procurement Contract

and Services Total
Consultancy
Services
Net Sales & Services 46385.71  18,197.47 21,932.55 4,140.46 15,096.00 1,05,752.20
Other Unallocable Revenue 451.13
Total 1,06,203.33
Segment Results
Profit before Interest & Tax 5,061.72 157.52 (258.77) 1,201.10 3,237.82 9,399.39
Less: Interest 2,594.34
Less : Other Unallocable Expenditure 3,073.09
Prior period items (20.84)
Add : Other Unallocable Income 0.00
Profit before tax 3,752.79
Capital Employed
Allocated Fixed Assets (a) 16,102.28 7,399.94 283.82 1,912.34 0.00 25,698.38
Allocated Current Assets (b) 44,127.49  20,606.57 17,247.90 3,740.38 16,233.25 1,01,955.61
a+b 60,229.77 28,006.52 17,531.73 5,652.72 16,233.25 1,27,653.99
Allocated Current Liabilities 8,671.68 4,500.71  9,357.65 1,920.35 4,436.67  28,887.07
Capital Employed Allocation 51,558.09 23,505.80 8,174.07 3,732.37 11,796.58  98,766.92
Unallocable portion of Capital
Employed (69,707.95)
Total Capital Employed 29,058.97
2.Secondary Segment Information - Geographical Revenue
India 91,825.57
Outside India 14,377.76
1,06,203.33
Captial Employed
India 25,931.33
Outside India 3,127.64
29,058.97
For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached

For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S

Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Jose Pottokaran
Chairman Director (Finance) Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO Partner

& Managing Director [DIN: 00388355] & SVP (HR) [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 012056
[DIN: 00117374] [FCS: 5875]

Trivandrum

10.07.2015

Annual Report 2014-2015
235



wEEsgT fHiees
e difgt & for s

A
/ 4

/

66'690'9y G2 91G'/S 66'690'9F G2 91S /S
99' v 1029k 99'v 1029k
- SLSLE L - SL8LE LI
- G, /0C + - G/ 102}k
L2 9kL ¢6 LEL L2 OLL c6 LEL
GE 679 96 €¥¢ GE' 679 96 7S
- 6S 182 L - 69 182 |
¥Z ¢ 9g'¢ ¥Z ¢ 9g'¢
910 91’0 91’0 91’0
68 GCl 98 0¥ 68 Gcl 98 0¥
8¢€°29 7809 8¢€°29 7809
69 19¢ /16 999 6G 19¢ /6 999
6L LYy G Gvvy 6L LYy 14K
GG L) 6L 0k GG LLL 6L 0L
8¢ 9v' 0 8¢ oY’ 0
89 8¢ 0419 89 8¢ 0419
L7 759" | 02 /89 L7 759" L 02 /89
y80Le | 9090/L L v¥gOlct 90 90/ +
S’ €/8'0F €9 07¥' 8¢ €7 €/8 0 €9 0vt' 8¢
680 78 ¢ 680 8¢
[l 0g'¢ LG ¢ 0g'¢
/9991 L L¥e /9991 LE L¥e
90'8l¢ Lv' ¢6 90'8l¢ [R7AA)

v I-€102 SI-¥102 v I-€102 Sl-v10¢

Albkp
(& 2103)

DIBRD e IbRjhRAh | lkisleyh [fh BiRlbbbId (& GLOZ ‘Rl LE

66 690° 91
99 v

FLOLE
Ge 679
e ¢
910

68 GCl
8829
65 19¢
6l Ly
GG LLL
8¢
898G
RNt
veoLe t

ev'€.8 0v
680

LG'¢e
L9991
90'8l¢c

71-€10¢

b

G2 9LS' LS
2029l

ergLe Ll
G/, .02+
c6 L1
96 €7¢€
65 182"}
99'¢
910

98' 0¥
7809
/6999
7S Svy
6L 0k
97 0
019

0c /289
90°90Z" |

€907’ 8¢
8¢

05’ ¢

L L¥e
L' c6

SI-v10¢

8,€19'2 6 €ee'E

99’ 10°6E

- L' e

- 18°GLL

- Sk

= 60 €S

- 8.2

vZ2 95'¢e

gL o gL o

- (6 1)

- (vs1)

22 96 9/ 19

15 66 95 €01

2662 2662

8.2 9¥' 0

oV L& G2 09

28G9k 1128k

or' ez 61 8¢

95821 L 820292

680 ¥8'2

2022 vi'g

¥9°0 L2'S

71-€1L0¢ Sl-¥10¢
AbRb Bib e

IeRIh b

PRUIS | €1°Zk Yam) - 1T bl

L2 9SY €V L€ 261 PS J5Y: )
- 00 €2} aRJhix b
kale b B Blie Sle Al
= ZLYIE L D bd g bd
- 88 LE0' | Ue 1 Ba I [
LLOLL LY 981 Bodliel g
SE 679 18062 U223 PIpra
- 1882 L Mhlle RY % PR o
- = bhylh Rlkb| R3] GISK
- - Blilh [bioleyh Balokd
6S°GZH SY' 2GS B Lkinlyh Balbf
8€'29 8€29 bapalalp
/€692 12 S09 AT
29 1ve 86 Ive Leblk
£9/8 /808 LS blbba
82 12 Stk bl
60687 L  E¥ PSS (Ralh3leslie) bhlp
pEO8L L 2G99t Ll 22(b ¥ (Riis hh ¥
baliekd) lnddld[d (Ibaki|is)
/8¥¥.'88  GE028'GE Flbbdbabalh
rvb%N_,vaT_S TTT&M_T TEQ.W
15'e 05'€e % ki §lie bd
SO vk L1682 b Slie bd
Zrlie 0z /8 VT
B lh
71-€10¢ Sl-¥10¢
Bla b M Dbk Sh kil S

® bk Rib $ PALHRY

e ufedes 2014-2015

236



y Generations

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Health

4
-~
’

IQ

§C9TS'LS
L0291
€T°8TE'TT
§2°202'T
C6'LET
96°EVE
65°T8L'T
9G°¢

9T'0
980
¥8'09
16'999
12581474
6L°0TT
9v'0

0479
02289
9090.°T

€9°0vv'8€
8¢

0S¢
TETVC
Tv'c6

VT-€T0C

salljigel 1uaiInd

6669097 G2'9TS‘/S 66°690'9%
99V L0°29T 991
- E€T'8TIE'TT -
- G.°.02'T -
TL9TT C6'LET T.91T
GE'6179 96°EVE GE'6179
- 6ST8LT -
vee 9G°'¢ vee
910 9710 9710
6€°GCT 98'0% 6€'GCT
8€'C9 78'09 8€'29
6G°'T9E 16999 65 T9€
6T 1Y 14051474 6T 1Y
GG'LTT 6.°0TT GG'LTT
8L¢C 970 8L°¢
8989 0L'T9 8989
TV'vS9'T 0¢'.89 TV'vS9'T
¥€0T2'T 90'90.°T ¥€0T2'T
ev'€l8'0F €9°0v¥'8E ev'elL8'0F
680 ¥8'¢ 68°0
16°€ 0g’e 16°€
197991 1€ Tve L9991
90'8T¢ 1v'¢6 90'8T¢
YT-€T0C ST-¥T0C  VT-€T0C
[elol

Ss3lLgvii

(soe| ur p)

66°690'9F GC'9TS'LS
99V L0291
- ET'8TETT
- §2°,02'T
TL9TT C¢6'LET
SE'6V9 96°EVE
- 65°T8L'T
vee 9G°¢
9T'0 9T'0
6€°GCT 980
8€'29 7809
6G°T9€ 16'999
6T TVY 5851474
SGLTT 6.°0TT
8L¢C 9’0
8989 0479
TV vS9°T 0¢'/89
¥€0TC'T 9090.°T
EV'€L8'0F €90VY'8E
680 8¢
16°€ 0S¢
L9991 TETYC
90'8T¢ Tv'¢6
7T-€T0C ST-710C
[eloL

8L°€T9'C
99y

vee

9T'0

¢¢'96
L5°66
¢6'6¢
8L¢C
ov'.LE
¢e99T
ov'ee
95°8¢T'¢C
68°0

co'¢ee
790

YT-€T0C

v6°€2e'e
L0°6€
e
18°SLT
ST
60°€S
8L¢C
CER

9T'0
(6G°TT)
(rs'1)
9,19
95°€0T
2662
910
GZ'09
LLTET
61'8€
82°029'C
¥8'¢C

144
T¢'S

STT-¥10C

S19SSY 1ualind I1aylo

S13SSV
GTOZ Y2JB\ 1STE UO se uoleluawa|dwl Japun s10aloid Jo sanljiqel] pue S19ssy
€T'C 'ON 310N Ul 0] palldjay - |1l FINXINNY

TC9SP'ey TEC6T VS

00°€et
- CLVTIETT
- 88°'TE0'T
TL9TT LY9ET
SE'6V9 18°06¢
- 18'8LL°T
6€°GCT S¢S
8€'¢9 8€'¢9
LES9C T2'S09
(AN 2> 86°TYE
€9'/8 .8°08
8¢'T¢ Sv'T

60°687'T EV'vSS
¥6°98T'T 15°299'T

L8'V¥.'8E G€'028'Ge

19°€ 0S¢

SOVYT LT°6€¢C

cvLTe 0c¢'/8
7T-€T0C ST-¥10C

TH YlM 1Sni) 1apun play
saoueleq yueqg % ysed

IVLOL

S103r0dd d3HLO ® NNIdd
VINAN

00sdd

S400

IH73d LON

dNdOVN H ® DNO
T1IONNOD

ININJOTIATA T1IH HMVAV'1

add 123rodd SCiN

add S103drodd 'W'AD
SHOD

AdIN

OJVN

dOddAN

S9||9Y2As

‘sireyy [eulaix3 Jo Ansiuin
o4dVvVvS

(sdn) avo

ureyd pod ¥
(MaHOW)uonesiunww|(aSD)

ASSINd

P17 0D Ssfeonnadewseyd
SaUIDIPaN Uelpu|

AHIN

dIN

HSNAY

aod

s109(o.d

Annual Report 2014-2015

237



wEEsgT fHiees
s difgt & foo s

A
/ 4

/

GG 69Y'91 12'869'VL GG 69¥ 9L 12869Vl SS69¥'9L 12 869'vL 2P 9L0'e GV GSS'L €L ESY' VL 9L evl'El

L0'€ 69 29¢€ L0'€ 69 29¢€ L0'€ 69 29¢€ [HORY 79Ok - S0 LS¢
65022} 690G/ 65022’ | 69 092 65022 | 69 092 S0 00% (s6'101) 75 028 79298

L0900k 8¥'8S2°0L L0°90¥' 0+ 8¥'8S2'0+ L0900+ 8¥'852'0+  +80S. §8'60Z 92' G596 €9'875'6

¢8'€38 WAWA 4] ¢8' €38 (WAA 4] ¢8'€98 (WAWA 4 187987 ,5°68¢ S 19¢ 7189t
96’802’k ¥8 018 9€'80¢ | 78018 9€'80¢' | 78018 66 cr 0l 0¢c ,€G90" } /206,
6¢0 - 6¢0 - 6¢0 - 6¢0 - - -

G098} 06/92 ) S098€'L 06292} G0 98¢t 06292} Agadt L9 29¢ 85 eve | 62 000"

12881  1€289 11°8/€"L €298 128181 1€ 289 €2 68 2y 8glL 79682 | 68629
652l 65 2k 65 2k 65k 65 2k 65 2k 0z L KA 6E Lk 8€ L}
71-€10¢ Sl-¥10¢ ¥1-€L0¢ Gl-v102 71-€10¢ Sl-¥10¢ ¥1-€102 Sl-7102 71-€102 SL-¥102
o hlg @R e @bk Sh BRI
IkRibayh BRIk pb flbke Bib kel ® Bl RIB $ RAIRY
(& 1B12Y) AbRD Mo kRJhBMh I® lkinlpyh [oh BlRiRERI® (& GL0Z ‘Rl L€

BRI | €12k Yam) - 1T ehie

pd

Bh bb o
®2Ddb MR

R e S
Bd (b Slie Mig/bd L Slie bd
G312 B kd Bl o 1h

(Slo Bd Bd kd Lp)
DRl bl l|ple

kdlh-3lk-R0 [ (b ke Sl

Slelpplh

Lige ¢ kbl ‘bahdBlielh
(le2h b lacbfk) Alklolpylh
kliiblie) Slbbakakalh
(2iblRIAIL) (falhBI1Ee
lofgl> [ Blie

e ufedes 2014-2015

238



HLL Lifecare Limited
Innovating for Healthy Generations

o 4
N 2
17

SS°697'9T TZ'869'1'T SS'697'9T
T0°€ 69°29€ T0°€
65°0¢C'T 690G 65°02C'T

L0°90%7'0T 8%'852°'0T  L0'90% 0T

12°'869°vT
69°29€
69°05.

87°85¢'0T
TL' LS
¥8'0T8

06°292'T
T€289

65°¢T

ST-¥T0C

sanljigelT s

¢8'€S8 TLLYS ¢8°'€S8
€'802'T 78018 9€'802'T
620 - 620
G0'98€'T 06°292'T G0'98€'T
LL'8LE'T T€¢89 L1'8LE'T
6S°¢CT 6S°CT 6S°CT
YT-€T0C ST-¥T0C  ¥T-€T02
felol

salLigvii

(soej ur )

SS'697'9T  T2'869°1T
T0°€ 69°29€
65°02C'T 69°05.
L0°90%7'0T  8¥'85¢°0T
Z¢8'€S8 TL' LS
9€80¢2'T ¥8'0T8
6¢°0 -
S098¢€'T 06°292'T
LL'8LE'T T€289
6G°¢CT 6G°¢CT

VT-€T0C ST-v10¢

[eioL

910
T0°€
S0'00Y

18°0S.
LE98Y
66°¢YT
6¢°0
LyevT
€268

0c'tT

7T-€T0C

sjassy

‘z G¥'GSS'T
¥9°0TT
(s6°10T)

G8'60L
LS°68€
0T0¢C

19°29¢
cv'8ST

T@
ST-¥T0C
181in)d I18Yy10

S13SSV

ETESY'VT

¥5°0¢8

92°'559'6
Sy’ L9€

LE°G90'T
85 eve'T
v568¢'T

6E'TT

7T-€T0C

TH Yim 1sniy Japun play

9L72ZPT'ET IVLOL
50252 SH9O
¥9'258 MOVLLND FHLNID 4IONVD
194 "VHIYVE VAYVYHOV
€9'8Y5'6 SdId/SdIN
¥1'8GT MVLHOY SWIDd
v2'06.  (ASSIN) 869100 [edlpaN ylebily
= ONd NVHOW T1OdI
62°000'T HSNAY Jepun jeybised ‘413N
68'€25 (eured ® ysaqiysiy)
sjoafoid [enuspisay) ASSINA
8E'TT (pegeizes) Odl
yuoN al
ST-¥T02
s109loid

saoueleq yueg % ysed

#T0Z YoJeN 1STE uo se uoneiuswsa|dwi Japun s1oaloid Jo sanljiqel] pue s19ssy
€T°C 'ON 310N Ul 01 palidjay - [l FHNXIANNY

Annual Report 2014-2015

239



wEEsgT fHiees
s difgt & foo s

A
/ 4

/

€2/92k "Ba i

950210 B kabh Blolie klpp] mh
2bisl b (b)) Blhe oayp
ENGRDR BYs Al Elalole "2t
BA0L0000 "k kit
Mol [l
BUs Sad bIABY PRl
12 LR 2lhy i3 b BRID 3
6 167'08 £9°'69/'98 6€ 16¥'08 €9°G9.°08 6£ L6708 £969/'98
8€/v0'E 0T 6.E 88 /¥0'S 02 6.8 88 /v0'€ 0T 6.E
LY V06’ VL L6 LLL' VL LY V06’V L6 LLL'VL LV PO6'VE L6 LLL' VL
€GS0L L 2¥rSesZz 9GOk L Zvr'ssze  €5S0L |k Zv'ssz'e
0g 161 G199z 0g 16} G199z 0g 161} G1'992
= (99°0) = (99°0) = (99'0)
0£.60'€ L28SY'E 08 .60°€ L/'8SY'€  0€.60'E 12'8SY'E
LEBYE gL Lel LEBYE gLl ek LEBYE zL ek
10822 vy 10822 AN 10822 AN
vSv 266 vS vy 266 vS vy 266
GG L9} AT GG L9} oY Gzv GG /91 oY Gzv
26 661 IS vLL 26 667 IS VLE 26 661 IS VLL
8L 16 eLgl 8L 16 eLgl 8L 16 eLgl
827 L2 82 €6 82 +.2 82 €6 82 L2 82 €6
0882+ v6L9L'L 0882t  v6L9L L 0882+  ¥6LOLL
- €2 /96'} - €2 .96} - €2 196}
89 It €5 Zh 89 Lt SR Al 89 It €5 Zh
81'8sy’'c L0998} 8L8S¥'Z L0998} 8L'8SY'e L0998 |
€0062'S 81/28C €00€2S  8L/gE'c €008ZS 8L /2ET
v1-€L02  SL-vi0Z2  vI-€L02  SL-¥10Z v1-€102 Sl-7 102
albkp
(& B1p3)

G/8G'k "B

(ae kD) BE3lhe oapjb

b bhIR lbhe
bl 1

L9S/¥'6 0L LO'El
SIS L9 1eg
2888y 9 0£8'L
90 v6 1} 86 gh.
99°0 €069
= (1 1)
0Z¥62'L  ¥900€€E
6805 WA
L eee 100
600 (ec0l)
0L L. 09'82
LS 16} 20'SY
81 16 L0 L}
L7 GE L (egvh)
el esy 81859
= 25 v66
St 0 1S9
6129k ¥8 962
8626t  9,€S.t
71-€10¢ Sl-v102

bk? Plb heie

lkR|hbr3lh

GL0Z 00}

ahblbap)
VISLLIO0 kRS
§G£88800 k' gy @labl| BbK
(2p}) lably bh BEale
JRII=T T2 R L ) Embele’bd “18
B hab b o2k
2L 910'LL €6 €eL'EL Lk ho
€2066'Cc €9 .Y LkinlRyjh klfabh
SLOLL'0L €€ LYE'Q wh
V116 or'eIg' L lklnlrylh A
79061 ¢l L6} I-hyel
) Lv0 &
oFeog't  L0'8Sh Riped
2,86 Lo’ 82t BAPRARNG
96 v ey (RERnSleSiekn
SY ¥y G2 02 Slb lakkk| Bhle
G868 08'96€ 12>(palbrh |S3le3le
G5 80¢ 6. 62k RAbANRARNSIE
- 90’ | Ielkeb] Inlkdd> Inlkk
1868l L8O 22k ARG MbRh
L0°G¥8 9/2°609 Ehh [ T
- 1226 1 kb bd
€T Iy 96'G nRIe bk AR
66562 €2 629 | nRIe ok hrhblkbap|
Gz 90e'e  2relS Alnlg|
laiy> Ip Slie
v1-8102g Sl-v10g
hlz o M b Sh ki Qlelolzyh
% Rl kIR ¢ RARIRY

bk M [RRIbYA | Lkinipyh [Sh kiRikkibie | GLOZ ‘Rli: L€
DRYRAS | €1°Z k Yamy - 1T bl

e ufedes 2014-2015

240



y Generations

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Health

4
-~
’

IQ

950270 : ON diysiaquisiy
Jaupued
uelex)0110d 8sof VO

SO0TO000 ON w4
S1UBIUNODDY palaueyd

9so[ % weyeliqy "S/IA o4

payoeie a1ep UaAS Jo 1odal Ino SpIA

6E'T6V'08 €9'G9/°98 6€°T67'08
8¢'/V0'E  0Z'6.€ 8€'/10'E
LV V06 VT  L6°TLT'VT LV v06'1T
€5°G0T'T fA7Ae I TA4 €5'G0T'T
0€'T6T G1°99¢ 0€'T6T
- (99°0) -
0€°.60'E TL'8SP'E 0€°.60'E
TT'6VT CLTET TT°67T
1,082 vT'v 1,082
SV ¢6'6 vSvy
GS'/9T ov'qcy GG'/9T
26661 I8 V.T 26°'661
8T'T6 €1'8T 8T'T6
8C'T.LC 8C'E6 8¢C'T.C
08'8.2'T 76'T9T'T 08'8.2'T
- €2°/96'T -
89TV €9°CT 89TV
8T'8S'C 10°998'T 8T'8S'C
€0°0€2'S 8T'/2E'C €0°0€2'S
YT-€T0C ST-¥T10C  VT-€T0C
[elol
leloL !
S3lLITgvii
S3AlLLITIgvI
(soey ur 3)

[ez292 'vOA]
04079 (4) dAS

uesaues 'y
€9'G9/'98 6E'T61'08
0C'6.L€ 8€'/¥0'E
L6’ TLT'VT L7'v06'vT
2r's§e'e €5'G0T'T
G1°'99¢ 0€'T6T
(99°0) -
TL'8S¥'E 0€'260'€
CL'TET TT°6VT
Vv L0'8L¢
¢6°6 15044
oI A<TA% GG /9T
18 VLT 26°661
€1°8T 8T°16
8C°€6 8¢'T/L¢C
76’ T9T'T 08'8/2'T
€2°/96'T -
€G°¢CT 89TV
10'998'T 81'85¥'¢
8T'/2€E'C €0°0€¢'S
ST-¥T0C YT-€T0C

sanljigerT walnd

el

[5285:504]
(4H) dAS ®

Areraloas Auedwo)

€9'G9/°98
0C'6.€
L6'TLT'VT
Zv'sse'e
GT'99¢
(99°0)
TL'8SV'E
CL'TET
14%%

266
ov'Sey
I8'7.LT
€187
82'€6
v6'T9T'T
€2°,96'T
€G°¢T
10'998'T
8T'/2g'e

ST-¥T0C

rewn)aslis 'd

19'G.¥'6 0L'TFO'ET
ST'2S L9°TEE
ze'88.L'y ¥9°0€8°L
90'v6T 862/
99°0 £0'69
= (eTm)
0Z'762'T ¥9'00€'€
6€°0S TL€
TT°€€T 100
60°0 (eeo1)
0L'LL 09'82
LE'T6T 20°'SY
8T'T6 10°LT
TV’ GET (€8'¥T)
€LEey 81859
> 25766
S0 159
6T°29T ¥8'9€2
8/°€26'T 9/°€S.'T
¥T-€102 ST-¥102

[55€88€00 :NId]
(9oueuld) 10108110

[emiepuey ‘d'd

¢L'9TO0'TL €6°€CL'EL
€2'066'C €9'LY
ST'9TT'0T €ETPE'9
LV'TT6 0v'eTS'T
79'06T ¢T'L6T

- Lv'0
0T'€08'T L0°8ST
¢L'86 T0'8¢T
96’77 €T’V
Sv'vy STV
G868 08'96€
G5'80¢€ 61°6CT

- 90T
18'GET TT°80T
L0°G¥8 92°€0S

- TLCL6
€¢Iy 96'S
66°'G6¢2'C €2°629'T
G2'90€°E (4@ A
7T-€T0C ST-¥10C

S18SSY 1uaiIn)d I8Y10

S13SSV

TH Yam 1SnJ) Japun play
saoueleq yueg ® ysed

¥T0Z YoJeN 1STE uo se uoneiuswa|dwi japun s1o0afoid Jo sainljigel] pue s1assy
€T°C 'ON 310N Ul 01 palidjay - [l FHNXIANNY

GT0C'L0°0T
WiNIpUBALIL

[¥2€2TT00 :NIA]
J10108.1q Buibeuey
® uewlieyd
ueddelAy ‘N 1Q

pleog ay) Jo Jjeyaq uo pue o4

TVLOL ANVYD
syo9foid auipoen
IVvLOL

sjo9/o1d elelad

ONL

0do

1gaH

INLSSH

1SIIN

pseog |[ouo) sbnig
VL1LOMHVNVAVING-All
SNVHNI

1da@ aJreya/\ [e1o0s
91uUa) Jdgue) JeqgeleN
ANHIN

ONIN

DIN 210ebueg

DIN WnJpueAl ]
d3INdIC

yinos di

s108loud
s109loid

Annual Report 2014-2015

241



l TAUETd ATsher fefies
Y 4 s difgt & foo s

TaEM TUS Wik firerT FareH s, R - 680001
KRS ICIGAR TR : 0487 2423225, 2426225, heRT : 2424245
$-Hd : trc_aajca@sancharnet.in

www.abrahamandjose.com

e et R

TATATd ARB®HAR fafiics & el 3
wAfea faciy faavor w Raid
B TATATd TSHHA fICS (415 H 9RO BT & HU H HEA), SHH! A (STROT BT AR b T
Sl Bl P M Yo A1 YU S WY A Aalia) R Ggeh wd I R Gl & Fer qrfed &< faavor o
SRIURIET B 2, R 31 #1e 2015 T & FHipd Jo-ad |, FHIhd ¥ IR 81 &1 fJar0r, ¥\ 99 av &
Tl el yaTe f4eRvr 3R |l oin el Ud 31 SR e a1 b1 AR (91§ i faxir fdavor &
w9 # Hefid) wifase €1
T faxia faxor & forg wees o1 Sareia
gRUI HU BT Ferd A, dul JRFH, 2013 ( d18 # AR & U H A&d) & AU b ATAR S
THfehd f<ia fqavon o TaRt & forg Sarerdt g fo S (o) fram, 2014 & s 7 & g ufsa srfafem
BT gRT 133 & i faffes oar #s |fed IRA H FH WU 9 WIeR (A oikal Rgidl & 3R WYt
w9 9 FrRifya s |fed gu & afea faciy fRafa - wafea foxdia frores ofk wfed 9ae wae & @98 &R
we gfe qar gl s U A wifie gU Sl & HEd et ded ok sHal 9w wu 9 R |
U B gRAURTAT DT YR & STATIH $ Yau™l b JTAR YA kgl eIl B FIRET b [oTQ 7R A
Td 3 ARSI I b+l AR T &M, I o il &l =2 SR e, S g fadeyef o ok
AT T 3R IFa vd f[qaayol o7 3R AT a1 3iR S SffaiRes faxiia FrRiEvn &1 f$9is, =g
Tq 3RET0T & oy RHeR € A o sffferdl &t g iR quiar gifeed or- & fog q9rdt 71 1 gearer
R wE, fxm (el & IR iR wmgdiese & oy &a © 5 97 98 vd frog gfe qar & eiR
dTcehTieTe Terd fqaReT ¥ H<h &, Sl SUYsh RS0 Gusil & Fazrdl gR1 qHfdd R faavor &t sl & Sewy
& oy SUAT fopar T B |
SETeThl BT STURSTRIE
TN SRATIIETT &P JMYR TR 37 GHfbd fay fIaroll 9= I 2J<h BRA1 8ART STNSIU  © | IETIRIeT ST
B P ARM, T ARCH P Jrael Bl AN H @1 ©, AT 3R D el g9 T Al & graei

& I oTETuRIeT RUIE § el wu & Infirel 5 ST aTel oRaie=T, IETURIeT " iR AT Infier foar
TR

A AR @1 aRT 143(10) & SEfF fAffE SRamoRien J9dl & SR AU olRaTaNIe Il | I A
YUTErT R € T &9 Al ardeTail &l SrguTer BN 3R Jfe AHfdd faxiia fqavor yeger T fqaron & 4 & S
Hefed S SMearT U HRA Bl @RI IR BT SR wnfad wen |

UH IETORIe #, FHfdd i fJavon # I6A 3R Udhcia’ol & Ay # Samien TH1oT Ui & &1 fsares
afspar enfirer € | Tafrd 9fham duc a1 el & BRI ARfhd Ry faaxo & gomer el gum & SiRkaw
¥ R 9fta damigel & v w3 ¥ 99 SIRaw MeRoT B 99 § oraTakierd oIaraie ufehary,
SS9 gRfRAfcrt § Sfad 7, &1 ifiided dxe @f 3R FRiFd dul & aafed faxiy faaxort @ Ot iR
IRRIITRROT I A ATARD [FRI301 IR faaR H=al g, dfcsp afe e busil &1 faciiy Rulfen w gaiw aiaRe
=iy fi=or yomeft & &R U =107t & gemer oIl & 19 & &3l & Seed & ol T8l | Ud ofamaen
H, Tg<h okl Il & SUGThHAT BT Jeid iR FRIFAV gRE Hul & Feerd Hed §RT 911 oIl 3THerl &I
e & AAfIRh o f[aaRvll & AYol URIITeRvT &1 Jeaih 1 enfier €1

B fIard & & o TR gRT U olRaTqen W11 3R A1 & 3 AT tRT & 99 - WRT (%) H defia 9ol
Rulel & AR 3 S@IRIETd] gRT UG ETqRIer FH707 FHfha faxiiy faavor o) g9R gy =Rt & forg
U YR UG B Bl g iR 3fd g

e ufedes 2014-2015
242




Vi HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

ABRAHAM & JOSE Mission Quarters Road, Thrissur-680001
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Tel : 0487 2423225, 2426225, Fax : 2424245
Email : trc_aajca@sancharnet.in

www.abrahamandjose.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HLL LIFE CARE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of HLL LIFE CARE LIMITED (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (The Holding company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as the “Group”) and jointly controlled entity, comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31st March, 2015, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group including Jointly controlled entities in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and its jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

In the case of Goa Antibiotics and Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (GAPL),a subsidiary, Provisions for Deferred Tax as
required by the Accounting Standards (AS) 22- “Accounting for Taxes on Income “ has not been made in the
books for the year. In the absence of complete details, the effect of the same on the consolidated financial
statements is not quantifiable.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

In the case of GAPL, due to the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, it was unable to determine
whether any adjustments might have been necessary on the accounts in respect of the following cases:

a. Adequacy of provision maintained against outstanding receivables in the absence of an age wise analysis
report with customer wise analysis of outstanding;

b.  Inadequate internal controls and accounting procedures followed by the company in respect of certain
units as stated in Note No. C.11 and inability to obtain proper records and documents from certain units
not visited by the statutory auditors of the subsidiary;

QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion and Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs
above, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, and jointly controlled entity as at 31st March, 2015, and
their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
We draw attention to the following:

The Holding Company supplies various contraceptive products to Government of India under different schemes
as a captive manufacturer . The final prices for these supplies are not fixed by Government, and revenue is
booked on the basis of provisional prices. The effect of variance between the provisional price and final price
as may be fixed by the Government is not ascertainable and hence not considered in the accounts. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

OTHER MATTERS

(&) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of three subsidiaries and one jointly
controlled entity, whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of ¥ 22052.92 lacs as at
31st March, 2015, total revenues of ¥ 5681.90 lacs and net cash outflows amounting to ¥ 1730.89 lacs for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements
/ financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity, and our report in terms
of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entity, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements / financial information certified by the
Management.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ reports
of the Holding company, subsidiary companies and jointly controlled company incorporated in India, we give
in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
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(a) We have sought and, except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified

Opinion paragraph and Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above, obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the
other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion and Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs
above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group.

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the jointly controlled company as
on 31st March, 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the said company and the reports of the
statutory auditor of the said company none of the directors of the said company is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. In respect of the holding
company and its subsidiaries, vide notification No. GSR 463(E) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated
5" June 2015, provisions of sub-section (2) of section 164 regarding disqualification of directors are not
applicable to these companies.

(9) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion and Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs above.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group and its jointly controlled entities have disclosed the impact of the pending litigations on
its financial position in the Consolidated Financial Statements -Refer Note No. C.8, C.13 and C.14
to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ii. Except for the possible effect of the matter described in sub-paragraph (b) of the Basis of Qualified
Opinion and Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph above, the Group, and jointly controlled
entities did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled companies
incorporated in India.

For Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000010S)

Place: Thiruvananthapuram Jose Pottokaran
Date: 10.07.2015 Partner (M. No. 012056)
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HLL Lifecare Limited,
on the Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2015

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial statements
of the holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity and taking into consideration the information
and explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, we report that:

0

(b)

(ii)

(b)

(c)

(i)

(iv)

(a) The holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity has maintained proper records showing
full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. However, In the case of one
subsidiary, GAPL, the company is in process of updating fixed asset register showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. Further in the absence of updated fixed assets register it
was not possible for the statutory auditor of the company to confirm whether depreciation has also been
charged on assets fully depreciated and still in active use.

The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed
assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entity and the nature of its assets. However, in the case of a subsidiary, GAPL, fixed assets
have not been physically verified by the management. In the absence of physical verification, the
statutory auditors were not in a position to comment on the discrepancies, if any, between physical and
book records and the impact thereof.

(a) The respective managements of the holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity
has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. In the case of
one subsidiary, GAPL, the statutory auditor reported that though physical verification of inventory has
been conducted at the end of the financial year by the management no physical verification report was
provided to them for verification. Also no physical verification has been carried out by the management
at Ajmer unit and Jaipur unit in Rajasthan, Ponda and Panaji medicentre of that company.

The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the respective managements are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entity and the nature of its business. However, in the case of a subsidiary, GAPL, the auditors
have commented that the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management
need to be strengthened in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business. Significant
inadequacies noted by the auditors are as follows:

1. Physical inventory should be carried out at reasonable intervals during the year.

2. Alllocations should be covered at least once a year.

3. Procedures giving instructions for conduct of physical verification should be well documented and
standardised to ensure that discrepancies noticed on physical verification are properly dealt with in the
books of accounts.

The holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity is maintaining proper records of inventory

and material discrepancies were not noticed on physical verification. However, in the case of a subsidiary,

GAPL, the auditors have reported that the company is not maintaining proper records for slow moving,

non-moving, expired goods and stock lying with third party.

The holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity has not granted any loan, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) and 3(iii)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are reasonably
adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the holding company, its subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entity and nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets
and for the sale of goods and services. To the best of our knowledge, no major weaknesses in internal
control system were either reported or noticed by us during the course of our audit. However, in the
case of a subsidiary, GAPL, the auditors have commented that the internal control procedure with
regard to (a) review and reconcilation of book balances of customers/vendors, (b) compliance with VAT
and Central Excise, VAT and Central Excise, (c) Classification and capitalization of Assets including
linking the addition to assets already in existence and (d) Receipt, consumption of inventory at Ajmer
and Jaipur units, (e) Consumption analysis needs to be strengthened and streamlined.
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B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

During the year, the holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity has not accepted
any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of theAct and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). However, we report that an amount of 10,000 accepted during
earlier period is outstanding under fixed deposit not repaid due to dispute between the legal heirs, in
the case of Holding Company.

The books of account maintained by the holding company and its subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entity pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under subsection (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of their products and services have been
reviewed by the respective statutory auditors and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed
accounts and records have been made and maintained, in applicable cases. In the case of one subsidiary,
GAPL, the Company has applied for exemption from Cost Audit for the FY 2009-10, 2010-11 and 2011-
12, However MCA has replied vide letter dated 3 July, 2013 rejecting the exemption applied for. Cost
Audit has not been carried out for the FY 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12, 2012-13 and 2013-14.

a) According to the records, the holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity has been
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, ESI, Income Tax,
Wealth Tax, Service tax, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.
However, in the case of one subsidiary, GAPL, the following amounts are outstanding for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable:

() Delhi sales tax 3 1,29,287
(i)  Indore sales % 4,30,163
(iii)  Entry tax (Ayurveda) T 1,94,944
(iv)  Entry tax (Homeopathic) % 4,62,151

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, customs Tax, Excise Duty or Cess not deposited on account of
any dispute except:-

Sl Name of the Forum were the  Amount involved Period
No Statute matter is pending  lakhs )
1 The Income Tax Act, 1961 CIT (Appeals) 10.12 Asst.Yr
2008-09
2 Do Do 191.54 Asst.Yr
2009-10
3 Do Do 20.84 Asst.Yr
2010-11
4 Do Do 40.85 Asst.Yr
2011-12
5 Do Do 32.41 Asst.Yr
2012-13
6 Customs Act,1962 Commissioner
of Customs 22.15 2007-08
7 Kerala Value
Added Tax Act, 2003 DC (Appeals) 263.48 2011-12
8 Do Do 14.44 2012-13
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

9. Sales Tax Act Commissioner, 389.90 1999-2000 to
Hyderabad CTO, Hyderabad 2003-04

10 Sales Tax Act, CTO, Lucknow 2.61 2002-03 to
Lucknow 2004-05

11 Sales Tax Act, CTO, Indore 8.73 2003-04 &
Indore 2004-05

12 Sales Tax Act, CTO, Panaji 19.75 1996-97
Goa Ward, Panaji

Place:
Date: 10.07.2015 Partner (M. No. 012056)

(c) There are no amounts required to be transferred during the year to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and
rules made thereunder.

In our opinion, the holding company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it
has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding financial year. In case of one
subsidiary, GAPL and a jointly controlled entity, Lifespring Hospitals Private Ltd., the companies have
accumulated losses exceeding more than 50% of its net worth as on 31t March, 2015. However, these
companies have notincurred cash loss during the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial
year. In the case of two subsidiaries reporting under this clause is not applicable since incorporated for a
period less than five years.

The holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity has not delayed in repayment of dues to
the financial institutions, banks and debenture holders during the year.

In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the holding company has given guarantee for loans
taken by others from banks or financial institutions are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the
company. No other company has given any guarantees for loan taken by others from a bank or financial
institution.

In our opinion, the holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity has applied the term
loans for the purpose for which these loans were obtained wherever taken.

Based on the audit procedures performed and the representations obtained from the management and
as reported by the auditors of the subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity, we report that no fraud on or
by the holding company, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity has been noticed or reported
during the year under audit.

For Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000010S)

Thiruvananthapuram Jose Pottokaran
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2015

ASAT ASAT
Particulars Note No 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds
(a) Share Capital 3 19,353.50 19,353.50
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 22,656.13 19,875.08
42,009.63 39,228.58
2. Share application money pending allotment 4,000.00 -
3. Minority Interest 87.12 40.30
4. Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 5 5,997.11 8,787.37
(b) Deferred tax liabilites (net) 6 1,225.22 1,301.00
(c) Long-term provisions 7 131.67 112.07
7,354.00 10,200.44
5. Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 8 37,669.84 33,779.24
(b) Trade payables 9 23,420.14 11,488.50
(c) Other current liabilities 10 21,198.83 18,253.53
(d) Short-term provisions 11 1,809.98 1,330.07
84,098.79 64,851.34
6. Advances Received for Projects held under Trust
as per contra 74,223.93 71,015.72
TOTAL 2,11,773.47 1,85,336.38
B. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets 12
i) Tangible assets 23,380.35 18,694.07
ii) Intangible assets 886.99 898.91
iif) Capital work-in-progress 14,880.06 9,060.07
iv) Intangible asset under development 709.13 310.48
V) Goodwill on consolidation 541.74 601.93
40,398.27 29,565.46
(b) Non-current investments 13 2.25 2.25
(c) Long Term Loans and Advances 14 127.05 2,190.14
(d) Other Non-Current assets 15 711.93 567.57
2. Current assets
(@) Inventories 16 10,328.49 11,853.46
(b) Trade receivables 17 64,071.85 44,526.61
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 18 13,009.81 14,849.73
(d) Short-term loans and advances 19 8,316.62 10,260.02
(e) Other current assets 20 583.27 505.42
96,310.04 81,995.24
3. Cash and Bank balances of Projects held under
Trust as per contra 74,223.93 71,015.72
TOTAL 2,11,773.47 1,85,336.38
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Explanatory Notes to Financial Statement 2
For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Jose Pottokaran
Chairman Director (Finance) Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO Partner
& Managing Director [DIN: 00388355] & SVP (HR) [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 012056
[DIN: 00117374] [FCS: 5875]
ISY@?%“{E Annual Report 2014-2015
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015

Note No Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31-03-2015 31-03-2014
X lacs) X lacs)
1. Revenue from operations (gross) 21 111,363.76 95,421.00
Less: Excise duty 810.69 563.04
Revenue from operations (net) 110,553.07 94,857.96
2. Other income 22 455.49 1,189.49
3. Total revenue (1+2) 111,008.56 96,047.45
4. Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 23 22,178.93 19,482.63
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 24 21,484.71 15,653.75
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 25 1,857.15 (898.30)
(d) Employee benefits expense 26 15,913.83 13,829.61
(e) Finance costs 27 2,583.88 1,799.57
() Depreciation and amortisation expense 12 3,185.74 2,412.44
(g) other expenses 28 29,057.49 25,963.20
(h) Contract Expenses 11,351.99 14,177.14
Total expenses 107,613.72 92,420.04
5. Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional and extra
ordinary items and tax (3-4) 3,394.84 3,627.41
6. Exceptional items [(Income) /Expense] (508.28) (1.15)
7. Profit/(Loss) before extra ordinary items
and tax (5-6) 3,903.12 3,628.56
8. Extra-ordinary item - 0.87
9. Profit/(Loss) before tax (7-8) 3,903.12 3,627.69
10. Tax expenses :
(a) Current tax expenses for current year 980.11 783.29
(b) Current tax expenses relating to prior years (157.67) (1.76)
(c) MAT Credit Entitlement (157.43) (25.83)
(d) Deferred tax (75.79) 293.14
589.22 1,048.84
11. Profit/ (Loss) for the year 3,313.90 2,578.85
12. Minority Interest on Net Income 46.82 2.77
13. Profit/ (Loss) for the year after taxes & minority
interest 3,267.08 2,576.08
14. Earnings per share (%) - Basic & Diluted
(Face value of ¥ 10/- share) C.1 1.69 1.33
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Explanatory notes to Financial Statements 2
For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Jose Pottokaran
Chairman Director (Finance) Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO  Partner
& Managing Director [DIN: 00388355] & SVP (HR) [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 012056
[DIN: 00117374] [FCS: 5875]
Trivandrum
10.07.2015
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I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2015

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
R lacs)  lacs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before extraordinary items and tax and excluding minority
interest 3,856.30 3,623.79
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 3,185.74 2,412.44
Exceptional item for Depreciation (508.28) =
Loss on sale of fixed assets 14.66 2.70
Profit on sale of fixed assets (4.52) (22.54)
Finance costs 2,583.88 1,799.57
Interest Income (92.78) (312.88)
Operating profit/(Loss) before working capital changes 9,035.00 7,503.08
Changes in working capital :
Adjustment for (increase/(decrease) in operating assets :
Inventories 1,524.97 (1,335.55)
Trade receivables (19,545.23) (3,047.66)
Short-term loans and advances 1,837.56 (1,200.47)
Long-term loans and advances 2,063.09 92.42
Other current assets (77.85) 1,649.88
Adjustment for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities :
Trade payables 11,931.64 2,168.72
Other current liabilities 2,945.30 (7,036.16)
Short-term provisions 454.06 (323.72)
10,168.54 (1,529.46)
Cash flow from extra ordinary items - 1.15
Cash generated from operations 10,168.54 (1,528.31)
Net Income tax (paid)/refunds (632.84) (1,215.42)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 9,535.70 (2,743.73)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital Work in Progress (5,819.99) (4,105.10)
Investment in fixed assets (7,729.01) (5,035.87)
Sale of fixed assets 8.42 50.88
Interest received 92.78 312.88
Advance for Share Capital 4,000.00 (0.25)
Changes in other non-current assets (44.84) (10.22)
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more
than one year) (41.90) 13,370.69
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) (9,534.54) 4,583.01
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(F) JHs I
(@) 9@ & | Ay

(i) <@ H

(i) =g @

(i) $ S v @ @ A

(iv) 3 & @ |

31.03.2015 &I
T ol §

(2,790 26)
1960

46 82
3,800 .61
(2,583.88)
(387.07)
(78.80)
(1,882 98)
(1,881.82)
14,599.16
12,717 34

13,009 81

292 47

12,717 .34

18.99

11,199.99
1,167.35
296 61

34 .40
12,717 34

31.03.2014 &I
ol °

3,258 .58

4030
10,265 68
(1,799.57)
(387.07)
(65.79)
11,312.13
13,151 41
1,447 .75
14,599 16

14,849.73

250.57

14,599 .16

25 .88

10,307 .39
3,954 .10
13.74
298.05
14,599 .16
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Particulars

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Long-term provisions
Payment to Minority Interest
Proceeds from other short-term borrowings
Finance cost - Interest paid
Dividend paid
Tax on dividend
Net Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balancesheet :
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer Not 14)
Less : Bank balances not considered as cash and cash
equivalents as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Statements
Net cash and cash equivalents (as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow
Statements) included in Note 18
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*
* Comprises
(a) Cash on hand
(b) Balances with bank
(i) In Deposit accounts
(ii) In current accounts
(i) In EEFC accounts

(iii) In OD accounts

Notes :
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in the AS - 3 issued

1

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

AS AT
31.03.2015

X lacs)

(2,790.26)
19.60
46.82

3,800.61
(2,583.88)
(387.07)
(78.80)

(1,882.98)

(1,881.82)

14,599.16

12,717.34

13,009.81
292.47

12,717.34

18.99

11,199.99
1,167.35
296.61

34.40
12,717.34

AS AT
31.03.2014

X lacs)

3,258.58
40.30
10,265.68
(1,799.57)
(387.07)
(65.79)
11,312.13
13,151.41
1,447.75
14,599.16

14,849.73
250.57

14,599.16

25.88

10,307.39
3,954.10
13.74

298.05
14,599.16

The previous year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary in order to conform to this year’s

presentation.

Transactions of project funds held under Trust and balance of ¥74,223.93 lacs (previous year

$71,015.72 lacs) are not included in the Cashflow.

For and on behalf of the Board

Vide our report of even date attached

For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 000010S

CA. Jose Pottokaran

Membership No : 012056

Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan

Chairman Director (Finance) Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO  Partner
& Managing Director [DIN: 00388355] & SVP (HR) [FCA: 26723]

[DIN: 00117374] [FCS: 5875]

Trivandrum

10.07.2015
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Reoqoft 3 ¥RR o ()

oy 31032015 &I 31.03.2014 &I
T ol | Tt o
(@) wferga 2R goht
g% T 10/- sfaact 9Iv-30,00,00,000 Hw=am 30,000.00
g% T 1000/- sfaact 2ax-30,00,000 Fe=r 30,000.00
(@) SR @ TS R Yot
7% 310/~ sfaac) IR-19,35,35,000 G 19,353 50
g% 1000/~ gfdad 9—R-19.35,350 weam 19,353 50
(1) arfYrest ok qoie: e RR IO
Tdd 310/~ sfaadt IR-19,35,35,000 G 19,353 50
gdd T1000/- sfaact IaR-19,35,350 wen 19,353 50
Ll 19,353.50 19,353.50
IR Yot &1 A frema
oy 31.03.2015 &I 31.03.2014 &I
IRIRI B = T @l ¥ IRIRI B = Tt |
sfaadt IR Ton
37 Y 30,00,000.00 30,00000 3,000,000.00 30,000.00
3ifow 9y 300,000,000.00 30,000.00 3,000,000.00 30,000.00
SIRT fpu 1w
37 9y 1,935 350 .00 1935350 19,35,350.00 19,353 50
Jifem 9w 193,535,000.00 19,353.50 19,35,350.00 19.353.50

Il 3R U

37y Y 19,35,350.00 19,3563.50 19,35,350.00 19,353 .50
3ifad vy 193,535,000.00 19,353.50 19,35,350.00 19,353 .50

fewolt : 28 3R 2014 R0 AR 48 df a1 AT I8 H TRRYRBI & AJAGT & AR gfaac! AR
¥ 3ifhd geu 28.08.2014 & y¥d | ¥1000/- & % 10/- da S fawifora fawan |
5% ¥ IF IR I W TS INRYRS & IRRI & faawor

YRRYRG BT A 31.08.2015 &l 31.083.2014 &1
£LC| ROl ®I  UNRU] U  GRU B

HRT AXDR 1,935,35,000 100% 1,935,350 100%
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 3 Share Capital (Consolidated)
Particulars

(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 30,00,00,000 Nos.
Equity shares of ¥ 1000/- each - 30,00,000 Nos.
(b) Issued Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos.
Equity shares of ¥ 1000/- each - 19,35,350 Nos.
(c) Subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos.
Equity shares of ¥ 1000/- each - 19,35,350 Nos.

Total
Reconciliation of Share Capital
Description AS AT 31.03.2015

No. of 3 lacs

shares
Equity Share Capital
Authorized
Opening Balance 3,000,000.00 30,000.00
Additions - -
Closing Balance 300,000,000.00 30,000.00
Issued
Opening Balance 1,935,350.00 19,353.50
Additions - -
Closing Balance 193,535,000.00 19,353.50
Subscribed & Paid up
Opening Balance 1,935,350.00 19,353.50
Additions - -
Closing Balance 193,535,000.00 19,353.50

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

30,000.00

19,353.50

19,353.50

19,353.50

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

30,000.00

19,353.50

19,353.50
19,353.50

AS AT 31.03.2014

No. of
shares

3,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

1,935,350.00

1,935,350.00

1,935,350.00

1,935,350.00

3 lacs

30,000.00

30,000.00

19,353.50

19,353.50

19,353.50

19,353.50

Note: Pursuant to the approval of the share holders in 48th Annual General Meeting held on 28th August 2014, the face
value of equity shares was sub-divided from % 1000/- to % 10/- w.e.f 28.08.2014.

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of shareholder AS AT 31.03.2015

Number of

shares held Holding

% of

Gouvt. of India 193,535,000 100%
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31.03.2015 & 31.03.2014 &I

T ol § T ol §

36.80 43 86

- 36.80

36.80 43 86

36 .80

129 .74 129 .74

19,708 54 17 578 24

2,801 22 2,086 44

36.80 43 86

(201.7) -

22,526 .39 19,708 .54

3,267 10 257610

387 .07 387 .07

78.80 65.79

- 36.80

2,801 .22 2,086 44
0.01

22,656.14 19,875.08

31.03.2015 & 31.03.2014 &I

T oraEl § T ol §
1.655 33 2,830 .49
344777 4 635 .39

277 41 277 41
599 10 1,026 .33
15.46 15.71
2.04 204
5,997 .11 8,787 .37



L 4
B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 4 Reserves and surplus (Consolidated)

(a)

Particulars

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) reserve

Opening balance
Add : Additions/transfers during the year
Less : Transferred during the year to General Reserve

(b)
(c)

(c)

Closing balance
Dividend Equalisation Reserve
General Reserve
Opening balance
Add : Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Add : Transferred during the year from CSR
Less : Depreciation adjustment - Schedule Il of Companies
Act, 2013
Closing balance
Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year
Less : Proposed Dividend
Dividend proposed to equity shareholders
(%0.20 per share of ¥10/- each,
Tax on dividend
Transferred to :
Reserves for CSR
General Reserve
Closing balance
Total

Note 5 Long-term borrowings (Consolidated)

Particulars

(@) Term Loans (Secured)

Foreign currency loan-Secured
Rupee Loan

(b) Term loan (Unsecured)

(c) Other loans and Advances

() Foreign currency Buyers Credit
(i)  Security Deposits
(iii)  Interest on Security Deposits
Total
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AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

36.80

36.80

129.74

19,708.54
2,801.22
36.80

(20.17)
22,526.39

3,267.10

387.07
78.80

2,801.22
0.01
22,656.14

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

1,655.33
3,447.77
277.41

599.10
15.46
2.04

5,997.11

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

43.86
36.80
43.86
36.80
129.74

17,578.24
2,086.44
43.86

19,708.54

2,576.10

387.07
65.79

36.80
2,086.44

19,875.08

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

2,830.49
4,635.39
277.41

1,026.33
15.71
2.04

8,787.37
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31.03.2015 &

2,929 51

3,901 .26

564 .08

167.02

7,561.87

2,458.77

5.103.10

1041118
9,842 .08

599.120

31.03.2014 &I

4.440.75

4,755 .08

564 .07

406 41

10,166 .31

2,499.78

7,666 .53

7,894 .15
6,867 .82

1,026,33
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HLL Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

(i) Details of security provided in respect of the secured long-term borrowings :

Particulars

Term loan from banks :
Foreign currency loan

From State Bank of India

From Indusind Bank
Rupee Term Loan
From HDFC Bank

From State bank of India

From State Bank of India

Total - Term loan from banks

Less : Payable within next 12
months treated as Current
Liabilities

Payable after 12 months

Other loans and advances :
Buyers Credit

Less : Short Term Borrowings

Details of security*

(a) First charge over the fixed
assets of the company

excluding Land & Buildings (HLL)
(b) Equitable Mortgage over the

land at Noida (HLL)

(c) Equitable Mortgage as
collateral over the land with
building at Poojappura,
Trivandrum. (HLL)

First charge over movable assets

purchased out of the loan at

Peroorkada Factory-Balaramapuram
facility, Corporate R & D Centre at
Akkulam, Sanitary Napkin Manu-

factoring unit at Kanagala (HLL)

(d) Secured by an equitable mortgage
of leasehold rights of the land, building
and other structures on the land,
Hypothecation of plant & machinery,
laboratory equipments, electrical
Installations, furniture & fixtures,
vehicles and other movable assets,
(Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals

Limited

(e) Secured against Hypothecation of

Lease Hold Rights & Hospital

Equipmemts-Life Spring Hospitals

(P) Ltd

Secured by Project Deposits

AS AT
31.3.2015

2,929.51

3,901.26

564.08

167.02
7,561.87

2,458.77
5,103.10

10,441.18
9,842.08

599.10

AS AT
31.3.2014

4,440.75

4,755.08

564.07

406.41
10,166.31

2,499.78
7,666.53

7,894.15
6,867.82
1,026.33

Note : Foreign Currency Buyers Credit are for Capital item procurement, eligible for roll over upto three
years subject to availability, or else shall be converted into sanctioned Term Loan.
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¥4

Vi HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 6 Disclosures under Accounting Standards - 22 Accounting for Taxes on Income (Consolidated)

Particulars

Deferred tax (liability)/asset

Depreciation

Tax effect of item constituting deferred tax liability

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for Overtime arrear

Provision for Bonus

Others

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax (liability)/asset

Note 7 Long-term provisions (Consolidated)

Particulars

(a) Provision for employee benefits :
Provision for Performance related pay
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AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

(2,013.53)
(2,013.53)

707.47
29.42
14.28
37.14

788.31

(1225.22)

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

131.67
131.67

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

(1,866.93)
(1,866.93)

335.79
29.42
15.54

185.18
565,93
(1,301.00)

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

112.07
112.07
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faa=or 31.03.2015 & 31.03.2014 &I
% ol & % ot A
(®) A W g o7 (FHat o)
T % it Sfear F-ufra 13,765 84 11,365.19
BT S A 481189 4,495 56
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Fo 22,783 .98 16,083.79
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ISUse §@ 9 - 5,650.00
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(31) =g 2R 9 I - Fferyd
fa=ft 957 e @1 Arg - SER 9,842 08 6,867 .82
Ay 3R <F = - -
e I A sfear - 110.30
EENECED 15.40 26.13
RESINGICED 35.86 8.80
Fol 37,669.84 33,779 .24
fewfor -
(i) o sreuIferd SUR Hfeg afnyfa & faawor
= gfayfa @ apfa 31.03.2015 ® 31.03.2014 &t
% ol & R ot #
Joi | A W ARy For TITEUS Bl e TRAUIRTAT TR qIR
T §F 3 sfear | UG =TS | ARG T § DI AR 13,753 56 11,463.17
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PR 96 A 2,500.00 2514 87
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T e | 2,492 52 251753
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L 4
B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 8 Short-term borrowings (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Loans repayable on demand (Cash Credit)
From State Bank of India - Secured 13,765.84 11,365.19
From Canara Bank 4,811.89 4,495.56
From HDFC Bank 4,206.25 223.04
Total 22,783.98 16,083.79
(b) Short Term Loans from Banks - Secured-Overdraft
From Canara Bank 2,500.00 2,514.87
From Indusind Bank - 5,650.00
From SBI (Demand Loan) 2,492.52 2,517.53
Total 4,992.52 10,682.40
(c) Other loans and advances - Secured
Foreign Currency Buyers Credit 9,842.08 6,867.82
Interest accred and due
State Bank of India - 110.30
Canara Bank 15.40 26.13
HDFC Bank 35.86 8.80
Total 37,669.84 33,779.24
Notes : (i) Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings :
AS AT AS AT
Particulars Nature of security 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
Loans repayable on demand from
banks :
SBI 13,753.56 11,463.17
Parri passu charge over current
assets of the company. Equitable
Mortgage as collateral over the 4,827.29 4,521.69
Canara Bank land with building at Poojappura,
HDFC Bank Trivandrum towards State Bank 4,242.11 231.84
of India
From SBI Hypothecation of Lease Hold Rights
& Hospital Equipments - Life Spring 12.28 12.32
Hospitals (P) Ltd.
Short Term Loans from Banks -
Secured Overdraft
From Canara Bank 2,500.00 2,514.87
From Indusind Bank Secured by Project Deposits (HLL) - 5,650.00
From SBI 2,492.52 2,517.53

4,992.52 10,682.39
Other Loans and Advances :

Buyers Credit Secured by Project Deposits (HLL) 10,441.18 7,894.15
Less : Long Terms Borrowings 599.10 1,026.33
9,842.08 6,867.82

Total 37,669.84 33,779.24
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(&) <redag 1fore o1 @t are] aRTgaary (e @t fewoh (1) &1 dad av 1) 245877 266853
(=) =

UrEd/qdidbal 3 ABH 10,717 51 2,640.16

$ U9 ST 3R JayfT s 261120 2,527 22

e SuTford dft <o =g 31.65 63.87

GIEICES LI 0.10 0.10

A IIATY 5,346 93 10,317 55

SNCEUIRNEIIC I 29.23 35.08

AR ®Y A U M 117 0.11

RINTRITAT SR G | STH 227 0.96

ol 21.198 .83 18,253 .53

oot (i) : Sewrfers o @t arq IRueary (Sewrfeod For & fog afgfa & eor-feaeft 5 # feweft (i)
BT ¥ P ) AT & faeRer F fon efeifae SuR ¢

faremor 31.03.2015 @I 31.03.2014 &I
T ol | T ot §
formeY ot
o) o1 U 1,002.08 889 51
farcet o frame ko 1,456 .69 1,779.02
el 2,458 .77 2,668 .53
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Note 9 Trade Payables (Consolidated)

Particulars

Trade payables :

for materials, services and expenses

- Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
- Others

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

238.03
23,182.11

Total 23,420.14

Note 10 Other current liabilities (Consolidated)

Particulars

(a) Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note (i) below)

(b) Others
Advance from Customers/Clients
EMD & Security Deposits
Interest Accrued but not due
Fixed Deposit
Other Liabilities
Contributory Pension Scheme
Income Received in Advance

Deposits from laboratories & Pharmacies

AS AT
31-03-2015
3 lacs

2,458.77

10,717.51
2,611.20
31.65
0.10
5,346.93
29.23
1.17

2.27

Total 21,198.83

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

294.95
11,193.55

11,488.50

AS AT
31-03-2014

3 lacs

2,668.53

2,640.16
2,527.22
63.87
0.10
10,317.55
35.03
0.11

0.96
18,253.53

Note () : Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Notes (i) in Note 5 - Long-term borrowings for details

of security) :

Particulars

Term loans
Rupee Term Loan

Foreign Currency Term Loan

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

1,002.08
1,456.69

Total 2,458.77
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AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

889.51
1,779.02
2,668.53



l T ATshaaT fefdes
¥ e R 3 R s

feoqoft 11 sreaspifers uraem= (FAfea)

fawo 31.03.2015 @1 31.03.2014 &l

% wrat # T oral §

(@) AR Fdems & fog gragm :
(i) 99 @R WicaTe & e uraem 129 91 14037
(i) FreaTE=T Hee YA & forg e - 37 31
(iii) SIFAEAT 3R AT &b oY yraem= 134 34 128
(iv)SYe & forg uraem 822 .19 516 41
(v) 99 § Ua WM & oy gragm 23182 181.85
1,318.26 877 22

(") 3T UTaen :

(i) wRaTfad gfeact e & forg graens 387 07 387 07
(i) TREATTIT THIRT WX HR & feTq Hraem 78.80 65.78
(i) PRTET & U Tmaens 2585 -
491 72 452 85
Pl 1,809.98 1,330.07
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HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 11 Short-term provisions (Consolidated)

(a)

(b)

Particulars

Provision for employee benefits :

(i) Provision for bonus and incentive

(ii) Provision for Performance related payments
(iii) Provision for Perks & Allowance

(iv) Provision for gratuity

(v) Provision for group EL Premium

Provision - Others :

(i) Provision for proposed equity dividend
(ii) Provision for tax on proposed dividends
(iif) Provision for taxation

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

129.91
134.34
822.19
231.82

1,318.26

387.07

78.80

25.85

491.72

Total 1,809.98
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AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

140.37
37.31
1.28
516.41
181.85

877.22

387.07
65.78
452.85
1,330.07



wEEsgT fHiees

e difgt & for s

29'2S. 16 868 2529 800 ee'G/LL YXAPA%% Sy LIS L 800 [Kogelore 61'G.2' | §b Rah|

276

i 4
y o
17

e ufedes 2014-2015

02 0€6 66 988 88 658 8L'0 09'2€2 ot L29 L89PL' L 810 6€ 681 99'/65°L pd
88'€ (00'0) 8E ¥E = 88'€ 05 0€ 88 ¥E = - 8E ¥e 18 % Mis/el» M lie
1299 0z 2y 1v 86 = L0Y) oY ¥8 L90v = = L9'0v JLHREBIS, bl Sl
Sl ey 20 Ly 1702 81°0 9e 0!t €z 0k e 19 81°0 v9'8 1629 22h Ao Plhed
e /28 17'€08 2990/ = 62 702 £€'209 6E0LG L = G/ 081 ¥962€ | Aepohll 32fng
Lkl phie B
€2696'9L  L0¥69'8L 0LELT /L Vi aant 09'¥2e'e /6100'GL  917/06'GE Z19Gk 8t ze9'e 08 0et'2e hb Rap|
€9°6v9'8L  GE088'€C 2L L96'8l 99691 L Y1 6€6'2C vL'86L°LL 90 8vE'eY 0€ 99/ 09992 L LU Ly8'SE pd
GOS8’ L G628+  ¥9092'€ (zoel) 02999 ey’ 1892  69EV0'S 98'8G 86'999 8y Gevr' v lndbhe RRIRIG (R)
1629 SS v 8928 - 69 8k 66 €9 8T /2l = 820k 96911 el 221k (2)
9v' 169 9z 199 62026 ¥9 02 2T 6Ll Lrzis G0'229' 10'82 61912 LG €0V | absh b dblba (B)
L€ 00€'6 12608'Clk 900/ LI 2999¢'L 606Gt 69292 LL  9Z'6le VT el v29 6 982 ¥ 06'259'02 Bllsk b kkh (L)
869/¢€'9 c0/6L9 8L66LE (89'v02)  v28vS 98'Sv¥'c 0T 966'6 0€'GS G0'L2T + v¥'¥28'8 balk3 (B2)
V9 vy 28'20. LS - 122 9l Lg 6L v - 6 292 08 ¥8¥ ik 2h 20
29 e ¥9 26 = = ¥G 269 26299 291z blyjlbd b
Wk (@)
i | e
€2102 kit 1€ V102 kit L€ H|0Z Rl |€ (RIhBMh  BIMb & kb 102 Rle | 7102 Rlk L€ El2bll bpbyh - €102 Rige | IRRIhBh Rhie
e (io ) {eRihirylh BRI 2| Jao]

hEke 1@ 1PRIhEYL Bhie Dok



y Generations

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Health

o 4
N 2
17

29'¢SL 16'868
0¢'0€6 66°988

88'¢c (00°0)
12°95 0z'zy
SLTy 20Ty
1€°228 11°€08

€2°656'9T L0'¥69°8T
€9°'679'8T GE'08€'EC
S0"¥S8'T  S6°¢8L'T

16°CS

SS'vy

9’169 9¢'TS9
TE00E'6 T2°608'CT
85°9/€'9 ¢0°26L°9

v9'Lvy 28'¢0L
29've 5265
¥T0¢ STOC

‘YoreN 1€ YoreN TE

soe| )

%901d 19N

[AgAN]
88658
8E'VE
L1'86
Tr'0c

2990,

OT'€TC'LT
2.°,96'8T
¥9°092°€
89°¢8
6.°0L6
90°0TV'TT
8T°66T'E
LEVY

ST02
yosen T

80°0
8T°0

8T°0

aan
9G'69T'T
(zoeT)

¥5'0¢

29°99€'T
(85'¥02)

sjuawisnlpe

/sresodsip up uoneaidag

€E'GLT
09°¢cec
88°¢
LOVT
9€°0T

6¢'70¢

09'vee'e
YT'6€6°C
02999
69°8T
¢C'6LT
60°6TS'T
¥.°8¥S
1C°L

Ieak ayl
10}
abueyo

L2 LEY
9v'L29
05°0€
ov'v8
€C°0T

€€'20S

L6°T00'ST
vT'86T'LT
EV°'185'C
66°€9
T1°¢T8
65°252'TT
98'Svv'e
9T'LE

¥10Z
‘ludy T

wawiredw pue uoneidaldag pare|nwnady

Y TIG'T
L8°97L'T
8EVE
L9°0VT
EV'T9

6€°0TS'T

9T°L06'SE
90°8vE'ey
6S°€70'S
€c'Lel
G0°229'T
9z'6TC e
02'966'6
6T LY.
75265

ST0Z
‘YaIeN T

800 T€'9€C
8T'0 6€°68T
8T°0 79'8

= G/.°08T
¢T'98T 87'¢€9'e
0€'992 099922
9889 86'999

= 8¢'0T
T0°'8¢ 67'9v¢C
€T've9 67'98C'V
0€'9S S0°222'T
= 6€'¢9¢

= 26°L99
sjesodsig suonippy

320|g SS0l9

6T°G.2'T
99°/6S'T
8EVE
L9°0VT
L6°¢S

¥9'62ET

08°0€¥'CE
L1 L¥8'SE
8v'SEV'Y
96'9TT

LS EOV'T
06°L55'0C
¥ 7288
08'v8¥
29've

¥102
‘ludy T

I1eak snoinaid
[eloL
arvyd/AmRoId ® Wy
.Bundsey, sweN puelg
sluared % Sylewapel]
aremyos Jaindwo)d
slassy a|qibuelu|
l1eak snoinaid
|elol
wewdinb3 820 ()
Sa|o1yaA 1010 (3)
aInixi4 % ainuuing (p)
Aiaulyoep pue ue|d (9)
sbuipiing (q)
pjoyasea
ploysai4
pueT (e)

s1essy 9|qifue] Vv

S19SSy paxi4

S19SSY paxi4 ZT 810N
3|NPayos S19SSY Paxid palepljosuod

Annual Report 2014-2015

277



wEEsgT fHiees
s difgt & foo s

A
/ 4

/

- 87’ 01€ - - - -
87’ 01€ €1°60L - - - -
87’ 0lLe €1'60. - - - -

96 156’7 /000906 - = = =
09'8LL'6 90088 ¥I - > > >
G6 /ST | 98'05}'¢

- /80 - - - -
00" 001 71196 - - - -
18'80¢ 6v L9¢ - - - -

60 /87" ¥ 70'069'8
v, v9.'2 99'G686'c - - - -

_.E.n_.w._.ww Pﬁm&mr_bw_m
v102 SLoe GL0Z 2h Bldhb| & /RI2koh: v102

bl 1e plk L€ Rk 1€ lkRjhBMh  BE @ Re Rie |
Sl bl K2 e RISRSE Db

e 202

87’ 01€
€1°60L
€1'60.

,0'090'6
90'088' 1L
98°0Sl'¢
/80
71196
6% 152

70 065’8
99'686'¢

G102 klk L€

G1'9/8'L €6 750’2
- G9' 86€
= G9'86¢€
G LIE L €905 G
L9°06L'2 €1'2S6'L
clopAerAt /6 6Y7L'C
= /80
= 71 196
€8 Ie Kep )
89928 29698t
0LG. 20962
Llahl) kRbyh
SDll» RhR

LLLEL fb e
85 0L b
8y 0LE lejhidalh phie blpie @
%I.mw _.Z%Q v_m__w_yv mv rv_%E
blhe _.v_ov_m_ WV T__»_.vﬂ._ﬁ B
1GGo8'Y ab kan)
09°'8LL'6 b
G6' /52 1 ple phizk Bie (k)
- 22k e plbed (2)
00" 00% ko Gkl
2h lielblolpyh Sk (k)
18802 ple l2kidh (L)
60° /877 ple RRlR| Bie (&)
Y2 y9.'c lkRjhbByh (Sh blRlklok]le
AR Llflalind ()
Rlb oh Bla Ir
vi0C Rile | lRBIhRA L Rhle
1RRIhbA PRI g1 llamd]

hEke 1@ PRIy Bhie Dojh

e ufedes 2014-2015

278



y Generations

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Health

o 4
N 2
17

- 87'0T€
87'0T€ €T'60L
87'0T€ €T'60L
96°7S6'Y L0°090°6
09°8TT'6 90°088'V'T
G6°.G2'T 98°0ST'¢C
- 180
00°00¥% 71196
18'80¢C 617 TSC
60,871 70°0€59°'8
v.'¥9.°C 99°G86'C
7102 G102

‘Yore\ TE YareN 1e

220|d 18N
soe|

Ieak ay)
ST0Z sjusunsnfpe 1oy abreyd ¥T0Z
yole Te  /jesodsip ug uoneaidag  ‘Udy T

juswJredwi pue uoneloaida pale|NWNIY

87'0TE
€T°60L
€1'60.

20°090°6
90°088'7'T
98°0ST'¢C
.80
Y1196
67°'1G¢
70°0€S'8
99°G86'C

ST0Z
‘YoIeIN TE

GT'9/8'T €6'750'C
- G9'86€
- G9'86€
G8'TTIE'T 7€°905'S
1/9°06T'C €1°2S6'L
90°/S2'T L6'6VT'C
- /80
- YT'T9G
€8'TE 18Vv.L
89'9¢8 29'698'v
0T'SL 20'96¢
sfesodsig suonippy
>00|g SS0I9

TLTET
87°'0T¢E
87'0TE

157598
09°8TT'6
§6°LSC'T

00°'001

18'80¢

60°L8V'Y
v.v9L'C

¥102
‘ludy T

Ieak snoinaid
[elol

xx Juawdojanag
1onpold wawdoanag
% oIeasay 0} paleal

sasuadx3 juawdojanag
lapun sjassy a|qibuelu]

Ieak snoinaid

[ferol

dim Assuiyoeiy (3)
sjuared % sylewspell (3)

s109(01d MaN
uo sasuadx3 ewapiou] (p)

sabreyn Aoueynsuo) (2)
xSsalboud ul siom 1n1D (q)

Buluoissiwwio)
Bulpuad s1essy (e)

ssalboid ul yiop rended D

s1assy paxid

S18SSY paxid ¢T 310N
3|NPay9s S18SSY Paxi4 palepijosuo)d

Annual Report 2014-2015

279



12 Ikl lkp] BJIA b [RRIhRY L RRie A8 Prd lnahbie @ ik I8 M Akl ¢ Z10g 'Rk 6 dllb]

Z102/Gg "B khyh e (3) €16 ae hd o ‘b lebhglle @ [1'Z1'6Z ") © Mk Dilk b bldb-blok bklb| Iabb| dblihdld dh lok 15k [jabby PRI IR )
12 Blyjliz Qlbke 122h | lhb 66 32 @ld B G00Z €010 M Albplie FIbDh 1 kil 1 Mlie 2R 90E

ft BLIR binie BE |2 Rilia BI2 00y 2 LbK M) @ bisie @ 16pJB lajlllb) ki ) 3h b he dllk & $lh SEx RIb DIy & koly P2k “rbibrah kXY & Yoh ple Ble 19

£2' 202 8€'29¢ b
vZ e 0,69 IR by h Phie
- 162 LRIBIK 128 alle 3ok
SLLLE S 062 BhUzk b kRR
986 29" bl
kB2l > kB2l
v1-€102 SL-v102

12 REjlla bhp)h @ [RIMABYL Bhie fr DL RB ¢ ko Yoh Lk 53 B & 1RD 9% 2 bojlbbe g
|2 blin k| Phllla b leRhBL Rele A3 Dad lndhbie ¢ il IR xh MBlE ®© Z10g 'Bibie
6 @lkb) Z102/SZ "B khyjh Mie () €16 2 BY Yo "B lebhpjle @ L1'Z1'67 'Y @ e Dilk b biob-bioh kitkib| [abE bljhdld dh Ltk Uabb| GRJIbR> & B O L ) p
|2 Iblin lkp) billladjh B hod Likb >h Rible dad @ b3 bbK |2 bl lkg| bilayjh dh
ABle eRIhEhb ARG Rible [@ kb g klaRIL ARbohlk Lhalies _%@EE&EE%E%E%E%E%EE%%WwE%%mAv
12 Lkl lpc) DRJUaNE D) @ fyble I kb lih 220/plked (1)
| bR 2 DRYIZRSE PLIS ¢ lRhRYK blb © kB 2ok hable %G © of @ bLIS Ah bblis Lzhe © WEIARNK BYIRK) & bRLIRE G U3 WLk kol DRYIARL
20818 [ [RIhidh 2h 20k M [RRjhEYL PRie M2 @ (RRIKBYA keie M 2 Lkl k] ol RISRAE M 2llalk IR) B AR} @ lRhiYL Uik blple @ Bhlak M kkb ()
12 Lkl lpcy) B12RoR ¢ leRjhiyh Ph Mblie ¢ Lizpie Lipie @ 1T phlie 1 €102 bRiygle khe (2)
12 o bt RJp RI2RE I Bllhie ‘g
. 12 Ikl ledy |3l Pigjlia f (phlie Whiayh
Rhie ‘Myh obg B L b o b 22l bbby gLy p8 DRy b kb 2h 20h & M Iblle 2 @ Rible I Lhb 66 B 2861 Y061 DR} & Rl 2h 22h © 0099462 hb Kk (a8
12 el
LRlie |2 fr blick b e 2RI 3k 'I2 [ Bl |2 elis [p 3h 20h i3} @ Ybie I [k 9g 1 plb bip| kol Blkbiyp 1k sk ge'e & 18dh 01 0ey @ Mbkjle (2
12 1kB| 2h 22h ho |b S2R|R] ®2(RIE K ARARD dh RAORIK @ ¥6 ) b ik 8eh 001 b kil b 01'08y @ Albhlie khie bk [bhe b bip b2 |3 bR (2lbkld kRid ‘2 Ikl
E@E%w%&%_g%oomwggngﬁﬁ%ggom@rwgﬁg&mgmmvﬁhg%gﬁﬁwﬁwﬁoﬁﬁ
S| $2Uble PARRN ik Sbd 00} & lfk 2eh 0106y $ ki3 Mopjie bhie ‘Mbbie & RYlaR] b MdMR balk ‘RRIck bb) ‘(I Bl h) Slb labk) blioplix (2
_MEEE%BBOSQE%E&@%%E%@EEAE%%B%E@;E@@BE@E%%KW
12 1232 Rk 1o ok ARR| 2h 2Dh b labK ARe ‘(19(k) leRIK Rikb] GlliRle Ik e b B2 46192 (It
12 123 koplie 1 2l 2| 2h 22h ARJP lhb 09 k 35R BIR 1126 3 (B
_mﬁvgmvomrwgg%ﬁwgm @gﬁréﬁgu&m@ Amw
12 Biglle DRl b Rk @ E.N
1212 20 J9'G 3 kb 1 kffe blYIby joh 22 96T & ke
12 122 koh hbjkle ¢ ik Ah Bllba [oh BbK b Slb Ridbb] ki3 dlliRle ®2 ke B 9/ 3
12182 -/g 3 ok bb[p & bk 80h ¢| ) kb waiiw@gmmmwﬂhﬁmgg
- 2 Riyla b 2ok @ ik piby

e ufedes 2014-2015

(Le
(&
(@
Inh "L
* lam?)

280



HLL Lifecare Limited
Innovating for Healthy Generations

o 4
N 2
17

"2T0Z 1SNBny Y6 palep ¢T0z/G¢ "ON JendliD pue eipul JO JUSWUIBA0D JO TT-ZT-62 1P (3) ET6 ¥SO 'ON uomedyou

ay1 uo paseq Adljod Bununoddy ayy yum aul ul pasijended usag sey s1D LTy 2 01 Bupunowe ueo Aduaund wia) Buo uo uonenionyy abueyox3 ubleioH [euonoN
"'G00Z'€0°TO Wou) Bupuawwod ‘sieak g6 104 SI polad asea| ayl pue ‘siuad 9og Bulnseswpe pue| ul 1ybu pjoyases| sapnjoul 1s0d uonsinboe ay] “eelay ‘JooAequiniad
‘wweindel| ye yred Jaqgny paumo areis e Aujioe) Buunioeinuew wopuod palajdwod Ajed jo uonisinboe syl 1oy pred soeq 0oy » sepnjoul ssaiboid ul yiom jended

€¢eoe 8€'29¢

ve'1e 0469 sjasse a|qibuelu]
- 1672 Buissasold erep % Jaindwo)d
ET'TLT GT'062 Kisuiyoe\ % ue|d
986 29y Buipjing
soe| Ul » soe| Ul »

v1-€102 ST-¥102

‘Ajioey @y panoidde ayy ul paunoul ainypuadxa [eyde) Buimojjos ays Jo 1s09 [eulBlIQ apnjoul S1I9SSe paxly 0] SUONIPPY

"eIpu| JO JUBWUIBA0D JO TT-ZT-62 "PIP (3) ET6 USO "OU UOIBIYNON U0 paseq Adljod
Bununodoy ay1 Yum aulj Ul SI9Se paxiy Ul panjoul uaaq Sey SI0 9f' T2 Je parewnsa Apuaiund ueo Aouaun)d ublalo4 wia) Buo uo sso| uonenionyy abueyox3 ubiaioH [euonoN

‘pouiad Juswaaibe ayl 1ano Ajjenba paziiowe si pred aa) 92ua21T ‘siseq elel-old Uo sieak g Jo
pouad e JaAo paziiowe S| UOIIN|OS 3IeMI0S 443 Sealaym ‘sieak ¢ Jo pouad e 1ano A|renba paziuowe S| uonN|OS a1emyoS 43 ueyl Jaylo alemyos Jaindwod 4o 1502 ayl (p
‘sleak g Jo pouad e J1an0 pasilowe ase sjuaredyien apell (9
"]V 8y} Ul paquosald S1asse ayl JO SAAI| [NJASN Yl JAA0 ‘IS0 a1 JO %G JO anfeA [enpisal Bulurelal Jaye S19SSe ayl JO 1S09 ay) JOo alliM 0} Se 0S (18sse pjoyases| pue
19sse a|gibuelul 1daoxa) S19SSe 1810 10} POYIBW SNfeA UMOP USNLIM pue Alsulydey B 1ue|d Japun S}asse |e 1o} poyiaw aull 1ybrens uo pabireyd usaqg sey uonepaldag (q
"€T0Z 10V Saluedwo) ayl Jo || |npayds Japun juswaiinbal ayl Yum aul| ul apew uaag aAey s1asse a|qibuel uo uonepaldag (e
'SMo||o} Se are pajdope uonerdaldap Jo spoylaiN
"9|NPaYdS S1I9SSY paxi4 Ul papnjoul lou sI wnuue Jad 00'99TE 2 JO Jual ases)
10} Z86T ¥0'6T W0} Buouawwod sieak 6 o pouad e 1o) siw'bs €Tywyg Bulnseawpe ‘809 JO IA09 WOl pue pjoyasea ayl ul parenyis sasiwald A1010e) 1dvo (Y
‘P11 (d) elpul red Jaqgny woly sieak 0 1o} a1elS elelad ‘looAequiniad ‘welindel| ‘yled laqgny 1e pue| Jo S1uad £Z¢ Jo anfea ayl Bulaq soe| g2z 2 (B
‘paldaya uaag 1ou Jey 0S Sey uonoesuel)
, SIY1 JIaAaMOH “pleog A1o1109|3 a1elS nNpeN [lwel 01 Sieak g¢ Jo pouad e 1o}y 8ses| uo uaAlb ag 0} ‘uolssassod ul saide QT QS JO N0 ‘pue| Jo SaIdY 8E'€ (4
‘76 2 JO UONRIBPISUOI ® Je "Pi] ydalolg 1H O}
S810e QT 0SP 40 IN0 paylewlea pue| Jo Saloe 0OT ay) paseal-gns sey Auedwod ‘awnueaw ay} u| ‘sainpadold [eba| Buipuad
‘paloaya aq 01194 si pue| Jo Jajsuel] ‘(a1oe Jad soe 00°Z 2 @O0y JO Saloe p pue ai1oe Jad SO 0G'9T2 @SJoe 9G) SI040 ZT'0T 2 @Panfen ‘paywi
yoaolg 11H 1o} ‘uoissassod ul saioe QT 0SH a1 JO IN0 paylewses S| pue| Jo Saloe 00T ‘Sifeyy dIWOoU0IT U0 9aNIWWOoD 18uIgqeD ayl Jo UoISIoap ayl yum aull uj (8
‘npeN |lwe] ‘nnadjebuay) ul
(14.11D) @mnsu| yoreasay pue Bulurel] AsoidaT [enuad woly sieak g6 10y 8sea| Uo pajojje pue| salde 0T 0Sh 40 anjeA ayl Bulaq -/662 (P
‘ysapeld Jenn ‘(valioN) Awoyiny uawdolaaaq [euisnpul BlyyO MaN Ul panioje pue| pjoyases| Jo anfea ayl Buiag soe| +6° 1922 (9
'sleak 09 10} asea| uo requiniy ul 1ojd Jo Juawiojie ay} Bulag soe| Ti'z62 (g
‘sleak 66 10} elelay ‘weindewelejeg 1e Buip|ing pue pue| pjoyases) Jo salde ¢ Jo 1S0d ay) Buiag soe| 9'0eT2 (B
Buimo||oy 8y1 sapnjoul pue| pjoy aseaT 40 1S0D
‘reuuay e Ss1uad 9'6Z J0 pue| pjoyaaly jo aoud ayl Bulag salo0ld 19°Gy (9
‘preog uswdoj@Aaq ealy [elisnpu| exereused o1 pred pue| pjoyaal jo 9oud aneual ay) bulag sae| 92°€2 (g
"1S02 JO 931} e[ela) J0 IN0D 8yl AgQ pallajsuell pue| Jo Saide T/ pue Salde ' TT JO anjeA uaxol ayl Buiag -/z2 (e

- sapnjoul pueT pjoy 9314 J01s0D T
910N

Annual Report 2014-2015

281



2. C @ [cll

T ATshaaT fefdes
difgert & fow saewo

o

i 4
y o
17

Lo B he joh
91’0 DbK B ha loh
€102 €0 LE Y102 €0 LE
@ (9)
(%) Lalp BDK B he
L lakkk) lah/cblllie
00’2 00’2
002 002
002 002
002 002
1T S
Ry phbhie
L 102 €0° LE

& (Bl 2
pRkba

Rale/IBB Dk|Rk]/RBS
wkp/|ikan/|kbep

pBLle 052 0S¢
pBLe 000'02 00002
102 €0 L€ GL0Z €0 1€
() (v)
pBLIe
[oBa b (@ Rhik/AkrR
gcc gcc
gcce Gcc
gcce Gcc
GZg ¢ GZg ¢
kB 2 kol 2 R
pé phbLie phba

b Gl0C' €0 1€

(e2h barlie @ rel RIK /01 3)
SR bl pb3R Ikaly bl ()
(R2h barlie @ rel RIK /01 3)

SRk[] Mpb3MdRE [Mblbd DM

labk) & Un2ehe [PRBIE (&)

(2) (1)

B

Bl b RlbL) Dhjlk] ks
lnxbp| % skl Refe - |lam?|

1RJIa DI (& lIable) bRbEle

Rk DR|bR ¢ llabk] A [k PBDS LR Bblph

(2) Alblke - R

LiBbIA AR| ¢ |PPh b Rk ¢ labk] : kR
(B + @) RS
(B2) lapky beie-od

kllhd ke dbp (1)

o

(2t job) 126y kb Labey ()
% b Rate (1)
Rllhe ke whkp (1)

a%E@

(2K loh) 1abk] b Unddhe [PbbIE (k)

lebk| Rete “Ba

AMhlle  "db
(2h BLrlR) labl]

(bpjietr) laply Bl 2 €1 Yok

e ufedes 2014-2015

282



y Generations

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Health
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¥4

Vi HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 14. Long Term Loans & Advances (Consolidated)

Particulars

LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances
Lease Building deposits
Security Deposits
Total

Note 15. Other Non-Current Assets (Consonlidated)

Particulars

Fee for RoC for enhancing Authorised Share Capital to the extend
not written off
ECB Loan Upfront charges
Preliminary Expenses
MAT Credit Entitlement
Total
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ASAT
31.03.2015

% lacs

40.83
64.60
21.62
127.05

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

56.00
27.80
83.78
544.35
711.93

ASAT
31.03.2014

% lacs

2,133.84
48.53
7.77
2,190.14

AS AT
31.03.2014

3 lacs

84.00
38.22
0.52
444.83
567.59
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2,294 33 2,151 .31
Q. e AmiR (AR 1) Jeuifed) 1,014 .60 1,028.06
1,014 .60 1,028.06
T, AT BRI (TR<AAD HHAT AN IR Jedifdhd) 1,516.16 1,552 .05
1,516.16 1,652 .05
¥, R A (a9 ad 9= a1 U9 3R 9 1R Jedifed)
[EIRIERASSIES 2,554 84 3,654 .90
IR fao SeTe 36.79 94 94
EICKI ISR 1,391 .12 2,064 80
AR HTe 23 .96 13 .33
4,006.71 5,827 .97
T. AW HSR Ud SUHSY (ATd IR i) 148 37 104 89
148 .37 104 .89
T, I IR, W, SifaRTs gof, SAR 9 onf (eTd W eifed) 1,232 .29 1,053.76
1,232 .29 1,053.76
. WY §RT GHeihd 3R FHIFO SR 5.11 13.82
5.11 13.82
ST, e
IEY/3TRR uft (| amd ar fHad
el A1ed oI UR) 28.89 2539
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A : IR i & g ifem e 89.32 95 95
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,";' HIL Gifecare [imiied

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 16 Inventories (Consolidated)
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
a. Raw Materials (Valued at cost) 2,294.33 2,151.31
Raw Materials with others (Valued at cost) = =
2,294.33 2,151.31
b. Packing Materials (Valued at cost) 1,014.60 1,028.06
1,014.60 1,028.06
c. Work-in-progress (Valued at Actual Process Cost) 1,516.16 1,552.05
1,516.16 1,552.05
d. Finished goods (Valued at Lower of cost or NRV)
Manufactured Products 2,554.84 3,654.90
Social Marketing Products 36.79 94.94
Trading Products 1,391.12 2,064.80
Goods-in-transit 23.96 13,38
4,006.71 5.827.97
e. General Stores and Consumables (Valued at cost) 148.37 104.89
148.37 104.89
f.  Other materials, machinery, spare parts, building materials
etc. (Valued at cost) 1,232.29 1,053.76
1,232.29 1,053.76
g. Tools revalued & certified by management 5.11 13.82
5.11 13.82
h. Others
Scrapped/Surplus Assets (at lesser of cost or net realisable value) 28.89 25.39
Gift items (at cost) 105.21 126.19
Stationery (at cost) 66.14 65.97
200.24 217.55
10,417.81 11,949.41
Less:Closing Provision for Obsolete Stock 89.32 95.95
Total 10,328.49 11,853.46
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31.03.2015 &1 31.03.2014 &I

T arEt ¥

965 .62
40,867.72
41,833 .34

22,238 .51
1,327 63
23,566.14
1,327 63

22,238 .51
64,071.85

T omE ¥

80.40
30,671.65
30,752.05

0.37
13,774 19
1,316,36
15,090.92
1,316.36

13,774 56
44,526 61

31.03.2015 w1 31.03.2014

T amE ¥

11,199.99
269 .39

23 .08
1,167.35
296 61

34 .40
18.99
13,009 81

T amE ¥

10,307 .39
237 .50
13.07
3,954 .10
13.74

298 .05

25 .88
14,849.73
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L 4
B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 17 Trade receivables (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months
from the date they were due for payment
Secured, considered good* 965.62 80.40
Unsecured, considered good 40,867.72 30,671.65

41,833.34 30,752.05
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they were due for payment

Secured, considered good - 0.37
Unsecured, considered good 22,238.51 13,774.19
considered doubtful 1,327.63 1,316.36
23,566.14 15,090.92

Less : Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1,327.63 1,316.36
22,238.51 13,774.56

Total 64,071.85 44,526.61

* Secured against Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantee & Customer Deposit.

Note 18 Cash and cash equivalents (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
(A) Balance with banks

(i) (a) In Term Deposit accounts with less than 12 months maturity 11,199.99 10,307.39
(b) In Term Deposit accounts with more than 12 months maturity 269.39 237.50

(c) In Term depsoits held for margin money for borrowings
and guarantee 23.08 13.07
(ii) In Current Accounts 1,167.35 3,954.10
(iii) In EE Foreign Currency Accounts 296.61 13.74
(iv) In Overdraft A/c (Debit balance) 34.40 298.05
(B) Cash/stamps on hand 18.99 25.88
Total 13,009.81 14,849.73
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¥ e G & o sae
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=« Afey o7 3R YRR By wraer 1,017 53 44079
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L 4
B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 19 Short-term loans and advances (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Security deposits & EMD
Secured, considered good 0.13 -
Unsecured , considered good 1,086.86 337.07
Sub Total 1,086.99 337.07
(b) Loans and advances to employees
Secured, considered good 17.65 17.62
Unsecured, considered good 414.73 395.27
Considered Doubtful 1.17 1.17
433855 414.06
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 1.17 1.17
Sub Total 432.38 412.89
(c) Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, considered good 182.26 182.33
182.26 182.33
(d) Balances with government authorities
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Advance Income Tax 1,020.71 1,126.55
(i) Sales Tax Advances 2.13 4.39
(iii) Others 55.56 10.89
1,078.40 1,141.83
(e) Others (Advance to Creditors, Deposit to various agencies etc)
Secured, considered good 148.94 837.17
Unsecured, considered good 5,387.65 7,348.73
Considered Doubtful 1,017.53 440.79
6,554.12 8,626.69
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 1,017.53 440.79
Sub Total 5,536.59 8,185.90
Total 8,316.62 10,260.02
Note : Short-term loans and advances include amounts due from :
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
Directors 0.52 0.52
Other officers of the Company 88.45 88.45
88.97 88.97
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fara=or 31.03.2015 &1 31.03.2014 &t
T ol T ot A
(@) s
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(i) SHRIRRT 9= Aigyd s 276 0383
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(@) 37
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¥4

Vi HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 20 Other current assets (Consolidated)

Particulars

(a) Accruals

(b)

(i) Interest accrued on FDR
(i) Interest accrued on Deposits

Others

(i) Receivables from Projects

(i) Export Incentives/Duty Draw back

(iii) Interest on Subsidy Receivable

(iv) Contractually reimbursable expenses
(v) Asset under Insurance Claim

(vi) Other Non-Operating Income

(vii) Forward Contract Premium Receivable
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Total

AS AT
31.03.2015
3 lacs

36.32
2.76
39.08

262.84

6.48
245.31
4.18
25.38
544.19
583.27

AS AT
31.03.2014
3 lacs

64.29
0.83
65.12

126.41
257.82
46.95
9.07

0.05

440.30
505.42
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L 4
B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 21 Revenue from operations (Consolidated)

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Sale of products 84,935.43 68,538.45
(b) Sale of services 7,029.19 5,955.12
(c) Income from Contract 15,096.00 17,948.86
(d) Other operating revenues 4,303.14 2,978.57
1,11,363.76 95,421.00
Less:
(e) Excise duty 810.69 563.04
Total 1,10,553.07 94,857.96
Year Ended Year Ended
Note Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
() Sale of products comprises
Sale of Contraceptive Products 43,316.43 38,437.14
Sale of Healthcare Products 25,760.47 16,189.97
Sale of Social Marketing Products 1,034.75 1,880.95
Sale of Trading Products and Others 14,522.82 11,650.84
Product subsidy on saheli 300.96 262.58
Cost Escalation Claims
Oral Contraceptives - (5.43)
Copper-T - 95.04
Tubal Ring - 27.36
Sub Total 84,935.43 68,538.45
Sale of services 7,029.19 5,955.12
Income from Contract 15,096.00 17,948.86
Other operating revenues 4,304.14 2,978.57
Grand Total 1,11,363.76 95,421.00
Other operating revenues comprise :
Cost of free sample supplied 2,692.21 1,648.42
Incentive on Social Marketing 122.54 58.27
Promotional Subsidy on Saheli and Novex sales 522.54 419.02
Duty Rebate/Duty drawback/Other export incentives 389.89 341.73
Sale of scrap, waste condoms and other misc. items 490.67 428.82
Sale of tender form 61.91 66.69
Others 23.38 15.62
Total 4,303.14 2,978.57
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84 .56
96.19

3.58
452

1.78
108.07
47 .09.
194 31
359.30

31.03.2014 &I
T a9
T o §

312 .88

876.61

1,189 .49

31.03.2014 &I
T 99
T ol §

298.76
1412
312 .88

2.66
22 54

5.25
425 .41
48 57
372.18
876 .61



HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 22. Other income (Consolidated)
Particulars

(a) Interest income (Refer Note (i) below)
(b) Other non-operating income (Refer Note (ii) below)
Total

Note Particulars
() Interest income comprises :
Interest from banks on :
a) On short term deposit
b) On Others
Total - Interest income
(ii) Other non-operating income comprises :
Rental income from Staff quarters
Profit on sale of fixed assets
Insurance claims
Excess provision / credits written back
Lease rent
Other Misc. Income

Total - Other non-operating income
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Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

96.19
359.30
455.49

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

11.63
84.56
96.19

3.58
4.52
1.73
108.07
47.09
194.31
359.30

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

312.88
876.61
1,189.49

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

298.76
14.12
312.88

2.66
22.54
5.25
425.41
48.57
372.18
876.61
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Note 23 Cost of materials consumed (Consolidated)

Particulars

Opening stock
Add : Purchases

Less : Closing stock

Cost of material consumed

Materials consumed comprises :

Raw Materials

Chemicals

Packing Materials

Cost of quality and sub contract expense

Consumables

Note 24 Purchases of Stock-in-trade (Consolidated)

Particulars

Trading Products

Social Marketing Branded Products

Total

Total

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs
3,149.00
22,338.87
25,487.87
3,308.94
22,178.93

12,128.25
3,023.63
6,174.32

722.53
130.20
22,178.93

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

18,282.53
3,202.19
21,484.71

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs
3,000.10
19,590.76
22,590.86
3,108.23
19,482.63

11,291.81
2,610.13
5,084.06

475.53
21.10
19,482.63

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

14,209.96
1,443.78
15,653.75

Note 25 Changes in inventories of finished goods, and work-in-progress (Consolidated)

Particulars

Inventories at the end of the year :
Finished goods

Work-in-progress

Stock in trade

Inventories at the beginning of the year :
Finished goods

Work-in-progress

Stock in trade

Net (Increase) / decrease
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Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

3,954.04
1,516.16

52.67
5,522.87

5,790.40
1,552.05

37.57
7,380.02

1,857.15

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

5,772.62
1,545.62

1.34
7,319.58

4,619.24
1,801.00

1.04
6,421.28

(898.30)
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e ufedes 2014-2015
300



,";' HIL Gifecare [imiied

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 26 Employee benefits expense (Consolidated)
Particulars

(a) Salaries and incentives
(b) Contribution to -
Provident fund
New pension scheme
Gratuity fund contributions
Earned Leave Fund
Contribution to ESI

(c) Staff welfare expenses

Total
Note 27 Finance costs (Consolidated)
Particulars
(a) Interest expense on :
(i) Cash Credit
(i) Term Loan
(b) Other borrowing costs
Total
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Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

12,171.34

1,266.11
173.07
656.01
209.75

47.38

1,390.17

15,913.83

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

2,248.35
223.74
111.79

2,583.88

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

10,558.79

974.54
150.78
516.16
175.18
53.58
1,400.58
13,829.61

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

1,577.19
98.17
124.21
1,799.57
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Note 28 Other expenses (Consolidated)

Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2015
3 lacs

Advertisement & Publicity and Sales Promotion Expenses 5,140.09
Power & fuel charges 4,048.84
Freight & Other Selling Expenses 3,322.64
Travelling & Conveyance 1,743.90
Other Production expenses 1,882.82
Wages to Contract Labourers 1,659.99
Consultancy & Service Charges 2,322.99
Free sample distribution 2,749.21
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,112.81
Provision for bad & doubtful debts/Advances 813.41
Repairs & Maintenance Machinery 514.13
Postage & Telegram, Telephone 365.51
Research & Development Expenses 36.53
Corporate R & D Centre Expenses 656.79
Rent 368.61
Printing & Stationery 228.91
Repairs & maintenance of other assets 172.37
Water charges 174.13
Insurance charges 214.91
Bank charges 86.74
Exchange Fluctuation 305.57
Staff recruitment expenses 67.10
Rates & Taxes 343.72
Provision for obsolete stores written off 12.61
Provision for Disputed Liabilities -
Book value of obsolete assets/stores written off 85.60
Training program expenses 113.52
Repairs & Maintenance of buildings 215.29
Bad debt & advances written off 98.24
Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 24.42
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 11.73
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets/scrapped assets 14.66
Equipment hire charges -
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 139.27
Royalty paid 4.75
Donation 0.25
Prior period items (net) (Refer Note (ii) below) 5.43

Total 29,057.49
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Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

4,824.01

3,931.11
3,304.40
1,798.78
1,777.34
1,684.76
1,219.75
1,733.97

882.08
254.09
415.62
347.68
6.14
480.25
477.63
240.02
115.23
139.92
174.85
178.71
1,086.91
97.71
126.24
41.88
2.55
43.98
93.48
144.37
236.23
18.65
2.70
0.58
97.28
0.11
(15.81)
25,963.20
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Note 28 Other expenses (Consolidated) (Contd.)

Particulars

(i) Payments to the auditors comprises
Audit fees
Tax Audit fees
Audit expenses
Total

(i) Details of Prior period items (net)
Prior period income
Other Income
Total

Prior period expenses
Administrative Expenses
Other Expenses
Total

Prior period items (net)
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Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

16.33
2.36
5.73

24.42

54.02
54.02

22.60
36.85
59.45

5.43

Year Ended
31.03.2014
3 lacs

13.15
1.63
3.87

18.65

72.91
72.91

56.99
0.11
57.10

(15.81)
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2015

SI.No. Particulars

A

Al

A2

A3

A4

A4.1
A4.2

A4.3

A4d.4

A5

A.6

A7

B.1
B.2

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relates to HLL Lifecare Limited (‘the Company"), its
subsidiary and Joint Venture. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the following basis :

The financial statements of the Parent Company and its Subsidiary Companies are
consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating the intra-group balances, intra-
group transactions in accordance with Accounting Standard-21 on "Consolidated Financial
Statements".

The financial statements of Joint Venture are combined by applying proportionate
consolidation method of line-by-line basis on items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses after in accordance with Accounting Standard-27 on "Financial Reporting of
Interest in Joint Ventures".

As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and events in similar circumstances and are
presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Parent Company's separate
financial statements.

The Subsidiary/Joint Venture Companies considered in the financial statements are as
follows

Name of the Country of Relationship Ownership

Company Incorporation Interest as on
31.03.2015

HLL Biotech Limited (HBL) India Subsidiary 100%

Goa Antibiotics and India Subsidiary 74%

Pharmaceuticals Limited (GAPL)

HLL Infratech Services
Limited (HITES) India Subsidiary 100%

Life Spring Hospitals Pvt. Ltd. India Joint Venture 50%

The excess of cost to the parent of its investments in a subsidiary over the parents portion of
equity at the date on which investment is made, is recognised as goodwill on consolidation and
disclosed separately under Non-Current Assets and is amortised over a period of 10 year from
the subsequent financial year.

Minority Interest in the net assets of subsidiary, consists of the amount of equity attributable to
the minority shareholders at the date on which investment is made in subsidiary company and
further movements in the equity, subsequent to the date of investment.

HLL InfraTech Services Limited was incorporated as a 100% subsidiary of HLL on 3 April 2014.
The Company is engaged in providing the services in the area of construction, infrastructure
development, engineering services, procurement management, supply chain management, facility
management services etc.

Significant Accounting Policies
Significant accounting policies of parent company are enclosed as Annexure-I.

Inventories

The weighted average formula is used for the valuation of raw materials, stores and
spares.However FIFO Method of valuation of inventories has been followed by Goa Antibiotics
and Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (GAPL)
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B.3 Fixed Assets
B.3.1 The brand name “Lifespring” of Joint Venture is amortized over a period of 10 years.
B.4 Method of depreciation/Amortisation

B.5

B.6

(O

Consequent to the Companies Act, 2013, in the case of the parent Company, Depreciation on
Fixed Assets is provided on Written Down Value Method except for Plant and Machinery , which is
depreciated on Straight Line Method, based on the useful life specified in Schedule Il of Companies
Act, 2013.HLL Biotech Limited has provided depreciation on the Written down value method based
on the useful specified in the Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 .Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals
Ltd (GAPL) & Life Spring Hospitals have adopted Straight line method of depreciation based on the
useful life specified in the Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 Research and Development expenses
directly attributable to generating asset are capitalized at cost as ‘Intangible Asset’ and will be
amortized over a period of 10 years in HBL. Preliminary expenses will be written off over a period of
5 years from the year of commencement of commercial operation. R&D Expenses are amortized
over a period of 5 years in GAPLIn HLL, Trade Marks shall be amortised over a period of 5 years
from the date of recognition of intangible asset. In case of GAPL, Intangible assets ie., Trademarks
are amortised @4.75% on straight line basis &Computer Software is amortised @ 16.21% on
Straight line basis.

Revenue recognition

HBL is yet to commence the commercial operation and the project is under construction stage.
Interest earned during the construction period on un-utilised surplus funds is deducted from the
revenue expenditure incurred during the construction period and the net amount of such revenue
expenditure will be capitalised when the construction is completed.

Segment reporting

The Company has identified its reportable segments for Segment Reporting, in accordance with
Accounting Standard 17, as Contraceptive Products, Healthcare Products, Trading Products,
Services and Contracts which are the primary groups. In addition, the following specific accounting
policies have been followed for Segment Reporting.

(a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the
segment, including inter segment revenue.

(b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allocable to segments are considered for determining
the segment results. Expenses which relate to the company as a whole and not allocable to segments
are included under “Unallocable expenditure”.

(c) Income which relates the company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
“Unallocable Income”.

(d) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable Corporate assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the
company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

In respect of business segments of subsidiaries and Joint venture, the same has been considered
under Health Care in the Consolidated Segment Reporting.

Explanatory Notes

These notes are to be read in conjunction with the explanatory notes forming part of the stand
alone financial statements of the parent company.

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share *

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Numerator Net Profit ¥ In Lacs
Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 3267.08 2576.08

Denominator- Average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year

No. of Shares - Basic & Diluted 193535000 193535000
Earnings per share (%)

Basic (Face Value of ¥10/- per share) 1.69 1.33*
Diluted (Face Value of ¥10/- per share) 1.69 1.33*
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* With effect from 28th August 2014, the face value of Company’s Equity shares has been sub-
divided from ¥1000/- to 10/- each . In compliance with Accounting Standard 20 — Earnings Per
Share (EPS), the Company has given effect to the said sub-division of shares in computing the
earnings per share for comparative period as well.

Status of GAPL Application with BIFR

GAPL, vide Application No 136/BC/2014 dated 26/02/2014 has made anapplication to Board for Industrial
& Financial Reconstruction seeking discharge of thecompany from the purview of BIFR/SICA upon its
Net - worth getting positive as on 31-12-2013. BIFR has in its hearing dated 02.06.2014 , discharged
GAPL from the purview of SICA/ BIFR Accordingly, the Hon. Bench of BIFR has issued the following
directions:i) The company-M/s. Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (BIFR case no. 601/1997)
ceases to be sick industrial company, within the meaning of Section 3(1) (0) of SICA, 1985, as its net
worth has turned positive. It is therefore, discharged from the purview of SICA/BIFR.ii) The Board
discharges Central Bank of India from the responsibility of Monitoring Agency (MA) to the Board with
immediate effect.iii) Unimplemented provision of the sanctioned scheme, if any would continue to be
implemented by all concerned.iv) The Special Director, if any appointed by the Board on Company’s
Board of Directors (BOD), stands discharged with immediate effect.v) The company would complete
necessary formalities with the concerned Registrar of Companies (ROC) as may be required.vi)
Accordingly, MA No. 136/2014 filed by the company is disposed off.

Provision for Deferred Tax Asset/Liability is not made by GAPL in the annual accounts for the year
2014-15

Balance in Debtors, Creditors and loans and advances are subject to confirmation / reconciliation.

Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development [MSMED] Act,
2006 are as under :

( inlacs)

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end 369.70 294.95
of the year.
The delayed payments of principal amount paid Nil Nil
beyond the appointed date during the year.
Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the Nil Nil
MSMED Act.
Normal interest due and payable during the Nil Nil

year, for all the delayed payments, as per the
agreed terms.

Total interest accrued during the year and Nil Nil
remaining unpaid .

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company. In respect of GAPL, interest if any due of payables to Micro,
Small and Medium enterprises is not provided.

Consolidated Segment Report is presented in Annexure 2

The operating results of subsidiaries for secondary geographical segment is included under “within
India” in the consolidated segment report.

The subsidiary company GAPL had marketing arrangements with M/s Goa food &Pharma (P)
limited. Theparty owes the company an amount of ¥8.50 Cr as per the terms of Arbitration Award
out of which ¥4.13Cr is towards substantive claims and ¥4.37Cr towards interest. Provision for
bad debts amounting to ¥2.65 Cr only is made towards interest. In case of two other parties M/s
Emcee Enterprises and M/s Madhur Pharma, also the Company has preferred an appeal against
them for recovering dues amounting to ¥55.27 lacs and ¥15.05 lacsrespectively. No provision for
bad debts has been created for the same.

Annual Report 2014-2015
311



N 4
I" T ATshaaT fefdes

zaza Ui & fam wammEo

79 St dl v 7 35 thaeRal 3k drterd aRERT & oIy yemer ugT sravensii # yaw f&ar g | o A
(T o¥) 19 & IJAR UET AP & Hag H YHTIHROT F=TIAR ©:
H) U Pl Ul [GRI BT 9 3R B fGaRor & w9 F ArS {67 S & |
@) UEl 11 7EM 9 120 #eH &l @y & fov g, Snusdt Wedd vIal W SRl AEHAfT §RT FAdIdhRul

o Sgem |
S RISl & M, FERUTAT araRet IR ST b ST A W E |
s & <A 921 YA 31.08.2015 d®
(X <IrEt #)
T ¥ & Wi 3 718
e g9 & 918 R Ui a9 & ggel < M 8.68
9rg a9 & 919 T A 027
el 16.13

1,10 % 34 .38 ORI & RN IoRA FI Pl Al IRAURTAT &b AT & WU H T TREURTAT & FefT MC
AT/dt TR TH/ATCIIR & WY | qHigpd fhy MY 21

A1 S T O v | Sgdfeed SR BRI Scarel & fafmior & fu SR & SR SR SR H &l
thaeRaT IU Ug W forar 21 g U 999 & MR W 9 WIS SR Fg F forg dul fede It 2

.12 Hut g1 AT Searsi & fafay vt & ddy § ol TR Td are ¥ SR T 3R U9 | @t
3R FT PRI PR & oIy e SIgATa I Ha™ - & forg it ¢ df vat & 721 a9 11 2 |

.13 i fqaRor & w1 & FHfha aifie < gy 3§ IRgd @l S £

714 qitiI® ) drIfed, gexrEg 7 a9 1999-2000 i 2003-2004 TF & q9f & Hfdd bl o, <t
iR AR @ iR T 452,66 od it T R T B AP 22.03 2006 ) AT @) G SR @) off | ot
T IURH BT SR T 62.76 ARG U & < bl & SR AW X 389.90 ARI <7 2 | HU 7 A B
BT 3R AT &% H Bl & oY Y 3R1Y & A1 X 82.71 &R & Uhded e & oy aifvrsas
PR IATTH, TIRIEIE DI HIH a1 2 | I8 df 31 U MR & AT ) Haifdq fopam T 21 ¥ 389.90 oI
P T B FHIbd IERe Sgare | enie 2

.15 sl AR, 2013 @1 SRy 111 & 37 Uferd & JaR, AHGURRI/EYh SeHl & Wy H FHlbd
Ferrail &1 ARIRE Ga ey 4 & w9 H UK Dl SRt §

.16 At #t a1 129(3)(1) & Waemsi & AR, HUl & FAIURRIT & fOxi [Gavon & q2 faervdmaii
& IO guF U N -1 F geu-5 & U # g fAaxer @ Hee fear @ 7

717 fUsel a9 & 3ifds PI, TRl aP ATTLID &1, 1] I DI IMAIHATAT P U MR Frpead arg # quries
TR & oy g FafRrd sk g aifigd fbg Mg & |

e ufedes 2014-2015
312



C.9

C.10

c1

Cc.12

C.13

C.14

C.15

C.16

Cc.17

L 4
B 1L Lifecare Limited

I f 4 Innovating for Healthy Generations

GAPL has entered into operating lease arrangements for certain facilities and office premises.
Disclosures regarding lease accounting as per Accounting Standard (AS) 19 is as follows

(@) Aggregate Lease rentals payable are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as Rent.

(b)  The leases are for a period of 11 months to 120 months, renewable by mutual consent
on mutually agreeable terms.

Under these arrangements, generally refundable interest free deposits have been given.

Future minimum lease payments As on 31.03.2015
(%in lacs)

Due within one year 7.18

Due later than one year and not later than five years 8.68

Due later than five years 0.27

Total 16.13

Deferred revenue expenses amounting to ¥34.38lacs which have been grouped asart block/ VRS/
software under intangible asset as part of fixed asset.

GAPL has taken on sub-lease, two factories at Ajmer and Jaipur in Rajasthan for manufacture of
Ayurvedic and Homeopathic products. The companyaccounts for all purchases and all expenses
based on statements provided.

Guarantee and warranty terms and policies of company in respect of various class of products
manufactured by the company and terms for providing of estimated liability that may be required
to honour expenditure towards such claims has not been made in GAPL.

The consolidated Contingent liabilities forming part of the financial statements, is presented in
Annexure 3.

Commercial Tax Office, Hyderabad had issued a notice of demand dated 22.03.2006 to GAPL for
3452.66 lacs, towards sales tax, interest and penalties pertaining to years 1999-2000 to 2003-
2004. The Company has already paid ¥62.76 lacs towards the above and the balance of ¥389.90
lacs is payable. The Company has approached the Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Hyderabad
for One Time Settlement of ¥82.71 lacs with a request for waiver of penalty and reduction in
interest rate. This has also been addressed with BIFR . The amount payable of ¥389.90 lacs is
included in Consolidated Contingent Liabilities.

Additional Information , as required under Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, of entities
consolidated as Subsidiaries/Joint Venture is presented as Annexure 4.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 129(3)(1) of the Act, a statement containing salient features of
the financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial
statements as Annexure 5.

Figures of the previous year have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary to suit
current year’s requirements and rounded off to the nearest lakhs.
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Annexure | - Significant Accounting Policies of Parent Company
Particulars
Corporate information

HLL Lifecare Limited, incorporated in the year 1966, is a Mini Ratna Enterprise, fully owned by
Government of India, domiciled in India and governed by the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. HLL Lifecare Ltd was converted into a Public Limited Company with effect from 21st February
2012. The company is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of a range of Contraceptive
products, Hospital products, Women Health Pharma products, providing Consultancy &Contract
services for healthcare infrastructure , Procurement and Diagnostic services. The company caters
to both domestic and international markets.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial statements
to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 besides the pronouncements/guidelines of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical
cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are
consistent with those of previous years, unless specified separately.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, requires the Management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent
liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Future results could differ due to changes in these estimates and the difference between the
actual results and the estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known /
materialized.

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all incidental
expenditure net of CENVAT credit wherever applicable. Revenue expenses incurred for
identification of new projects/ new line of businesses are treated as capital work in progress. This
will be absorbed into the project cost in the first year of commencing the business. If the new
project/ new line of business do not materialize within a period of three financial years, the entire
expenses shall be charged to Revenue in the 3@ year. The cost of fixed assets includes interest
on borrowings (calculated at the weighted average rates) and administrative expenses specifically
attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets. Expenditure during construction period is included
under capital work-in-progress and the same is allocated to the respective fixed assets on the
completion of construction.In respect of Pharmaceutical manufacturing facility, expenditure incurred
are included under Capital Work in Progress till the validation process is completed.

Intangible Asset

a) Cost of computer software and License fee incurred from 1.4.2003 are classified as intangible
assets.

Trade Mark Expenses

Expenses incurred on trade mark registrations will be treated as Capital work in progress and will
be capitalized under ‘intangible assets’ when licenses are received. Subsequent expenditure
incurred on licences which is already capitalized will be recognized as revenue expenses in the
period in which such expenses are incurred.
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Method of depreciation/Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets has been made in line with the requirement under Schedule Il of
the Companies Act 2013. Further, Depreciation has been charged on straight line method for all
assets under Plant & Machinery and written down value method for other assets (except intangible
asset and lease hold assets) so as to write off the cost of the assets after retaining residual value
of 5% of the cost, over the useful lives of the assets prescribed in the Act, except for those assets
whose useful lives are determined based on any technical advice.With respect to Leasehold
Assets, depreciation/amortization has been charged on straight line method over the primary
period of lease or over the specified period, whichever is shorter. Depreciation/amortization in
respect of leasehold improvements is provided on the straight line method over the primary
period of the lease.The cost of computer software other than ERP Software Solution is amortized
equally over a period of 3 years , whereas ERP software solution is amortized over a period of 8
years on pro-rata basis. License fee paid is amortized equally over the agreement period.Additions
to Fixed Assets from 01.04.1993, costing ¥5000/- each or less are fully depreciated, irrespective
of the date of addition.Machinery spares acquired with the equipment are depreciated using the
same rates and method applicable for the original machinery. In the case of Machinery spares
procured separately for future use, rate equivalent to accumulated depreciation for the expired
life of the relative machinery are charged in the year of acquisition along with depreciation for the
year.Trade Mark expenses shall be amortized over a period of 5 years from the date of recognition
of intangible asset.

Leases

Fixed Assets acquired and given on lease are shown as part of fixed assets. Lease rental income
is accounted on accrual basis.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of assets is recognized when there is an indication of Impairment. On such indication
the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and if such estimation is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary, if any.
Inventories

The weighted average formula is used for the valuation of raw materials, stores and spares.
Work-in-progress, materials in transit/under inspection is carried at actual process cost. Unused
Loose Tools are revalued every year taking into account the useful life of the tools and carried at
the revalued cost. Finished goods manufactured/goods purchased for trading are valued at lower
of cost/net realizable value, including excise duty, wherever applicable. Manufactured / traded
finished goods in stock whose shelf life expires within three months from the Balance Sheet date
are taken at NIL value.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on audited financial statements.
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Revenue recognition

Sales comprise of value of sale of goods (net of returns) excluding sales tax and discounts but
including excise duty. Insurance claims are accounted on receipt basis. Interest on investments
is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the fixed rate
of interest. Revenue from services business is recognized on accrual basis. Revenues from
maintenance contracts are recognized pro rata over the period of the contract. Revenue
fromlInfrastructure - development division and Procurement Consultancy division related activities
are recognized as follows:

a) In case of turnkey contracts ,on the basis of progress billing to the contract value under survey
method.

b) In the case of other contracts, on the basis of completion of obligation as per the terms of
contract with the agencies concerned.

Other Operating Revenues

The revenue against realization of waste latex, empty drums, rejected products and other scrap
items are accounted on cash basis.Duty drawback/export incentive in respect of export sales
are accounted in the year of export. The realization in respect of obsolete assets/materials written
off is accounted on cash basis.

Other Income

Interest income if any for delayed realization from sundry debtors as stipulated in invoices is not
recognized, unless realized. Income other than the above are accounted on accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign exchange are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transactions. Foreign currency receivables/payables are translated at the exchange rates as
on the Balance Sheet date. Gain or losses arising out of such transactions are adjusted to the
statement of Profit and Loss. Premium or discount on foreign exchange forward contracts booked
for hedging existing assets/liabilities are amortised and recognised in the statement of profit and
loss over the period of the contract. Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding as at the
year end on account of firm commitment transactions are marked to market and the losses, if any
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and gains are ignored in accordance with the
announcement of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting of Derivatives
issued in March 2008.

Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences on translation or settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items
(i.e., whose term of settlement exceeds twelve months from the date of its origination) at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded or reported in the previous financial
statements, in so far as it relates to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to the cost of
the assets as per GOI notification dated 31.03.2009 and 29.12.2011 and this will be amortized
over the remaining life of the Asset.

Government grants
a) Grants in the form of investment subsidy are credited to separate reserve.

b) Revenue grants/subsidy (other than product subsidy) relating to sales are disclosed separately
under other operating revenues, whereas product subsidy are disclosed under sales and services.

Employee benefits

a) Gratuity and Leave Encashment The Gratuity liability and Leave Encashment liabilities are
determined under separate group schemes maintained with LIC of India. The liabilities towards
these schemes are estimated yearly, based on actuarial valuation.

b) Voluntary Retirement Benefits

The entire liability on account of payments under VRS, if any is charged off to the Profit and Loss
Account in the same year.

c) Post Employment Medical Benefits

The Employees (including their spouse) on the rolls of the Company from 01.07.2005 are covered
under Group Medical Insurance Scheme of M/s National Insurance Company Ltd.
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d) Bonus/ Performance Related Payment

Provision for bonus for the employees is made on the basis of Productivity Linked Incentive Scheme
as per the Long Term Agreement entered into with the recognized trade unions. Executives at the
Board level and below the Board level are covered for Performance Related Pay (PRP) as per the
guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprise.

e) Pension Scheme

Company has introduced a contributory pension scheme from 1-4-2011 for the permanent employees
who are on the rolls of the company as on 9-10-2012. Company contributes 3% of basic plus DA
with a matching contribution from employees. The pension scheme is managed by LIC of India.

f) Encashment of Half Pay Leave on Superannuation

Company has introduced (w.e.f 15.05.2014) the facility of encashment of Half Pay leave to the
permanent employees at the time of superannuation, subject to an overall ceiling of 300 daysalongwith
Earned Leave. The liability towards the same has been estimated and provided for in the statement
of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

The borrowing cost incurred / attributable to the acquisition for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset is capitalized. Interest on loan taken specifically for the acquiring assets and the interest thereon
are proportionately allocated to respective assets based on asset value.

Segment reporting

The Company has identified its reportable segments for Segment Reporting, in accordance with
Accounting Standard 17, as Contraceptive Products, Healthcare Products, Trading Products, Services
and Contracts which are the primary groups. In addition, the following specific accounting policies
have been followed for Segment Reporting.

(a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the segment,
including inter segment revenue.

(b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allocable to segments are considered for determining
the segment results. Expenses which relate to the company as a whole and not allocable to segments
are included under “Unallocable expenditure”.

(c) Income which relatesto the company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
“Unallocable Income”.

(d) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable Corporate assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the
company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

Taxes on income

Provision for current Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting
period in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961Deferred Tax resulting from
timing difference between book and taxable profit for the year is accounted for using the Tax rates
and laws that are applicable as on the Balance sheet Date .The deferred Tax asset is recognized
and carried forward only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization in future.Minimum
Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the provisionsof Income Tax Act 1961, which gives
rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered
as asset in the balance sheet.

Research and development expenses

Capital expenditure on Research and Development is treated in the same manner as Fixed Assets.
The revenue expenditure on Research and development is charged off in the year in which it is
incurred.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and
itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which
a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted
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to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately. Contingent assets are
neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statement.

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses of items of ¥10000/- each and below are charged off to the revenue.
Prior Period Expenses/Income

Income and expenditure relating to prior period exceeding ¥25000/- in each case only is accounted
under prior period.

General Stores/Spares/ Raw Materials/ Finished Products

The provision for loss if any in respect of slow moving items of materials/finished products are
accounted after obtaining the technical opinion regarding the usability/marketability.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
the nature of products and time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents, 12 months has been considered by the Company for the purpose
of current or non-current classification of assets and Liabilities.
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ANNEXURE II - Referred to in Note No. C.6
Disclosures under Accounting Standards-17 SEGMENT REPORTING (Consolidated)

1. Primary Segment Information

Segment Revenue

Net Sales & Services
Other Unallocable Revenue
Total

Segment Results
Profit before Interest & Tax
Less: Interest
Less: Other Unallocable Expenditure
Prior period items
Add : Other Unallocable Income
Profit before tax
Capital Employed
Allocated Fixed Assets (a)
Allocated Current Assets (b)
atb
Allocated Current Liabilities
Capital Employed Allocation
Unallocable portion of Capital
Employed

Total Capital Employed

Contraceptives

Particulars

46385.71  22,928.20

5,061.72 373.01

16,102.28  16,894.69
44,127.49  35,506.67
60,229.77  52,401.36

8,671.68 5,438.21
51,558.09  46,963.15

2.Secondary Segment Information - Geographical Revenue

India
Outside India

Captial Employed

India
Outside India

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal P. Sreekumar
Chairman Director (Finance)

& Managing Director [DIN: 00388355] & SVP (HR)
[DIN: 00117374] [FCS: 5875]
Trivandrum

10.07.2015

Health Care

% lakhs

Trading  Procurement Contract

and

Services Total

Consultancy
Services

21,932.55 4,140.46 15,096.00 1,10,482.92

525.64
1,11,008.56

(258.77) 1,201.10 3,237.82 9,614.88

2,583.88
3,122.46
5.42
0.00
3,903.13

283.82 1,912.34 0.00 35,193.13
17,247.90 3,740.38 16,233.25 1,16,855.70
(INESSINGS 5,652.72 16,233.25 1,52,048.83

ORSEIAGS 1,920.35 4,436.67 29,824.57
8,174.07 SNE28S1 11,796.58 1,22,224.26

(69,833.88)
52,390.38

96,630.80
14,377.76
1,11,008.56

49,262.74
3,127.64
52,390.38

Vide our report of even date attached

R. Ganesan

[FCA: 26723]
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For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
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CA. Jose Pottokaran

Partner
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= HLL lifecors Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

ANNEXURE IV : Additional Information as per Schedule Ill of Companies Act, 2013
of Subsidiaries & Joint Venture (Refer Note. C.15)

Net Assets ie. Total assets-

Share in Profit

i Total Liabilities or Loss
Name of Entity
As % of Amount As % of Amount
Consolidated ®in lacs) Consolidated ®in lacs)
Net Assets Profit or Loss
Parent
HLL Lifecare Limited 67.89 46,628.82 95.19 3,155.14
Subsidiaries (Indian)
HLL Biotech Ltd 31.72 21,782.47 (0.22) (7.35)
HLL InfraTech Services Ltd 0.00 3.12 (0.06) (1.88)
Goa Antibiotics &
Pharmaceuticals Ltd 0.49 335.11 5.43 180.09
Joint Venture
Life Spring Hospitals (P) Ltd (0.10) (67.78) (0.34) (11.43)
Total 100.00 68,681.74 100.00 3,314.57
(a) Adjustments arising out of consolidation (22,584.99) (0.66)
(b) Minority Interest (87.12) (46.82)
Consolidate Net Asset/Profit after tax 46,009.63 3,267.09
For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan R.P. Khandelwal P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Jose Pottokaran

Chairman
& Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

Director (Finance)
[DIN: 00388355]

Trivandrum
10.07.2015

Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO
& SVP (HR) [FCA: 26723]
[FCS: 5875]

Annual Report 2014-2015
329

Partner
Membership No : 012056



A

17

Tatellel

fafaes

Taza iz & fau S

T V: HuAL IR, 2013 & AR 3ifaR SHER!
(BT T ot -1 § St Frm 2014 (W) & o 5 & ar afea gt 129(3)(1) & IR

ar'E wegEt (RRfta af 2014-15)

a1 tarifed & TAUAUA SWHIch  TaAUald drlch

AT I BT A
wrgfese fafics fafies fafics
1 Raifér gar Mg T AR S U IR Mg U AR
2 IR G 1,902.00 5.00 17,801.00
3  aRfrE sk sl (1,566.89) (1.88) (18.53)
4 Pl BRI 3,179.15 9.05 23,306.73
5 Pl Sgamn 3,179.15 9.05 23,306.73
6 foyarer 0.25 - -
7 ANRTER 4,943 36 - 115.24
8 @I P YDA 182.19 (1.88) (11.73)
9 = & oy ura™ 2585 - (4 38)
10 &R & 91§ o/ 180.09 (1.88) (7 .35)
11 gl omAie I I
12 IRRYINGT & gicerddl 100% 100%
FHT T TaTe PH T PR I8 FAIHI BT TH - TATAUS SWICd [aIlfics
Y F IRM T I 99 G G BT 94 - BIg T8l
AT 4 9E SR GYeh ST
WY e B A1 : AEH B sRaara (§) fafics
1. FaNH IR Jo-ud Bl dRE 31.03.2015
2. 99 P 3 W HUH gRT T AII/AG<h SeH Bl AR Bl Gl 78,34,188
3. wEanil/dyh Se H fder jif 783.42
4. 9RO fORIR % 50%
5. Tl HEgE@yUl yHa & faavor TR GROT 3R
TRET & A1 I
EICEINIREIS!
6. HSANN/AYH STH & FHDT Tal B Pl BRI EIVEE
7. TEFTH RETORIA U3 B IR GRY b BRY A Hed (135 .56)
8. @y & foy /& (22 .86)
i, e H R ey (11.43)
i, weT W TS far TE ey (11.43)
AN T TaTe YR T DR I8 AN AT HYh SEH| P oM - PIg T8
Y & SR T AT 99 [T FEANN AT AYh S| P AMH - PIg e
Hed B TWh I 3 AR @) gART Rure e g
A TR UUS
FE] ATHR
wH 5. 0000107
1. 1. 3w IR . GuSerarel 4. IR MO v, A dieeIBR
JreTet ud e (fae) Gut |fga vd IR Iuree AEIER
BECARCRIED f&71.7.00388355 IR IqTEge (AT HTe) vd %y fomT srefiet dew 9. 012056
f$75.00117374 U Mg, 5875 U Ao, 26723
foreasayza
10.07.2015

e ufedes 2014-2015

330



,";' HIL Gifecare [imiied

Innovating for Healthy Generations

ANNEXURE V : Additional Information as per Companies Act, 2013
(Pursuant to section 129 (3) (1) read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014) in Form AOC-1

PART "A" SUBSIDIARIES (FY 2014-15) % (in Lakhs)
Name of the subsidiary company Goa Antibiotics &  HLL Infra Tech HLL Biotech
Pharmaceuticals Limited Limited
1. Reporting Currency INR INR INR
2. Share Capital 1,902.00 5.00 17,801.00
3. Reserves & Surplus (1,566.89) (1.88) (18.53)
4. Total Assets 3,179.15 9.05 23,306.73
5, Total Liabilities 3,179.15 9.05 23,306.73
6. Investments 0.25 = =
7. Turnover 4,943.36 - 115.24
8. Profit before Tax 182.19 (1.88) (11.73)
9. Provision for Tax 25.85 - (4.38)
10. Profit/loss After Tax 180.09 (1.88) (7.35)
11. Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil
12. Percentage of Shareholding 74% 100% 100%
Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: HLL Infra Tech Limited
Names of subsidiaries which have liqudated or sold during the year : None
PART "B" ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTUIRES
Name of Joint Venture Company : Life Spring Hospital (P) Limited
1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2015
2. No. of Shares of Associate/Joint
Ventures held by the company on the
year end 78,34,188
3. Amount of investment in Associates/
Joint Venture 783.42
4. Extend of Holding % 50%
5. Description of how there is significant 50% equity share
influence holding & equal

Board representation
along with Acumen

6. Reson why the associate/joint venture

is not consolidated NA
7. Net worth attributable to shareholding

as per latest adited Balance Sheet (135.56)
8. Profit/Loss for the year (22.86)

(i) Considered in Consolidation (11.43)

(ii)Not Considered in Consolidation (11.43)

Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations: None
Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have liquidated or sold during the year: None
For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S

P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Jose Pottokaran
Company Secretary SVP (F) & CFO Partner

& SVP (HR) [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 012056
[FCS: 5875]
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R.P. Khandelwal
Director (Finance)
[DIN: 00388355]

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman

& Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]
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REGISTERED & CORPORATE OFFICE

HLL Lifecare Limited
Registered & Corporate Office
HLL Bhavan, Poojappura
Thiruvananthapuram

Kerala, India 695 012

Tele: 91-471-2354949 ( 5 lines)
Grams ROLATEX

Fax  91-471-2356739

E mail : enquiry@ lifecarehll.com
Website: www.lifecarehll.com

FACTORIES

HLL Lifecare Limited

Peroorkada Factory

Peroorkada.

Thiruvananthapuram 695 005

Tel: 91-471-2437270/2433602/2433459/
2432880/2432292

Fax: 91-471-2435013

HLL Lifecare Limited

Akkulam Factory

Akkulam, Thiruvananthapuram-695017

Tel : 91-471 - 2441384, 2442641, 2442642,
2442692, 2442697

Fax : 91-471-241383

HLL Lifecare Limited

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum
Kanagala, Belgaum — 591225

Tele: 08333-279206, 279207, 279244,
279245, 279239

Fax : 08333-321443

HLL Lifecare Limited

Cochin Special Economic Zone Division,
Plot No.16A/1

Kakkanad, Cochin — 682 037

Tele: 0484 — 2413332,2413293

Fax: 0484 - 2413293

7
7

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

HLL Lifecare Limited
Manesar Unit

Plot No.71, Sector 7
Gurgaon, Haryana - 122050
Tel.N0.0124 — 4030949

Fax No.0124—- 4030949

HLL Indore Plant,

Sector-E, Sanver Road
Industrial Area

Indore - M.P.

Tel: (0731) 3259458 / 4011740

HLL Lifecare Limited
Irapuram Factory

Re. Sy. No.156/3 Block No.29
Rubber Park
Valayanchirangara

Irapuram, Cochin-683556

REGIONAL OFFICE:
NOIDA

Marketing office:

HLL Lifecare Limited

No.B-14A, Sector-62

Noida (U.P.) — 201 301

Tel: 0120-4071500, 0120-4071609 (Mktg.)
Fax No. 0120-4071513/4071627

KOLKATTA

HLL Lifecare Limited,

Suite No: 901, 9th Floor
Krishna Building,

224A, A.J.C.Bose Road
Kolkata - 700017

West Bengal

Tel: 033 22905275/74
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

MUMBAI

HLL Lifecare Limited

201, Second Floor

Pujith Plaza, Plot No 67
Sector 11, CBD Belapur

Navi Mumbai — 400614.

Tel: 022-67715000/01

Fax No. 022-25209950

E-mail: hllwr@bom5.vsnl.net.in

CHENNAI

HLL Lifecare Limited (CBD/HCD)
No0.185, Plot No.1, Lingavel tower
100 ft. Bye Pass Road, Vijayanagar
Velachery

Chennai — 600 042.

Tel: 044-22453478/22551860/
22551868/22441727

Fax No. 044-22550764

E-mail: hlimktsr@md3.vsnl.net.in

HLL Lifecare Limited (WHD)
No.12, 100 Feet Road,
Velacherry Taramani Road,
Near Canara Bank, Velacherry,
Chennai — 600042

BANGALORE

HLL Lifecare Limited
#2, 4" Cross
Ex-Servicemen Colony
Banaswadi

Bangalore - 560 043
Phone:080 25424530
Fax ; 080 25424531

HYDERABAD

HLL Lifecare Limited
3-5-816,Veena Dhari Complex,
4™ Floor, King Koti Road,
Hyderguda, Hyderabad - 560029.
Phone & Fax N0.040-23210041

LUCKNOW

HLL Lifecare Limited,

9/316, Vikas Nagar

Lucknow-226 022.

Phone No:  0522-2330945, 2320592
Fax: 0522-2738947/2330945

E-mail: hlatex@satyam.net.in

Phone : 044 -22435604, 22435607, 22433306

Annual Report 2014-2015
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Arya Vaidya Sala, Kottakkal F L Litgcos bimitec

& 10 heal joint pain,
we first heal the joint’

My .
H{;grl)s Joint Care Crean
\Berrles| Forjoinc

Introducing Herbs & Berries
Joint Care Cream

Rediscover freedom from pain. Rediscover the
power of ancient, authentic Ayurveda that treats
inflamed joints and aching muscles from within.
Developed by Arya Vaidyasala Kottakkal, based
on well-known pain management preparations
like Mahanarayanatailam and Kapuraditailam,
Herbs & Berries Joint Care packs 49 effective
ingredients including Bala and Devataram that
penetrate deep to reduce inflammation, improve
mobility and flexibility in the joints. Maximizing
age old tradition for a life that is active and
fulfilling today.

Herbs

Berries

True health. True life.

Herbs & Berries range of products are available at all leading retail and chemist outlets,
Customer Care: +91 93880 07170, 95264 13363, 90376 80599.



HLL Biotech Ltd (HBL), fully owned subsidiary of HLL Lifecare Ltd, secures future generations by providing
safe and effective vaccines at affordable prices for every Indian. HBL is partnering with Ministry of Health
and Family Welfare, Government of India to set up a premium facility for production of vaccines for the
National Immunization Programme and other new generation vaccines at its campus in Chengalpettu near
Chennai in Tamil Nadu.

Ticel Biopark Campus (Module # 013-015), CSIR Road, Taramani, Chennai-600 133, Tamil Nadu, India
Tel: +91 44 -22 55423/ 33  enquiry@hllbiotech.com visit: Www.hllbiotech.com




ate Research& Development Centre

RDC) in Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala.
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HLL Lifecare Limited TAUCIUS iTghdeR fafies
(A Government of India Enterprise) (TR IRBIR BT 3eH)
Registered & Corporate Office USiighd Ud T e
HLL Bhavan, Poojappura TIUATA o, IS,
Thiruvananthapuram - 695 012 fgaragy - 695 012
Tel: 91-471-2354949 o 91-471-2354949
Fox: 91-471-2356739 e 91-471-2356739
Email: enquiry@lifecarehll.com 39 : enquiry@lifecarehll.com

www.lifecarehll.com

Innovating for Healthy Generations @ difedt & feu Faresor




